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PROCEEDINGS RESUME ON 28 OCTOBER 2020  

CHAIRPERSON:    Good morn ing  Mr  Kennedy,  good  

morn ing  everybody.   Thank you.   You may be seated Mr  

Mlambo.   Yes are  you ready?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes thank  you Cha i r.   I f  we may  

proceed w i th  Mr  Mlambo’s  ev idence tha t  he  s ta r ted  

yesterday?  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes do  you not  need ass is tance Mr  

Mlambo there?  I  th ink  he  needs ass i s tance.   You t ry ing  to  

ge t  used to  how to  hand le  i t .   Okay,  okay.   Okay a l r igh t .   10 

The oath  you took yesterday w i l l  con t inue to  app ly  today  

okay?  A l r igh t .   Thank you.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Mr  Mlambo you gave ev idence 

yesterday about  a  p rocess i n  wh ich  you were  asked  to  g ive  

approva l  as  the  –  as  the  Group Execut ive  Supp ly  Cha in  

Management  fo r  a  par t i cu la r  t ransact ion  re la t ing  to  217 or  

183 i tems o f  equ ipment  –  the  armoured hu l l s  fo r  the  

Hoefys ter  cont rac t  and we got  to  the  po in t  where  you had  

exp la ined your  cor respondence w i th  o f f i c ia ls  and  – and 

then you esca la ted  i t  when you were  no t  sa t is f ied  w i th  the  20 

process by  send ing  emai l s  to  Mr  Sa loo jee  and Mr  Wesse ls  

and o the rs  to  express your  reasons why you were  no t  

p repared to  approve the  t ransact ion  po in t ing  ou t  the  

ser ious i r regu la r i t ies .  

MR MLAMBO:   That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i r.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:   Now you –  we touched yeste rday on  

your  po in ts  tha t  you d id  no t  rece ive  any response f rom Mr  

Sa loo jee  or  anybody e lse  tha t  you  had sent  the  –  the  emai l  

to .   Mr  Sa loo jee  has been asked to  g ive  fu r ther  ev idence  

before  the  commiss ion  to  dea l  w i th  i ssues tha t  have been 

ra ised by  o ther  w i tnesses aga ins t  h im.  

 And I  jus t  want  to  pu t  to  you the  vers ion  tha t  Mr 

Sa loo jee  in tends to  g ive  be fore  the  commiss ion  wh ich  as  I  

unders tand i t  i s  the  –  i s  to  the  e f fec t  tha t  he  rece ived your  

emai l ;  he  no ted i t ;  he  d id  no t  respond to  i t  d i rec t l y  to  you 10 

ins tead he d iscussed i t  w i th  h is  co l leagues inc lud ing  Mr  

Wesse ls  and he unders tood tha t  there  was a  so lu t ion  found 

tha t  reso lved these issues and tha t  i s  why he d id  no t  

respond to  you.  

 Do you have any comment  on  tha t?  

MR MLAMBO:   I  do  no t  be l ieve  tha t  the  dec is ion  tha t  was  

taken was ac tua l l y  a  so lu t ion  to  the  prob lem.   My v iew was  

tha t  the  bus iness  was supposed to  go  to  LMT.   I  cou ld  no t  

th ink  o f  any sens ib le  reason or  sound reason as  to  why the  

bus iness had to  be  g iven to  VR Laser.  20 

 Because tha t  was go ing  to  have an adverse  impact  

on  our  f inanc ia l s  as  a  g roup and my v iew was tha t  as  one 

o f  the  Group Execut ives  I  had the  respons ib i l i t y  to  

cont r ibu te  towards the  success or  p ro f i tab i l i t y  o f  Dene l .  

 And tak ing  bus iness away f rom Dene l  d id  no t  



28 OCTOBER 2020 – DAY 293 
 

Page 5 of 211 
 

con t r ibu te  to  tha t  ob jec t i ve .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Now you s tar ted  jus t  be fore  we 

ad journed yesterday.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sor ry.   I  am sor ry  Mr  Kennedy.   Do  

you happen to  know by any chance what  i t  i s  tha t  Mr  

Sa loo jee  says was the  so lu t ion  tha t  he  thought  was the  

so lu t ion  to  your  concerns?  Do you  know what  i t  i s?  

MR MLAMBO:   I  am assuming tha t . .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Or  you do not  know? 

MR MLAMBO:   The so lu t ion  wou ld  be  in  h is  v iew tha t  I  had 10 

ac tua l l y  found common g rounds w i th  the  CEO of  Dene l  

Land Systems and my o ther  co l leagues a t  Corpora te  

Off i ce .   And to  me tha t  does not  const i tu te  a  sound 

so lu t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  no  bu t  my quest ion  is  whether  when  

he says he  engaged I  th ink  w i th  cer ta in  peop le  w i th in  

Dene l  and he thought  a  so lu t ion  had been found  to  your  

concerns do  you know what  he  is  ta lk ing  about  o r  do  you  

not  know but  you –  you specu la te?  

MR MLAMBO:   I  ac tua l l y  do  no t  know.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   You ac tua l l y  do  no t  know.  

MR MLAMBO:   Yes I  am specu la t i ng .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MLAMBO:   Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l r i gh t .   A re  you surp r ised tha t  any  



28 OCTOBER 2020 – DAY 293 
 

Page 6 of 211 
 

so lu t ion  to  concerns ra i sed by  you  wou ld  have been found  

w i thout  invo l v ing  you?  

MR MLAMBO:   No I  shou ld  ac tua l l y  have been con f ron ted 

w i th  a l te rna t ives .   I  be l ieve  in  robust  bas i s  there  are  

cha l lenges.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MLAMBO:   And i f  I  am conv inced tha t  they are  pu t t ing  

on  the  tab le  sound so lu t ions then  I  wou ld  ac tua l l y  re t rac t  

my pos i t ion  and then accept  what  I  th ink  i s  in  the  in te res t  

o f  the  bus iness.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.   I s  there  nobody whoever  came to  

you w i th in  Dene l  o r  DLS to  say  –  apar t  f rom what  Mr  

Burger  wro te  to  you –  i s  there  anybody who came and sa id  

and we ac tua l l y  have found a  so lu t ion  and th i s  i s  the  

so lu t ion  to  your  concerns?  

MR MLAMBO:   No-one ever  came to  me Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No-one ever  d id  tha t .   Okay a l r i gh t .  Mr  

Kennedy.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you  Cha i r.   Mr  Mlambo you  

ment ioned as  you were  f in ish ing  your  ev idence yesterday 20 

a f te rnoon the  pos i t ion  paper  and then I  sa id  to  you  tha t  le t  

us  leave tha t  un t i l  the  morn ing  because tha t  i s  go ing  to  

take  a  l i t t le  t ime.   Cou ld  you p lease tu rn  in  tha t  bund le  to  

page 793?   

MR MLAMBO:   Yes I  have found 793.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:   I s  th is  the  –  i s  th is  the  pos i t ion  paper  

tha t  you were  re fer r ing  to  yesterday?  

MR MLAMBO:   Yes indeed i t  i s .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And may I  ask  you p lease to  tu rn  to  

page 795 i t  bears  your  name and t i t le  Den is  Mlambo 

Supp ly  Cha in  Execut ive  Manager.   I s  tha t  your  s igna ture?  

MR MLAMBO:   Yes i t  i s  Cha i r  my s ignature .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And are  those your  in i t ia ls  next  to  

where  the  person  has –  has amended the  da te?  

MR MLAMBO:   No i t  i s  no t .   I t  i s  Mr  Wesse ls  in i t ia ls .  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Mr  Wesse ls .   So i t  i s  a lso  s igned 

apar t  f rom yourse l f  by  Mr  Jan Wesse ls  the  Group COO and  

Mr  Mhlont lo  the  Group F inanc ia l  D i rec tor?  

MR MLAMBO:   That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   P lease te l l  the  Cha i r  how i t  came 

about  tha t  th is  pos i t ion  paper  was prepared?  

MR MLAMBO:   Mr  Wesse ls  ac tua l l y  approached me based  

on the  feedback I  had g iven to  the  Execut ive  team o f  DLS 

and  my co l leagues a t  Corpora te  Off i ce .   And he be l ieved 

tha t  we cou ld  ac tua l l y  f ind  an  amicab le  so lu t ion  to  the  20 

prob lem.   And we  d iscussed the  issue… 

CHAIRPERSON:   To  wh ich  p rob lem? 

MR MLAMBO:   To  the  prob lem o f  award ing  the  bus iness to  

VR Laser.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:   May I  jus t  ask?  I  am sor ry  Cha i r  i f  I  

m igh t  –  sor ry  fo r  in te r rup t ing  you.   Was tha t  the  –  was tha t  

a r is ing  f rom the  emai l  tha t  we looked a t  yes terday 

addressed to  them and Mr  Sa loo jee  and o the rs  say ing  th i s  

i s  the  prob lem wi th  award ing  the  cont rac t  to  VR Laser?   

Was i t  in  response to  tha t  tha t  Mr  Wesse ls  came to  you  

and sa id  there  may be an amicab le  so lu t ion  to  th is  i ssue? 

MR MLAMBO:   Yes i t  was a  response to  tha t  emai l  and 

o thers  be fore  tha t  very  emai l .   And we had a  meet ing  the  

th ree  us .   Mr  Mh lont lo ,  Mr  Wesse ls  and myse l f  we looked  10 

a t  the  mer i t s  o f  the  dec i s ion  and a lso  spoke about  the  

f laws in  the  process.   And in  the  end they concur red  w i th  

me tha t  yes  i t  was def in i te ly  in  the  in te res t  o f  Dene l  to  g ive  

the  bus iness to  LMT which  i s  what  th is  pos i t ion  paper  i s  

ac tua l l y  say ing .   But  i t  i s  a lso  look ing  beyond jus t  tha t  

oppor tun i ty  tha t  we ta lk ing  about  r igh t  now.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I f  I  can  take  you –  I  am not  go ing  to  

go  th rough a l l  the  reasons fo r  your  recommendat ion  tha t   

tha t  LMT be g i ven th is  cont rac t  bu t  i f  I  can  s ta r t  a t  page  

793 you see ha l fway down a  head ing  Eva lua t ion .  20 

MR MLAMBO:   Huh-uh.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And jus t  read  to the  Cha i r  p lease the  

f i rs t  two l ines .  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sor ry  what  page is  i t?  

MR MLAMBO:   793 Cha i r.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.  

MR MLAMBO:   The bu l le t  –  f i rs t  two bu l le t  l i nes .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Jus t  immedia te ly  a f te r  the  word  

eva lua t ion .  

MR MLAMBO:   Oh.  

“LMT is  a  Dene l  subs id ia ry.   51% owned by  

Dene l  and 30% owned by  Pamodz i  a  fu l l y  

b lack  owned company.   Dene l  has  

management  cont ro l  tha t  a lso  means  

management  accountab i l i t y  fo r  LMT. ”  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Now you ment ioned yesterday tha t  

one o f  the  concerns was a  group po l i cy  to  t ry  and  supp ly  

in -house where  you had a  subs id ia ry  o r  a  d i v is ion  tha t  

cou ld  do  –  cou ld  do  the  work .   Was tha t  what  in fo rmed the  

po in t  he re  in  your  pos i t ion  paper?  

MR MLAMBO:   I t  cer ta in ly  was the  reasons and in  fac t  the  

mere  fac t  tha t  we were  pe rsuaded as  I  po in ted  out  tha t  I  

was a  member  o f  the  DLS board .   We were  persuaded to  

acqu i re  LMT –  because i t  was a  s t ra teg i c  company 

espec ia l l y  inso far  as  the  execut ion  o f  the  Hoefys ter  20 

cont rac t  I  was concerned.   So i t  jus t  d id  no t  make sense to  

me tha t  a l l  o f  sudden we must  dev ia te  f rom tha t  pos i t ion .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Now you then  exp ress:  

“ I t  i s  our  op in ion  tha t : ”  

And then we have the  bu l le t  po in t s  o r  the  ar rows i f  I  can  
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jus t  re fe r  to  them e i ther  by  read ing  out  the  sentence o r  

summar is ing  i t?   You re fer  f i rs t  in  the  f i rs t  po in t  to  LMT d id  

submi t  a  f inanc ia l  compet i t i ve  quo te .   You have dea l t  w i th  

the  compar ison o f  p r ices  yesterday,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR MLAMBO:   That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And then your  second po in t  i s  tha t  

LMT has a l ready manufac tured some pro to type hu l l s  –  

does have a  nomina l  exper ience  base l ine  f rom where  to  

work  and improve.   You re fer  to  them hav ing  rea l  

opera t iona l  capac i ty  and manager ia l  cha l lenges a t  LMT as 10 

ident i f ied  by  DLS management .   What  d id  tha t  re la te  to  

w i thout  go ing  in to  de ta i l  jus t  a t  a  b road leve l?  

MR MLAMBO:   Ja  there  were  some management  i ssues but  

they d id  no t  a l l  emanate  f rom LMT.   Someone ac tua l ly  d id  

an  assessment  o f  the  prob lems and they ident i f ied  tha t  the  

prob lems were  in  bo th  DLS and  LMT.   There  were  some 

lapses in  governance wh ich  I  be l ieved we cou ld  address as  

Dene l  w i th  tha t  management  accountab i l i t y.   And we 

worked on tha t  and I  saw some improvement  because I  was 

in  constant  contac t  w i th  the  CEO of  LMT Doctor  S tephan  20 

Ne l .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And then your  next  a r row says:  

“The work ing  re la t ionsh ip  be tween  DLS and  

LMT has not  been sa t is fac tory  f rom the  DLS 

po in t  o f  v iew. ”  
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You re fer  to  uncommi t ted  management  and immature  

opera t iona l  p rocesses.   Does th is  re la te  to  the  same po in t  

tha t  you dea l t  w i th  a  moment  ago? 

MR MLAMBO:   Yes indeed.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Now on the  next  page tha t  i s  page  

794 i f  I  can  jus t  read out  I  th ink  i t  is  a  sentence.  

“ I t  i s  our  cons idered pos i t ion  tha t  g iven 

Dene l ’s  s t ra teg ic  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  LMT and  

desp i te  the  cha l l enges a t  LMT the  in tended  

sub-cont rac t  fo r  the  supp ly  o f  the  hu l l  and 10 

accessor ies  spec ia l i sed  doors  and re la ted  

mechan isms shou ld  no t  have been p laced  

on tender  bu t  ra ther  d i rec t l y  negot ia ted  w i th  

LMT be ing  a  51% Dene l  owned subs id ia ry.   

However  g i ven the  cu r ren t  s ta tus  o f  supp ly  

cha in  p rocess fo l lowed in  th is  mat te r  we  

adv ise  tha t  the  tender  p rocess no t  be  

w i thdrawn and  s ince  no se lec t ion  o r  

p ronouncement  has ye t  been made DLS 

s imply  imp lements  our  p re fer red  way  20 

fo rward  as  suggested in  th is  paper  w i thout  

fu r ther  communica t ion . ”  

So tha t  was the  recommendat ion  and  then you re fer  to  

cer ta in  improvements  fu r the r  down where  the  ar row po in ts  

a re  se t  ou t .   Th is  –  th is  recommendat ion  tha t  you then  
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p repared and i t  s igned by  Mr  Wesse ls  and Mr  Mhlont lo  

when the  word  recommendat ion  appears  there  who was i t  a  

recommendat ion  to?  

MR MLAMBO:   Le t  me jus t  co r rec t  one th ing .   The  autho r  

o f  the  document  was Mr  Wesse ls  and I  gave my inputs  and  

so  d id  Mr  Mhlont l o .   And th is  recommendat ion  was ac tua l l y  

supposed to  go  to  the  Group CEO so he cou ld  ac tua l l y  

app ly  h i s  m ind and see i f  he  cou ld  pe rsuade the  CEO of  

Dene l  Land Systems to  reverse  h is  dec i s ion .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Do you know whether  i t  went  to  Mr  10 

Sa loo jee  fo r  approva l?  

MR MLAMBO:   Wel l  Mr  Wesse ls  had commi t ted  to  p resent  

–  to  p resent  i t  to  h im.   I  am not  aware  whe ther  he  

presented i t  o r  no t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you.   D id  Mr  Sa loo jee  have any 

d iscuss ions w i th  you about  th is  p roposed so lu t ion?  

MR MLAMBO:   No we never  ac tua l l y  had any d i scuss ions 

on  th is  i ssue w i th  Mr  Sa loo jee .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And the  upshot  o f  th is  dec i s ion  i f  i t  

had been imp lemented wou ld  tha t  have meant  tha t  VR 20 

Laser  wou ld  or  wou ld  no t  ge t  any work  fo r  th is  p ro jec t  –  fo r  

th is  par t  o f  the  pro jec t?  

MR MLAMBO:   I t  e f fec t i ve l y  meant  tha t  the  work  was  go ing  

to  be  g iven to  LMT a  subs id ia ry  o f  Dene l  wh ich  wou ld  have  

made me happy.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:   R igh t .   D id  you be l ieve  tha t  i t  was 

reso lved on th is  bas is?  

MR MLAMBO:   Wel l  I  assumed tha t  because I  had the  

suppor t  o f  two key execut ives  the  Group COO and Group 

FD tha t  Mr  Sa loo jee  wou ld  ac tua l l y  have no cho ice  bu t  to  

accommodate  th i s  p roposa l .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Now your  a f f idav i t  re fe rs  t o  your  

be ing  shocked about  what  you learn t  thereaf te r.   Can you 

te l l  the  Cha i r  p lease what  you learn t  and why you were  

shocked?  10 

MR MLAMBO:   I  was ac tua l l y  shocked to  lea rn  a  few 

months la te r  tha t  the  bus iness or  the  cont rac t  on  the  

P la t fo rm hu l l s  had ac tua l l y  been approved on the  16  

October  wh ich  was the  fo l low ing month  and awarded to  VR 

Laser.   That  was w i thout  my knowledge.    

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And apar t  f rom the  input  you had  

prev ious l y  g iven in  the  emai ls  and your  d iscuss ions w i th  

the  o f f i c ia ls  –  your  emai l  to  Mr  Sa loo jee  e tce te ra  and the  

pos i t ion  paper  had the re  eve r  any –  been any oppor tun i ty  

g iven to  you p r io r  to  your  learn ing  tha t  there  was th is  20 

award  to  g ive  input?  

MR MLAMBO:   No in  fac t  the  award  to  VR Laser  was  

ac tua l l y  kept  a  secre t  because i t  was a  few months la te r  

tha t  I  became aware  o f  tha t .   And tha t  bogg les  the  m ind 

because as  a  group you know supp ly  cha in  execut ives  had 
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g iven the  quantum o f  th is  cont rac t  I  shou ld  ac tua l l y  have  

known about  i t .   And in i t ia l l y  th i s  was above R200 mi l l ion 

and I  wou ld  have  been requ i red  to  p resent  in  suppor t  o f  Mr  

Sa loo jee  the  proposa l  to  the  board .   Because anyth ing  

above R200 mi l l ion  had to  be  p resented to  the  board .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   May I  take  you p lease to  the  same 

bund le  page 797 .   I t  i s  one o f  the  a t tachments  to  your  

a f f idav i t .    

CHAIRPERSON:   What  i s  the  page  number?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   797.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay thank you.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Do you have tha t?  

MR MLAMBO:   Yes I  do .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   What  i s  th is  document?  

MR MLAMBO:   Th is  i s  a  submiss ion  or  do  no t  know- 

Supp ly  Cha in  submiss ion  fo r  the  approva l  o f  the  P la t fo rm 

hu l l s .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I s  tha t  the  –  i s  tha t  the  procurement  

tha t  we have been dea l ing  w i th  yesterday and today? 

MR MLAMBO:   Yes i t  i s  Cha i r.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And what  i s  the  ou tcome o f  th is  

document?   What  does i t  record?  

MR MLAMBO:   Wel l  the  ou tcome o f  th is  document  i s  tha t  

approva l  was granted to  g ive  the  cont rac t  to  VR Laser  fo r  

the  manufac ture  o f  183 P la t fo rm hu l l s .   But  what  i s  ac tua l l y  
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no tab le  here  i s  tha t  I  was de l ibera te ly  le f t  ou t  because o f  

my pos i t ion  and in  –  in  te rms o f  the  De legat ion  o f  Author i t y  

I  was ac tua l l y  supposed to  be  the  one tha t  approv ing  

be fore  the  Group CEO cou ld  s ign .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Now i f  we look a t  the  s ignatures  page 

804 there  i s  a  recommendat ion  f rom DLS EXCO.   I t  has  the  

s ignature  o f  Ms Malah le la  who has a l ready g iven ev idence 

in  re la t ion  to  th i s  recommendat ion  and how she came to  

s ign  i t .   I t  i s  a lso  a  recommendat ion  f rom – is  i t  Ms A f r i ca .  

MR MLAMBO:   Mr  –   10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   [00 :21 :55]  A f r i ca ,  Mr  Teubes,  Mr  

Burger  and f rom the  DCO the  recommendat ion  –  sor ry  the  

COO Mr  Wesse ls  as  we l l  as  the  Group CFO Mr  Mhlont lo ,  

cor rec t?  

MR MLAMBO:   I t  i s  cor rec t  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And then we see the  s ignature  o f  Mr 

Sa loo jee  on page 806 fo r  the  approva l  o f  the  

recommendat ion .   He w i l l  g ive  ev idence tha t  he  d id  s ign  

th is  as  approv ing  i t  as  Group CEO.   Now you have ra ised a  

coup le  o f  d i f f i cu l t ies  in  re la t ion  to  th is  p rocess.  F i rs t l y  tha t  20 

you were  –  th is  was done beh ind  your  back as  i t  were .   I s  

tha t  a  fa i r  representa t ion?  

MR MLAMBO:   Ja  i t  i s  t rue  because I  learn t  la te  a f te r  

d iscover ing  tha t  th is  cont rac t  had been awarded to  VR 

Laser.   But  there  was a  meet ing  as  you can see  a l l  the  
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da tes  –  a l l  the  da tes  are  on  the  same day the  16 t h .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes inc lud ing  Mr  Sa loo jee ’s .  

MR MLAMBO:   Yes.   So there  was a  meet ing  –  the  reason 

why I  was not  inv i ted  to  tha t  meet ing  ba f f les  me.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   You have ind ica ted  to  the  Cha i r  tha t  

you shou ld  have conf i rmed compl iance w i th  the  processes  

before  such a  cont rac t  cou ld  be  approved.  

MR MLAMBO:   Indeed.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And you had spec i f i ca l l y  sa id  i t  d id  

no t  comply  w i th  the  processes?  10 

MR MLAMBO:   Yes tha t  i s  cor rec t  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And a lso  you have sa id  t ha t  the  

board ’s  approva l  was requ i red  bu t  i t  was approved ins tead 

by  Mr  Sa loo jee?  

MR MLAMBO:   That  i s  my unders tand ing .  I  am not  aware  

tha t  th is  approva l  was presented to  the  board .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes we… 

MR MLAMBO:   Which  was in i t ia l l y  over  R200 mi l l ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr  Kennedy th is  cannot  be  the  document  

tha t  Ms Malah le la  sa id  was amended had come f rom her  20 

bu t  was amended  w i thout  he r  know ledge he?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   No i t  i s  d i f fe ren t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  one must  be  another  one?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l r igh t .  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   Mr  Mlambo can I  jus t  pu t  to  you 

a  po in t  tha t  Mr  Wesse ls  has ind ica ted  to  us  as  a  team 

where  he  –  h is  vers ion  d i verges f rom yours  to  an  ex ten t .   

What  h is  ve rs ion  is ;  i s  tha t  the  –  the  so lu t ion  tha t  was  

found was suggested by  h im to  th is  d i lemma and i t  meant  

tha t  work  wou ld  be  sp l i t  be tween VR Laser  and LMT.   And  

LMT wou ld  on l y  do  cer ta in  components  such as  the  rear  

door  and VR Laser  wou ld  do  the  res t .   I s  tha t  –  was tha t  

d iscussed w i th  you?  I f  I  can  jus t  take  you back to  your  

pos i t ion  paper  there  seems to  be  a  re ference to  rear  door  10 

work  be ing  done.   Page 794.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I f  you  look a t  –  i f  I  can jus t  take  you 

to  the  p lace and  then you can cont inue.   794 the  second  

paragraph:  

“We recommend tha t  DLS shou ld  imp lement  

an  on-s igh t  sa te l l i te  p ro jec t  o f f i ce  a t  LMT 

the  fu l l  leve l  fou r  sub-cont rac t  package fo r  

the  supp ly  o f  the  we lded hu l l  p lus  

accessor ies  doors  and mechan isms shou ld  20 

be cont rac ted  in  a  s ing le  d i rec t l y  negot ia ted  

way w i th  LMT e tce tera . ”  

P lease cont inue.   Do you reca l l  d iscuss ions o f  LMT do ing  

work  such as  the  door  and VR Laser  do ing  the  res t?  

MR MLAMBO:   No what  was ac tua l l y  agreed was tha t  LMT 
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in  add i t ion  to  the  hu l l s  wou ld  ac tua l l y  be  g i ven the  cont rac t  

to  manufac ture  the  doors  as  we l l  –  the  rea r  doors .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Were  the  doors  no t  pa r t  o f  th is  

cont rac t?  

MR MLAMBO:   No,  no  the  doors  were  ac tua l l y  a  separa te  

cont rac t  a l together.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   So  am I  unders tand ing  you cor rec t l y  

tha t  the  –  tha t  the  hu l l s  tha t  were  –  tha t  were  

recommended fo r  approva l  to  go  to  VR Laser  you had 

ob jec ted  to?  10 

MR MLAMBO:   Yes and tha t  remained my pos i t ion  

th roughout .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   R igh t .  

MR MLAMBO:   There  was ample  capac i ty  a t  LMT and i f  

there  were  any p roduct ion  re la ted  issues and governance 

issues i t  was ou r  respons ib i l i t y  as  the  execut ive  team o f  

Dene l  to  address those w i thout  hav ing  to  take  the  bus iness 

away f rom the  LMT.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   So  the  so lu t ion  tha t  you found w i th  Mr  

Wesse ls  as  you  unders tood i t  re f lec ted  in  the  pos i t ion  20 

paper  was tha t  VR Laser  wou ld  ge t  no  work  under  t he  hu l l  

con t rac t .   That  work  wou ld  go  to  LMT because i t  was an i n -

house company and i t  was good on pr ice  and capac i ty  and 

so  fo r th .   Management  and pe r fo rmance issues wou ld  be  

reso lved and in  add i t ion  LMT wou ld  ge t  fu r ther  work  on  top  
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o f  the  hu l l s  such as  the  doors?  

MR MLAMBO:   Yes I  was ac tua l l y  no t  p repared to 

compromise .   In  ins tances where  there  was capab i l i t y  and  

capac i ty  w i th in  any o f  the  group d iv is ions o f  subs id ia r ies  

there  was no quest ion  about  go ing  ou t  on  tender.   And i t  

was a l so  qu i te  exp l i c i t  in  the  g roup Supp ly  Cha in  Po l i cy.   I  

th ink  tha t  i s  quoted in  o the r  pa r ts  o f  th is  ev idence.    

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Now to  the  ex ten t  tha t  Mr  Wesse ls  o r  

Mr  Sa loo jee  may te l l  the  commiss ion  tha t  th is  was a  

so lu t ion  –  th i s  was a  compromise  VR Laser  wou ld  ge t  –  10 

wou ld  ge t  –  ge t  the  main  par t  o f  the  work  –  LMT wou ld  ge t  

some o the r  work  and tha t  th is  reso lved the  concerns tha t  

you had ra ised.   Do you be l ieve  tha t  your  concerns and 

ob jec t ions were  answered or  no t  –  p roper l y  answered or  

no t?  

MR MLAMBO:   No ce r ta in ly  no t .   Bas i ca l l y  tha t  wou ld  a lso  

mean tha t  we wou ld  have to  go  back and amend the  Group 

Supp ly  Cha in  Po l i cy  to  say the re  are  ins tances when even  

i f  we have the  capab i l i t y  and capac i ty  we cou ld  ac tua l l y  

ou tsource  the  work .   And tha t  e f fec t i ve ly  means  f rom a 20 

governance po in t  o f  v iew – because i f  you amend the  

po l i cy  i t  has  to  be  p resented to  the  board  tha t  the  board  

wou ld  have to  approve tha t .   And i t  i s  a  long process.   And 

I  saw no reason  why we shou ld  even debate  the  issue  

about  g iv ing  work  a  g roup d i v is ion  or  subs id ia ry.   To  me i t  
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i s  jus t  common sense.   I t  must  be  done.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Now i f  I  can  take  you p lease to  your  

a f f idav i t  page 711 .   Paragraph 3 .16 .  

MR MLAMBO:   711.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   711.   Top number.  

MR MLAMBO :    This paragraph . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    On this page,  on the fol lowing page in  

your paragraphs 3.16 and 3.17.   You refer to what seems to 

be some history,  background about  the acquisi t ion of  LMT or  

the acquisi t ion of  a major i ty shareholding.    10 

 Is there anything that  you want  to  add to  what  you have 

said to the Chair  yesterday in relat ion to LMT and why i t  was 

signi f icant  in rela t ion to the award of  th is business,  to LMT,  

the Hul l  cont ract? 

MR MLAMBO :    Ja,  in my case,  as board. . .  former board 

member of  DLS, Mr Burger himsel f  is the one himsel f  that  

presented the proposal  that  Denel  must  ser iously consider  

acquir ing LMT.   

 LMT has got  those st rategy capabi l i t ies that  Denel  needs 

part icular insofar as the execut ion of  the Hoefyster contract  20 

was concerned.  

 He actual ly went  on to say wi thout  LMT, Denel  would 

have ser ious chal lenges execut ing the Hoefyster contract .   

So that  was his presentat ion.    

 So he is about  ten – i t  actual ly  horr i f ied me and I  
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thought something was actual ly amiss.   There is something 

that  just  did not  make sense in what he suddenly decided to 

pursue.  

CHAIRPERSON :    That  is Mr Burger? 

MR MLAMBO :    That  is Mr Burger.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Mr Mlambo, may we now turn to  a 

sect ion of  your  aff idavi t ,  paragraph 4 which is headed into 

interference by Messrs Burger and Thebus wi th the integr i ty 

of  the procurement process at  DOS.    10 

 And you refer  to a number of  emai ls that  the 

Commission’s invest igators had shown you that  were 

exchanged between Mr Thebus and Ms Malahlela and 

Mr Thebus.  

MR MLAMBO :    H’m.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Deal ing wi th why they fel t  that  VR 

Laser should st i l l  get  what  Thebus,  in part icular,  and Burger 

fe l t  that  VR Laser should nonetheless be awarded the 

contract .   You ind icated that  you had. . .  you were not  copied 

in on those emai ls  at  the t ime.   20 

MR MLAMBO :    Yes,  that  is t rue.   Al though, I  was horr i f ied 

by the content  of  some of  those emai ls but  when I  thought  

about  the ones they had actual ly  exchanged with  me, i t  

actual ly made sense because i t  was the same l ine of  

reasoning.  
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 They were engaging,  Ms Malahlela on the process whi lst  

i t  was st i l l  on to establ ish where the process was and what 

the prospects were of  VR Laser get t ing the business.  

 And also,  one of  the comments that  Mr Burger raised in 

one of  the emai ls  was whether the inputs f rom Pat r ia which 

had actual ly  conducted an onsi te  assessment of  the three 

companies,  was incorporated into the evaluat ion process.  

 In fact ,  Ms Malahlela should have said to Mr Burger  at  

the t ime:   I  am not  at  l iberty to discuss the f iner  detai ls of  

the evaluat ion process because we are not  supposed to be 10 

inf luenced by anyone.  

 And the evaluators are expected to  focus on what they 

had st ipulated wi th the performance cr i ter ia.   The issue of  

the audi t  report  by Pat r ia was total ly i r re levant .    

 You cannot int roduce strenuous factors to the evaluat ion 

process.   The minute you deviate f rom what you had 

st ipulated wi th  the evaluat ion cr i ter ia,  that  actual ly  

compromises your. . .  the integr i ty of  your evaluat ion process.  

 So that  should never have been discussed.   And the 

mere fact  that  he also pointed out  that  he was going to 20 

engage with  other part ies outside the normal channels to 

ensure that  the pr ice was dropped.  

 So i t  as a predetermined outcome that  VR Laser had to 

get  the business.   So this was actual ly a waste of  t ime to get  

people to evaluate the inputs in the f i rst  p lace.  
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 And at  some stage,  I  personal ly fe l t  that  I  should not  

have even pointed out  the f laws in  the process because the 

process was so f lawed that  i t  just  did not  even marr ied 

considerat ion.  

 The outcome thereof  was total ly unacceptable.   I t  should 

have been rejected on any grounds by anyone.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    May I  ask you now please to  turn to  

page 809?  I t  is 808,  in fact .  

MR MLAMBO :    E ight ,  zero. . .   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    E ight ,  zero . . . [ intervenes]   10 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    In our aff idavi t ,  as I  have pointed out  

ear l ier,  you deal  wi th the history that  goes back to the 

acquisi t ion of  LMT.   So these are minutes of  a  special  DLS 

board meet ing.   Now that  is the Divis ion Board.  

MR MLAMBO :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    On the 31s t  of  March 2011.  And why is 

th is signi f icant  in your  view, part icular ly i f  you have regard to  

paragraph 6 of  the minute? 

MR MLAMBO :    This is  one of  the sets of  minutes that 

conf i rms that  Mr Burger was actual ly ext remely support ive 20 

and very enthusiast ic about  Denel  acqui r ing LMT.   So i t  is  

one of  those sets of  minutes that  conf i rms my posi t ion.  

 I t  is unfortunate that  the others wi th actual ly more 

speci f ic detai ls that  we could not  get  hold of  because I  have 

al ready lef t  Denel .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sorry.   Which part  of  those minutes 

reveals Mr Burger ’s support  for LMT? 

MR MLAMBO :    That  is part  6 of  the minute.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Is i t  809? 

MR MLAMBO :    809.   That  is r ight .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja?  Is what is  in the. . .   The chairman 

started by saying:  

“He took the documents submit ted for discussion as 

read by al l .   Mr Burger gave some background with  

reference to previous minutes in  which the LMT 10 

opportuni ty  was discussed at  a  previous Denel  

Board sub-commit tee meet ing.    

I t  was al ready agreed that  a BBBEE investor is  

brought onboard wi th DLS keeping major i ty and 

some interest .    

Mr Burger explained that  the previous opt ion 

agreement of  70% wi l l  change to only 51% but  the 

r isk for  DLS wi l l  substant ia l ly decrease by the 

inclusion of  Kamozi (?)  which the f inancial  

investment of  R 20 mi l l ion . . . [ indist inct ]  and Denel  is  20 

now R 10 mi l l ion faci l i ty. ”  

 Okay so basical ly what is in the. . .  in  that  column, is what 

you say,  shows Mr Burger ’s support  for LMT,  for the 

acquisi t ion of  LMT. 

MR MLAMBO :    And also sel l ing a stake to Kamozi .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MLAMBO :    At  the t ime a black owned company.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   H’m.  Okay.   Mr Burger(sic).  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Thank you.   May I  draw your at tent ion 

to the very last  smal l  paragraph in that  column. 

“The new investor  is  a lso buying in  on the basis of  

the future value of  the combined businesses of  the 

three part ies and f rom more st rategic reasons than 

f inancial  reasons.    

The proposal  is that  DLS and Denel  should exercise 10 

the opt ion wi thin one year. ”  

 Now you ment ioned earl ier in your  evidence yesterday 

that  there was a st rategic reason that  Denel  fe l t  persuaded 

by to acqui re LMT.  What was your understanding of  that  

st rategic reasoning f rom a group point  of  v iew? 

MR MLAMBO :    Wel l ,  one of  the cr i t ical  st rategic points that  

we were looking at ,  was that  LMT had the capabi l i ty to 

design vehic les,  which in our case was not  that  much work.  

So that  was a plus.    

 And the other capabi l i ty was that  LMT could actual ly 20 

manufacture and assemble vehic les.   And Plat form House 

actual ly make up part  of  that  pool  o f  products that  LMT could 

manufacture.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And was there an importance at tached 

to having that  capaci ty brought in-house,  as i t  were,  as a 
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part ly owned subsidiary of  Denel? 

MR MLAMBO :    Yes,  i t  was actual ly cr i t ical  to have that  

capabi l i ty for Denel  but  because we were only looking at  

future opportuni t ies offshore at  the t ime.  And LMT was wel l -

p laced to actual ly help us access those opportuni t ies.    

 When we appl ied LMT, i t  a l ready had contracts in the 

Middle East .   And we actual ly fe l t  that  the Middle East  was a 

growing market  for  Denel  and that  was pr ior i t ies for us but  

we needed to have a l l  the cr i t ica l  capabi l i t ies to be able to  

take advantage of  that  market .  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Now Mr Mlambo, may we now turn to  

paragraph 5 of  your aff idavi t?  You do not  need to go to i t  

yoursel f .   I  am just  giv ing i t  as a guidance of  the Chair.   You 

deal  wi th the enquir ies submit ted to VR Laser Serv ices 

regarding the ident i ty of  i ts individual  shareholders.  

 And you referred to Ms Malahlela taking certain act ion in 

that  regard and she has given evidence on the enquiry she 

made.  And then you say you engage in correspondence with 

Mr Aurora of  the Managing Director  of  VR Laser.   

MR MLAMBO :    Yes.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    How did that  come about?  How did i t  

come about that  you were aware of  i t  and you started 

intervening or taking act ion? 

MR MLAMBO :    Wel l ,  I  was concerned that  despi te the fact  

that  each t ime I  receive any correspondence f rom DLS, there 
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was this reference to a hundred percent  black owned 

company,  25.1% black woman owned company but  I  d id not  

have any evidence.    

 When I  requested evidence,  in i t ia l ly what I  was told was 

that  Elgasolve owned 74.9% of  the VR Laser and Cra ig Shaw 

Investment owned 25.1% of  VR Laser.  

 And the presupposed that  25.1% was black woman 

owned.   I  wanted to know exact ly  who that  individual  black 

woman was but  to  th is day,  I  never got  an answer.  

 The only answer that  I  received was that ,  Sal im Essa 10 

owned the 74.9%.  And my instruct ion to  DLS Supply Chain 

Team was that  we should desist  f rom using terms that  are 

actual ly misleading or that  are total ly unfounded.  

 When you say a company is black owned, you must  have 

evidence that  i t  is  indeed black owned.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    May I  take you now please to page 

822? 

MR MLAMBO :    822.   Yes? 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.   That  is  a let ter f rom VR Laser ’s  

Chief  Operat ing Off icer,  Mr Jiyane and that  conf i rms that  the 20 

shareholders in VR Laser were E lgasolve and Cra ig Shaw 

and gives the percentages,  74.9% and 25.1%. 

MR MLAMBO :    H’m.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    That  they are the shareholders.   They 

do not  have any involvement or  conf l ict  doing business wi th  
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Denel  or the shareholders or  d i rectors of  pr ivate ind ividuals 

who do not  work for government.    

 I t  d id not  disclose though who the shareholders of  those 

companies were and that  was your  concern.   Do I  understand 

your ear l ier evidence r ight? 

MR MLAMBO :    Yes,  and that  is why,  yesterday when I  was 

asked a quest ion about the conf l ict  of  interest  that  I  had 

referred to in  one of  my emai ls.   DLS was actual ly of  the 

view that  because they had received these two declarat ions 

that ,  you know, the problem had been solved.    10 

 And I  had said but  there is no ment ion of  al l  the 

di rectors of  VR Laser.   Even on the document that  they had 

accepted which was supposed to be a val id CIPC document 

and i t  was not .   They bel ieved that  that  was correct .    

 But  I  said:   You must actual ly insist  on get t ing a CIPC 

document.   And this does not  actual ly address the problem, 

whether they have the conf l ict  of  interest  of  we know thei r  

ident i ty,  whether they are black or whi te or foreigners.    

 The key issue was also establ ishing the actual  

shareholding of  VR Laser,  the individuals behind the 20 

companies.    

 But  I  subsequent ly received another mai l  which is  

probably in my evidence,  that  when I  pushed to f ind out  who 

the individuals of  Craig Shaw were,  I  was told that  Westdawn 

Investment actual ly was a hundred percent  shareholder of  
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Craig Shaw Investment.    

 But  I  mean, that  does not  answer my quest ion as wel l .   

So there was . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    They were t ry ing to answering(?) you 

about ent i t ies.  

MR MLAMBO :    Tel l ing me about ent i t ies . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .and not  individuals.  

MR MLAMBO :    . . .when my quest ion was qui te expl ic i t  that  I  

wanted to know the ind ividuals behind that  shareholding.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    I f  I  may take you please to page 817?  

There are a number of  other emai ls.   I t  seems that  you 

corresponded not  on ly wi th Mr Aurora but  also Mr Van der 

Merwe of  VR Laser.   But  I  can take you to . . . [ intervenes]   

MR MLAMBO :    One, one. . .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    817.   817 – 8,  appears to be an emai l  

f rom Mr Aurora apologis ing for his  fa i lure to  do something.   

And then he conf i rms:  

“There has been a change in shareholding at  VR 

Laser. ”  20 

 And this is where he refers to Elgasolve and Craig Shaw.   

And then he says:  

“These two ent i t ies are now the sole shareholders in 

VR Laser.   Elgasolve ownership rested in Sal im 

Essa. ”  
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 Correct? 

MR MLAMBO :    Yes,  that  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And then i t  says:  

“BBBEE status a hundred percent  South Afr ican 

black owned. ”  

 And then he deals wi th the other ent i ty that  co-owned 

VR Laser being Cra ig Shaw.  And i t  says ownership a 

hundred percent  shares owned by Westdawn Investments.   Is 

that  the company you ment ioned a moment ago? 

MR MLAMBO :    Yes,  that  is the one.   10 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And then he says:  

“BBEE status.   I t  is a Level  5 BEE cont r ibutor.   

Westdawn is in  turn owned by other corporate 

ent i t ies. ”  

 Was that  a sat isfactory response in your view? 

MR MLAMBO :    No,  certainly  not .   I  d id  not  want  to  know the 

corporate shareholders.   I  wanted the ind ividuals.   Because 

BBBEE’s cert i f icates actual ly base thei r  assessment  on the 

individual  shareholder.    

 You have to unpack that .   You cannot simply accept  that  20 

Westdawn is hundred percent  black owned when you do not 

have that  evidence.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And i t  is interest ing that  he obviously 

thought i t  was important  to ment ion a part icular individual  

under Elgasolve,  Mr Sal im Essa.   But  for the rest ,  he does 
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not  disclose any individuals.   He just  g ives ent i t ies,  legal  

ent i t ies only.  

MR MLAMBO :    H’m.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Because i f  i t  was. . .  i f  he had accepted 

that  i t  was important  to give the ident i ty of  the individuals in  

regard to Elgasolve,  why d id he not  th ink i t  was equal ly  

important  to give the ident i ty of  ind ividuals in regard to the 

other ent i t ies?   

MR MLAMBO :    Ja,  i t  is because that  I  saw.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.   10 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Now page 816,  you sent  an emai l  back 

to Mr Aurora.   I t  is  on the 21s t  of  November.   You say:  

“Thanks for your response . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Where are you now? 

MR MLAMBO :    Page 816 Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .   This appears to be an emai l  

f rom you back to  Mr Aurora thanking him for his response 

and you say:  

“ I  would appreciate i t  i f  you could supply the 20 

fol lowing as wel l .   Detai ls of  the individual  

shareholders in Cra ig Shaw Investment or Westdawn 

Investments.   Detai ls of  the di rectors of  Elgasolve 

and Craig Shaw, copies of  ID’s,  let ters EE status of  

VR Laser Services. ”  
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 Were you ever given proper detai ls to your sat isfact ion? 

MR MLAMBO :    No,  I  actual ly never  received any response.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You did not  get  a response for th is one? 

MR MLAMBO :    Ja.   I  th ink i t  was actual ly put t ing him in a 

bind at  the t ime.   He real ised that  he could not  disclose.   

There were some ser ious issues,  I  suspected.   Because 

under normal c i rcumstances,  th is  type of  informat ion is 

readi ly avai lable.    

 And that  begs the quest ion as to whether the ver i f icat ion 

urgency that  declared VR Laser as hundred percent  black 10 

owned, actual ly saw the evidence.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MLAMBO :    Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  

MR MLAMBO :    I  was actual ly tempted to wri te  to the 

Accredi tat ion Board . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MLAMBO :    . . . to actual ly interrogate that .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MLAMBO :    To say you have the r ight  to exerc ise that  20 

oversight  over the performance of  these accredi ted 

ver i f icat ion urgencies.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  Yes.   Ja,  when I  saw this 

. . . [ intervenes]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Sorry,  apologies Chair  . . . [ intervenes]   
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CHAIRPERSON :    I  suspected that  he would not  have got  an 

answer for i t .   I  am just  saying,  when I  read this  emai l  of  

Mr Mlambo to Mr  Aurora,  somehow someth ing told  me that  

he was unl ikely to  have got ten an answer.   [ laughing]    

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You may proceed. 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Thank you,  Chai r.   So now that  was 

correspondence I  November 2014 and pr ior to that .   You 

have indicated,  you did not  get  a response.   I f  I  can take you 

now to page 820?   10 

MR MLAMBO :    [No audible reply]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    The emai l  about  hal fway down the 

page appears to have been f rom you in March 2015.   

MR MLAMBO :    H’m.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    So this is four months af ter your emai l ,  

more than four months af ter  your  emai l  as of  

21s t  of  November and you address i t  to Mr Aurora and you 

say:  

“This emai l  is a fo l low-up on the one below dated 

the 21s t  of  November 2014. ”  20 

 Now that  is the one that  we have just  looked at  a  

moment ago,  correct? 

MR MLAMBO :    [No audible reply]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Is that  correct? 

MR MLAMBO :    That  is correct .  
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ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.  

“We are a last  month of  our f inancial  year-end and 

the audi t  process may uncover inconsistencies in  

Denel ’s interact ions wi th i ts suppl iers.”  

 Then you say:  

“ I t  is imperat ive that  al l  documents are submit ted 

t imeously.   Fai lure to do so may resul t  in any future 

orders being cancel led or  put  on hold.   I  t rust  that  

you wi l l  t reat  th is request  wi th  the urgency i t  

requi res.”  10 

 Then there appears to be a response to that  on the foot  

of  the previous page, 819 dated the 31s t  of  March 2015 f rom 

Mr Van der Merwe. 

MR MLAMBO :    Yes,  that  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And he does not  give you the answers 

that  you have asked for but  raise these queries.   He says:  

“Further to my previous emai l ,  may I  ask the 

fol lowing?  I  note that  JP al ready provided certa in  

informat ion in his mai l  of  the 4 t h of  November. ”    

 You,  however,  requested fur ther detai ls of  the 20 

shareholders and the directors.   Who is the JP, do you 

know? 

MR MLAMBO :    JP was. . .  or Mr Aurora.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.   I f  you look on then previous 

page,  818.   That  is the let ter  that  came from Aurora and his 
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in i t ia ls are JP.  So you bel ieve that  is who he is referr ing to? 

MR MLAMBO :    Page? 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Page 818,  the previous page.  

MR MLAMBO :    818.   Yes,  yes,  yes.   Ja,  that  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    R ight .   So you understood Mr Van der 

Merwe to be referr ing to Mr Aurora . . . [ intervenes]   

MR MLAMBO :    Ja.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    . . .when he says JP.  

MR MLAMBO :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    So he says:  10 

“He has already provided certain informat ion in the 

emai l  of  4 t h of  November. ”  

 Which we have a lready deal t  wi th.   But  you requested 

further deta i ls of  the shareholders and the di rectors.   That  is 

correct ,  is i t  not?  You have asked for further detai ls.  

MR MLAMBO :    Yes,  that  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And then he asks his quest ions.  

“ In  order  to  provide you wi th the correct  detai ls,  can 

I  assume you need the fo l lowing documents detai ls?  

Detai ls of  shareholders,  percentage shareholding in  20 

VR Laser,  detai ls of  the shareholding of  the 

shareholders in VR.. . ”  

 And then other  i tems that  he sets out  relat ing to the 

di rectors as wel l .   And you then respond on the 

2n d  of  Apri l  2015 in the emai l  at  the top of  th is page.    
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“Thanks for  your response.   You have indeed 

interpreted my request  qui te wel l .   In l ight  of  the 

request ,  i t  is imperat ive that  the claimed one 

hundred percent  black sharehold ing in VR Laser  

Services be conf i rmed through the evidence you wi l l  

submit . ”  

 You conf i rm that  you repeated your request  for th is and 

i ts importance? 

MR MLAMBO :    Yes,  i t  is correct  Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Now the evidence has been that  by 10 

this stage in March/Apri l  2015,  the contract  had al ready long 

since been awarded to VR Laser  in the process that  you 

have indicated did not  meet wi th your approval .  

MR MLAMBO :    That  is correct ,  Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    That  was on or about  the 

16t h of  October 2014.   

MR MLAMBO :    Ja.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Were you aware of  that  when you sent  

th is correspondence? 

MR MLAMBO :    No,  I  was not .   I  was total ly in the dark at  20 

the t ime.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    What were you t ry ing to achieve by 

get t ing this  informat ion?  Were you st i l l  under  the impression 

that  no contract  had been awarded?  I  doubt  th is informat ion 

was relevant  to the award of  the contract .   Was that  your  
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approach? 

MR MLAMBO :    Wel l ,  my reference to the end of  the 

f inancial  year has got  th is signi f icance.   Each d iv is ion is 

actual ly evaluated on i ts progress towards increasing the 

number of  black owned companies in i ts suppl ier base.  

 So a deal  as we st i l l  had VR Laser that  was l isted as 

hundred percent .   There is other correspondence that . . .  

s imi lar correspondence that  I  sent  to other companies when I  

was actual ly in doubt  about  the correctness of  what they had 

stated as the black ownership.  10 

 So that  would actual ly distort  the report  i f  at  a l l  DLS 

would claim that  s ince the beginning of  the f inancial  year,  

they have actual ly increased thei r  b lack owned suppl iers by 

this percentage,  i f  at  a l l  that  was not  ver i f ied.  

 So I  needed to be sure that  whatever company that  was 

l isted as black owned was indeed black owned so that  I  

could actual ly give grade where i t  was due.  

 Because there was this i l l  fate compet i t ion amongst  

div is ions that  are actual ly l iked(?).   And then I  would 

obviously shower those that  were doing wel l  wi thout  20 

compromis ing on qual i ty,  of  course,  in terms of  increasing 

their  b lack suppl ier base.  

 Especial ly,  insofar as the core business of  Denel  was 

concerned because typical ly what you f ind in  South Afr ica is 

that  most  b lack owned companies are actual ly suppl iers that  
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on the per iphera l  of  the business.   They provide doing 

serv ices,  cater ing.    

 My focus was on the core business of  Denel  and VR 

Laser happened to be in that  pool  o f  suppl iers.    

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Can I  take you back to page 801? 

MR MLAMBO :    [No audible reply]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    This is part  o f  the document we looked 

at  ear l ier that  was signed by var ious execut ives by not  by 

you which . . . [ intervenes]   

MR MLAMBO :    801? 10 

ADV KENNEDY SC :   801,  yes.   

MR MLAMBO :    That  table? 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    I t  is the table.   I  am just  guid ing you.   

This is part  of  the document that  you conf i rmed earl ier that  

was signed on the 16t h of  October  by execut ives excluding 

yoursel f ,  we see tha t  a t  page 805,  we looked a t  tha t  ear l ie r.  

MR MLAMBO:    Yes,  yes ,  yes ,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    As  par t  o f  th is  submiss ion  tha t  was 

approved exc lud ing  you.   They have re fer red  co r rec t l y  a t  

page 801 to  the  breakdown fo r  scor ing  pu rposes and you 20 

see jus t  above the  tab le ,  bas is  fo r  compara t ive  o f fe r  p r ice ,  

25%,  techn ica l  45%,  BEE 30%.   So 30% of  sco r ing  wou ld  

ac tua l l y  come f rom the  BEE perspect ive .  

MR MLAMBO:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Even more  than the  pr ice .   So your  
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enqu i r ies  in  re la t ion  to  the  BEE c redent ia ls  o f  VR Laser,  

how impor tan t  d id  you regard  th is  as  impor tan t  fo r  

purposes a  proper  eva lua t ion  o f  tenders  be fo re  they were  

awarded?  

MR MLAMBO:    I t  was cr i t i ca l  because one o f  the  e lements  

tha t  we looked a t  was ownersh ip .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you.  

MR MLAMBO:    And then a lso  the  pro f i le  o f  employees and 

the i r  sk i l l s  deve lopment ,  how much the  company was 

ac tua l l y  spend ing  on the  t ra in ing  and deve lopment  o f  b lack  10 

employees and  then procurement  f rom b lack  owned  

compan ies .   Those are  the  fou r  c r i t i ca l  ca tegor ies  o r  

e lements  tha t  we looked a t  tha t  t ime.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you,  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  tu rn  to  a  

d i f fe ren t  top i c  now and a  d i f fe ren t  cont rac t .   Mr  Mlambo,  

you do not  need to  go  back to  your  s ta tement  a t  th is  s tage,  

jus t  keep the  –  jus t  move now to  page 824.  

MR MLAMBO:    Page 24,  okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Jus t  fo r  the  Cha i rperson ’s  gu idance,  

he  dea ls  w i th  th is ,  Cha i r,  in  paragraph 6  o f  h is  a f f idav i t  20 

f rom page 715 and fo l low ing.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now you dea l  there  in  te rms o f  your  

head ing ,  Mr  Mlambo,  w i th  a  top ic  wh ich  you descr ibed as  a  

s ing le  agreement  en tered in to  be tween DLS and VR Laser  
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Serv i ces  in  2015.   Now we have a l ready dea l t  w i th  the  hu l l  

cont rac t .  

MR MLAMBO:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yesterday a f te rnoon and th is  

morn ing .   Now th is  i s  a  d i f fe ren t  cont rac t ,  i s  i t?  

MR MLAMBO:    Yes i t  i s ,  indeed.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I t  was entered in to  in  2015 and i t  

re la ted  to  a s ing le  source  appo in tment  o f  VR Laser  

Serv i ces  by  DLS,  cor rec t?  

MR MLAMBO:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now I  wou ld  l i ke  you p lease  to  look  

a t  page 824 and 825,  i t  i s  a  memorandum tha t  comes f rom 

Ms Malah le la  as  execut ive  manager  in  DLS supp ly  cha in  

depar tment  and i t  was sent  addressed to  the  Dene l  supp ly  

cha in  execut ive .   Am I  r igh t  in  unders tand ing  tha t  tha t  was 

yourse l f?  

MR MLAMBO:    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And  d id  you  rece ive  th is  

memorandum?  

MR MLAMBO:    Yes,  I  d id ,  Cha i r.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    What  d id  you unders tand f rom th is  

memorandum,  was the  purpose o f  i t  and what  were  you  

be ing  asked to  do? 

MR MLAMBO:    I  was ac tua l l y  be ing  asked to  approve the  

s ing le  source  s ta tus  o f  VR Laser  to  essent ia l l y  supp ly  
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00 .04 .10 par ts  and s tee l  components  to  VR Laser  and th is  

was not  jus t  l im i ted  to  –  I  beg your  pardon,  to  dea l  as  –  

th is  was not  jus t  l im i ted  the  Hoefys ter  cont rac t ,  that  

essent ia l l y  mean t  tha t  i f  a t  a l l  they  had any fab r ica t ion  

requ i rements  or  s tee l  component  requ i rements  they wou ld  

go  to  VR Laser.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now she re fers  in  he r  background  

sect ion  a t  the  top  o f  the  tex t  on  page 824 to  approva l  be ing  

g iven fo r  the  dev ia t ion  f rom the  normal  p rocu rement  

p rocesses,  e tce te ra ,  to  be  used fo r  the  T5 demo and  group 10 

supp ly  cha in  execut ive  gave an ins t ruc t ion  tha t  DLS must  

f i rs t  exp lore  how Dene l  Veh ic le  Systems,  Gear  Rat io ,  tha t  

i s  what  i s  be ing  re fer red  to  e lsewhere  as  DVS,  i s  tha t  

r igh t?  

MR MLAMBO:    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    That  i s  a  s is te r  d iv i s ion  o f  DLS.  

MR MLAMBO:    I t  i s  a  hundred percent  Dene l -owned  

company.   We acqu i red  DVS f rom DAE Systems.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And then  she re fe rs  a lso  to  th is  

re la t ing  to  LMT which ,  as  you have ind i ca ted  a l ready,  was  20 

a  par t l y  owned company cont ro l led  by  Dene l  w i th  a  51% 

shareho ld ing .   

MR MLAMBO:    H ’m.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    So  she seems to  be  re fer r i ng  to  a 

prev ious dec is ion  by  group supp ly  cha in  execut ive ,  i n  o ther  
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words a t  head o f f i ce  leve l ,  to  p re fer  DVS and LMT for  the 

supp ly  o f  i tems on the  bas is  tha t  they were  in -house,  as  i t  

were ,  p rov ided they met  the  requ i rements  fo r  qua l i t y,  p r ice  

and de l i very.   I s  she here  re f lec t ing  what  you were  

re fer r i ng  to  yeste rday?  I s  she cor rec t l y  re f lec t ing  what  you  

unders tood the  group po l i cy  to  be?  

MR MLAMBO:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Then her  nex t  parag raph says:  

“ In  te rms o f  the  approved supp ly  cha in  po l i cy  and  

DLS supp ly  cha in  procedure…”  10 

I f  I  can  s top?  So,  as  I  unders tand  i t ,  a t  g roup leve l ,  where  

you were  the  group execut ive ,  you  had your  own processes 

wh ich  app l ied  th roughout  the  group and then each d iv is ion  

a lso  had i t s  own supp ly  cha in  procedure  wh ich  was sub jec t  

to  the  group overa l l .  

MR MLAMBO:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  the  focus a t  g roup leve l  

was po l i cy  and d iv is ions cou ld  ac tua l l y  cus tomise  the i r  

p rocesses to  be  a l igned w i th  a  po l i cy.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And she re fers  to  the  group po l i cy  

say ing  –  and here  she has quoted  i t :  20 

“Under  no  c i r cumstances sha l l  p roducts  o r  serv ices  

tha t  can be procured f rom a  group ent i t y  o r  d iv is ion  

be  procured f rom an ex terna l  supp l ie r  o r  non-Dene l  

company un less  there  is  approva l  by  the  group 

supp ly  cha in  execut ive  based on sound bus iness  
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reasons. ”  

So she is  re fe r r i ng  here ,  i t  seems,  to  the  po in t  tha t  you 

made yesterday in  your  ev idence tha t  where  there  i s  go ing  

to  be  dev ia t ion  you must  approve i t .  

MR MLAMBO:    That  i s  cor rec t .   Th is  i s  ac tua l l y  a  quote  

verbat im f rom the  group supp ly  cha in  po l i cy.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.   And where  we looked yesterday 

a t  the  de legat ion  o f  au tho r i t y  and there  was a  re fe rence to  

consu l ta t ion  w i th  you as  the  group supp ly  cha in  execut ive  

or  manager,  as  i t  was ca l led  there ,  was tha t  sub jec t  to  th is  10 

spec ia l  p rov is ion  say ing  you must  no t  on ly  be  consu l ted  i f  

there  i s  to  be  –  i f  there  i s  a  to  be  a  dev ia t ion  f rom th is ,  you  

must  a lso  g ive  your  approva l  tha t  i t  i s  fo r  sound bus iness  

reasons.  

MR MLAMBO:    Ja ,  tha t  i s  p rec i se l y,  yes .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Then she says in  the  th i rd  pa rag raph  

on page 824:  

“Hav ing  ident i f ied  a  need fo r  a  s ing le  source  

supp l ie r  fo r  the  supp ly  o f  s tee l  components  and  

fabr ica t ions,  in  May 2015 DLS s igned an MOA wi th  20 

VR Laser  fo r  th i s  scope o f  work .   VR Laser  i s  a  

hundred percent  b lack  owned ent i t y. ”  

Now i f  I  can  jus t  s top  fo r  a  moment ,  you have a l ready 

expressed your  concerns about  no t  have hav ing  been 

sa t is f ied  tha t  tha t  i s  the  case.  
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MR MLAMBO:    Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And then she  cont inues:  

“ In  te rms o f  the  MOA VR Laser  p r ices  must  be  

market - re la ted  and in  l ine  w i th  the  prov is ions o f  the  

MOA before  an  o rder  can be p laced on them. ”  

And then she gets  to  th is  po in t :  

“Due to  these cont rad i c t ing  pos i t ions  supp ly  cha in  

approach DLS Exco to  make a  dec i s ion  as  to  

whethe r  to  honour  the  MOA and p lace the  o rder  on  

VR Laser  o r  to  fo l low the  supp ly  cha in  po l i cy  and  10 

procure  f rom in te r -group namely  DVS or  LMT fo r  

th is  p ro jec t .   G iven the  t imef rame,  u rgency and  

h is to ry,  Exco has recommended tha t  the  work  be  

done by  VR Laser.   I  hereby request  permiss ion  to  

imp lement  the  Exco dec i s ion  in  th is  regard . ”  

Now Ms Malah le la  has a l ready g i ven ev idence when she 

to ld  the  Cha i r  tha t  her  word ing  he re  was de l ibera te  to  make 

i t  c lear  tha t  she was ask ing  fo r  your  approva l  o f  th is  on  the  

ins t ruc t ions o f  Exco aga ins t  her  own adv ice .   Be tha t  as  i t  

may,  I  want  your  comment  p lease.    20 

 E f fec t i ve ly,  as  I  unders tand i t  and you must  cor rec t  

me i f  my unders tand ing  is  wrong.   E ffec t i ve ly  she was 

recogn is ing  tha t  the  g roup po l i cy  requ i red  tha t  i f  work  can  

be done in -house i t  must  be  g iven in -house,  no t  to  an  

ou ts ider  sub jec t  to  p r ice  and qua l i t y,  e tce tera .  
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 And second ly,  i f  tha t  i s  to  be  done,  i t  has  to  be  

done w i th  your  approva l  as  group  supp ly  cha in  execut ive  

tha t  you a re  sa t is f ied  tha t  the re  a re  sound bus iness  

reasons fo r  dev ia t ing ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR MLAMBO:    Ja ,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And then what  she is  say ing  is ,  she 

is  say ing  what  has ac tua l l y  happened has been tha t  VR 

Laser,  a  non-group ent i t y  has been awarded th i s  cont rac t  

a l ready and the re  is  a  cont rad ic t i on  be tween tha t  and the  

po l i cy  and Exco has sa id  they want  you to  approve i t .   I s  10 

my unders tand ing  cor rec t  o f  h is  memo? 

MR MLAMBO:    Yes,  tha t  i s  ac tua l l y  the  g is t  o f  the  request ,  

fo r  me to  approve the  dev ia t ion  f rom po l i cy  knowing fu l l  

we l l  tha t  the re  i s  capab i l i t y  and capac i ty  w i th in  the  group 

wh ich  I  thought  was r id i cu lous.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And we w i l l  ge t  to  why in  a  moment  

bu t  the  main  po in t  tha t  you had to  use as  a  tes t  fo r  whethe r  

to  no t  to  g ive  approva l  was whether  i t  was fo r  sound  

bus iness reasons  not  to  g ive  the  work  in -house bu t  to  g ive  

i t  to  an  ou ts ide r.  20 

MR MLAMBO:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    That  was the  tes t  tha t  you  had to  

app ly.  

MR MLAMBO:    Ja ,  tha t  i s  cor rec t  and i f  in -house  we d id 

no t  have enough  capac i ty,  you cou ld  have such ins tances 
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and to  avo id  a  programme s l ipp ing  and w i th  the  r i sk  o f  

hav ing  to  pay pena l t ies ,  somet imes i t  wou ld  make sense to  

ou tsource  pa r t  o f  the  work  to  an  ex terna l  company but  tha t  

must  be  proper ly  mot iva ted  and tha t  i s  the  reason why I  

no ted  here  tha t  i f  DVS and LMT cou ld  fu rn ish  reasons as  to  

why they cannot  execute  th is  work ,  I  wou ld  approve the  

dev ia t ion  bu t  tha t  never  mate r ia l i sed .    

ADV KENNEDY SC:    So  le t  me –  I  am sor ry.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  see  the  t ime seems to  be  fo r  the  tea  

break,  Mr  Kennedy.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Oh,  I  am sor ry,  I  d id  no t  rea l i se ,  

sor ry,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes bu t  i f  there  i s  one quest ion  you want  

to  f ina l i se  be fo re? 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Perhaps I  can jus t  f in ish  th is  thought .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Because he has jus t  ment ioned h is  

no tes .   Thank you ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Fo r  the  record ,  may I  then ,  Cha i r,  20 

jus t  read in to  the  record  –  Mr  Mlambo,  your  no te  tha t  you  

are  re fer red  to ,  i s  tha t  the  handwr i t ten  no te  s lo t t ing  MB? 

MR MLAMBO:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And is  tha t  your  handwr i t ing?  

MR MLAMBO:    I t  i s  my handwr i t ing .  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:    I f  I  can  jus t  read i t  ou t :  

“DVS and LMT…”  

Those a re  the  in -house ent i t ies .  

“…must  submi t  p roo f  tha t  they cannot  meet  the  

requ i rements  pr i o r  to  the  cont rac t  be ing  awarded to  

VR Laser. ”  

So you are  say ing  tha t  –  you sa id  a  moment  ago tha t  th is  

i s  what  you  mean t ,  they have to  show tha t  they do  not  have  

the  capac i ty.   I f  they  do  not  have  the  capac i ty  you wou ld  

fee l  there  is  a  good bus iness reason to  award  i t  ou ts ide  10 

the  group but  tha t  has to  be  shown.  

MR MLAMBO:    Yes,  I  needed to  be  conv inced tha t  they  

d id  no t  have the  capac i ty  and there  was a  r i sk  t ha t  we 

cou ld  ac tua l l y  m iss  our  de l i ve ry  dead l ine  wh ich  is  a  very  

ser ious th ing  in  the  de fence indust ry.   I f  you  miss  your  

de l i very  m i les tones you cou ld  ac tua l l y  lose  the  en t i re  p ro f i t  

on  tha t  cont rac t  because o f  tha t  so  you have to  have  sound  

programme management  in  p lace .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay,  i f  I  m igh t  jus t  have one  fu r ther  

quest ion?  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And you say tha t  tha t  p roo f  has to  be  

g iven by  the  in -house compan ies  pr io r  to  the  cont rac t  

be ing  awarded.   I t  seems f rom the  body o f  Ms Malah le la ’s  

le t te r  in  the  second  las t  parag raph on page 824 tha t  she 
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con f i rms tha t  DLS had a l ready s igned the  memorandum of  

agreement  w i th  VR Laser  in  May 2015,  f i ve  months  be fore  

they were  ask ing  you to  approve i t .   Any comment  on  tha t?  

MR MLAMBO:    Ja ,  i t  i s  a lso  one o f  those dodgy cont rac ts  

tha t  they en te red in to  and to  my su rpr ise ,  a t  the  t ime i t  was 

Zwelakhe Ntshepe who was the  Group CEO,  Mr  Sa loo jee  

had a l ready been  suspended and he ac tua l l y  over tu rned my  

dec is ion ,  as  you can see h is  s ignature  over  the  –  w i thout  

even consu l t ing  w i th  me.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    A re  you re fer r ing  to  h is  s ignature ,  Mr  10 

Ntshepe ’s  s ignatu re  on  page 825?  

MR MLAMBO:    Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And above h is  s ignatu re  someone  

has wr i t ten  in  the  word  “approved”  i s  tha t  your  

handwr i t ing?  

MR MLAMBO:    No,  I  re jec ted  th is ,  so  i t  was ac tua l l y  Mr  

Ntshepe h imse l f  who wro te  approved.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And you know h i s  handwr i t ing?  

MR MLAMBO:    Yes,  i t  i s  h is  handwr i t ing  and i t  i s  h is  

s ignature .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MLAMBO:    He was the  Group CEO at  the  t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Do you –  what  was your  unders tand ing  

o f  what  he  was approv ing  because  based on where  he  put  

–  he  wro te  approved and put  h is  s ignature ,  one does not  
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know on the  face  o f  i t  whether  he  was approv ing  your  

comment  tha t  DVS and LMT must  submi t  p roo f  tha t  they  

cannot  meet  the  requ i rements  pr io r  to  the  cont rac ts  be ing  

awarded to  VR Laser  o r  whethe r  he  was fu rn i sh ing  h is  

approva l  o f  what  Ms Malah le la  wanted in  he r  memo.   What  

was your  unders tand ing  o f  what  he  was approv ing?  

MR MLAMBO:    Cha i r,  he  was ac tua l l y  ove r tu rn ing  my  

dec is ion  and approv ing  the  request .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  so  …[ in te rvenes]  

MR MLAMBO:    Wi thout  even consu l t ing  w i th  me.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   Okay,  a l igh t .  

MR MLAMBO:    So  h is  loya l ty  was outs ide  Dene l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   Okay,  a l r igh t .   So he was  

over r id ing  what  you had jus t  sa id  in  tha t  no te?  

MR MLAMBO:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  S i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.   A l r igh t ,  we are  go ing  to  take  

the  tea  break.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    On a  l igh t  no te ,  I  jus t  want  to  dec la re  

tha t  I  d id  no t  communica te  w i th  Mr  Kennedy or  Mr  Mlambo 20 

or  Reg is t ra r  Mr  Mfeka about  the  co lour  o f  the  t ies  we must  

wear  th is  morn ing .   I  d id  no t  ta lk  to  anybody,  I  do  no t  know 

about  the  th ree  o f  you but  I  d id  no t  ta lk  to  anybody.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    We fo l low jud ic ia l  p recedents .  

CHAIRPERSON:    We ad journ .   
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INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  found tha t  the re  is  another  cu lp r i t ,  one  

o f  my pro tec to rs  i s  wear ing  a  s im i la r  t ie .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I t  i s  spread ing  l i ke  a  v i rus ,  Cha i r.    

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  thank you ,  le t  us  cont inue.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you ,  Cha i r.   Mr  Mlambo,  we 

were  ta lk ing  about  the  re fusa l  by  you to  s ign  Ms 

Malah le la ’s  memorandum where  she conveyed Exco ’s  

request ,  DLS Exco ’s  request  fo r  you to  approve the  award  10 

o f  the  s ing le  source  cont rac t  to  VR Laser  wh ich  you say 

was over ru led  by  Mr  Ntshepe as  CEO.   Can I  take  you now 

to  page 837?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Jus t  be fore  tha t ,  Mr  Kennedy,  ne i ther  

you,  Mr  Mlambo nor  Mr  Ntshepe ind ica ted  the  da te  when  

you respect ive l y  s igned on th is  page.   Do you  have a  

reco l lec t ion  o f  whether  you go th is  memo on the  same date  

wh ich  is  29  October  2015 and you  made your  no te  then or  

tha t  you got  i t  maybe a  day or  two a f te r  and you made th is  

no te  there?  20 

MR MLAMBO:    Ac tua l l y  I  cannot  reca l l  the  da te .  

CHAIRPERSON:    You cannot  reca l l .   You canno t  reca l l  

a lso  how soon a f te r  rece iv ing  i t  you  made the  no te?  

MR MLAMBO:    Bu t  I  wou ld  imag ine  th is  was shor t l y  a f te r  

the  29  October  2015.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   Okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you.   May I  then tu rn  to  page  

837?  Th is  i s  a  le t te r  f rom Stephan Burger,  DLS ’ CEO,  i t  

was addressed to  you and a t  the  end o f  the  le t te r  there  i s  a  

b lank space where  i t  says  approved by,  approva l  Denn is  

Mlambo,  Group Supp ly  Cha in  Execut ive .   So was  th is  an  

a t tempt  by  Mr  Burger  to  ge t  you to  aga in  to  g ive  approva l?  

MR MLAMBO:    Yes,  i t  i s  t rue ,  Cha i r,  bu t  they had ac tua l l y  

added o the r  p roducts  tha t  they wanted me to  approve,  the  

f i re  compar tment  modu le  and the  ou ter  sh ie lds  were  added 10 

here .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And here  the  document  has the  da te  

in  smal l  p r in t  on  page 837,  29  Apr i l  2016.   So th is  i s  long  

a f te r  the  da te  o f  Ms Malah le la ’ s  memorandum tha t  the  

Cha i r  has jus t  been ask ing  you about .  

MR MLAMBO:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And then Mr  Burger  s ta r ts  by  

thank ing  you fo r  a  meet ing  he ld  a t  DCO wi th  Mr  Odwa 

Mhlwana and yourse l f  on  the  28  Apr i l  2016.   Do you 

conf i rm tha t  you had such a  meet ing?  20 

MR MLAMBO:    Yes,  Cha i r ,  tha t  i s  t rue .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And then he says in  paragraph 2  tha t  

he  conf i rms you d iscuss ion  tha t  a  s ing le  source  supp l ie r  

agreement ,  the  MOA had been entered in to  w i th  VR Laser  

on  the  19  May  2015 pursuant  to  a  mot iva t ion  be ing  
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submi t ted  to  DCO.   I t  was recommended fo r  approva l  by  

bo th  the  then Group Execut ive  Bus iness Deve lopment ,  Mr  

Zwelakhe Ntshepe.   I s  tha t  the  same person who la te r  

ac ted  as  Group CEO when Mr  Sa loo jee  was suspended?  

MR MLAMBO:    Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    There  is  a lso  recommended  by  the  

Group COO,  Mr  Jan Wesse ls ,  was then approved  by  the 

Group CEO at  the  t ime,  R iaz  Sa loo jee  and then he says:  

“That  approva l  by  Mr  Sa loo jee  is  in  accordance w i th  

Regu la t ion  16A  (6) (4)  o f  Nat iona l  Treasury  10 

regu la t ions.   Copy o f  the  approva l  was s igned,  MOA 

and the  app l i cab le  Nat iona l  Treasury  regu la t ion  is  

a t tached,  marked  A ,  B and C. ”  

Now those annexure  do  not  appear  as  a t tachments  to  your  

le t te r  bu t  your  a f f idav i t  has quoted  the  regu la t ion .   I f  I  can  

jus t  have a  moment?   Yes,  Mr  Mlambo,  I  th ink  we w i l l  jus t  

keep the  le t te r  in  f ron t  o f  you,  bu t  I  jus t  want  to  g ive  the  

Cha i r  the  re ference.   Cha i r ,  the  regu la t ion  is  quoted in  the  

tex t  o f  h is  a f f idav i t  a t  page 719,  parag raph 6 .16  and I  am 

jus t  go ing  to  read out  f rom our  a f f idav i t  your  quota t ion  o f  20 

the  regu la t ion .  

“ I f  in  a  spec i f i c  case i t  i s  impract ica l  to  inv i te  

compet i t i ve  b ids  the  account ing  o f f i cer  o r  

account ing  au thor i t y  may procure  the  requ i red  

goods or  serv ices  by  o ther  means  prov ided tha t  the  
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reasons fo r  dev ia t ing  f rom compet i t i ve  b ids  must  be  

recorded and approved by  the  account ing  o f f i cer  o r  

account ing  au tho r i t y . ”  

A re  you fami l ia r  w i th  tha t  regu la t ion?  

MR MLAMBO:    Yes,  i t  i s  ac tua l l y  an  ins t ruc t ion  no te  f rom 

Nat iona l  Treasury .   I  am ve ry  much fami l ia r  w i th  

…[ in tervenes]  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I s  i t  b ind ing  on  Dene l?  

MR MLAMBO:    Yes,  a l l  Schedu le  2  and 3  compan ies  are  

bound by  tha t .  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Then to  cont inue in  Mr  Burger ’ s  le t te r  

a t  the  foo t  o f  page 837,  he  says:  

“As ind ica ted  dur ing  the  meet ing  and in  te rms o f  the  

abovement ioned approva l  by  the  Group CEO the  

ra t iona le  fo r  appo in t ing  VR Laser  as  a  so le  supp l ie r  

was based on i n te r  a l ia  the  fo l low ing:  

1 .  I t s  unpara l le led  exper t i se  on  fabr ica t ion  o f  

complex  eng ineer ing  sys tems wh ich  inc ludes but  

i s  no t  l im i ted  to  tu r re ts ,  ou ter  sh ie ld ,  add on  

armour  and veh ic les  hu l l  s t ruc tu re .  20 

2 .  I t  i s  a  key supp l ie r  and s t ra tegy pa r tner  to  DLS.  

3 .  I t  o f fe rs  the  best  va lue  hav ing  i n te r  a l i a  

commi t ted  to  invest  cap i ta l  and resources in  i t s  

fac i l i t i es  in  o rde r  to  ensure  tha t  the  capab i l i t y  

remains  in tac t  and ava i lab le  to  dea l  i s  fo r  a  
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m in imum per iod  o f  10  years .  

4 .  I t  i s  p repared to  ass is t  and has es tab l i shed DLS  

wi th  i t s  ob l iga t ions in  fo re ign  ju r isd i c t ions  such  

as  Malays ia  in  t ransfer r ing  sk i l l s  re la t ing  to  i t s  

manufac tur ing  process. ”  

The IP  is  re fe r red  to  and then:  

5 .  I t  p romotes a  b lack  indust r i a l i s t  en t repreneur ia l  

company w i th in  the  de fence indust ry . ”  

And then he conc ludes by  say ing :  

“ I t  i s  hereby recommended tha t  the  a t tached  10 

submiss ions re la t ing  to  the  f i re  compar tment  

modu le  FCM and  the  ou ter  sh ie ld  marked D and C 

respect ive ly  be  sourced v ia  VR Laser  in  accordance 

w i th  the  te rms and cond i t ions  o f  the  MOA. ”  

I s  the  las t  pa rag raph the  re ference to  the  add i t iona l  work  

tha t  he  was ask ing  fo r  approva l?  

MR MLAMBO:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And the  ear l ie r  par t  o f  the  le t te r  

re fe r red  to  the  p rev ious award  o f  the  cont rac t  w i thout  you r  

approva l  to  VR Laser  o f  the  s ing le  source  prov i s ion .  20 

MR MLAMBO:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    So  he asks fo r  your  approva l  and you 

have ind i ca ted  tha t  you re fused tha t .  

MR MLAMBO:    Yes,  I  a lways made sure  tha t  i f  I  re jec ted  

someth ing  I  gave  reasons in  wr i t ing  and those are  the  fou r  
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reasons tha t  I  gave.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    A re  those the  reasons  in  the 

handwr i t ten  po r t ion  next  to  the  le t te rs  NB? 

MR MLAMBO:    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Be low the  b lank l ine  tha t  was  meant  

fo r  you r  s ignature  to  approve you  ins tead re fused to  s ign  

tha t  and ins tead se t  ou t  your  reasons fo r  re fusa l .  

MR MLAMBO:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And aga in  i s  tha t  you s ignature  a t  

the  bo t tom r igh t  a f te r  th is  handwr i t ing?  10 

MR MLAMBO:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I f  I  may read fo r  the  reco rd  your  

no te :  

“1 .  The ev idence on how VR Laser  was se lec ted  

is  no t  ava i lab le  to  suppor t  the  appo in tment  

as  a  s ing le  source  supp l ie r .  

2 .  The approva l  p rocess o f  the  MOA exc luded  

supp ly  cha in  and  the  reasons the reof  have  

not  been fu rn i shed.  

3 .  The recommenda t ion  is  g i ven the  fac t  tha t  20 

Dene l  execut ive  commi t ted  the  company to  

p lace  orde rs  on  VR Laser  fo r  spec i f ied  

products  fo r  ten  years  to  have  the  same 

execut ives  approve fu tu re  orders . ”  

Jus t  exp la in  tha t  p lease?  
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MR MLAMBO:     Bas i ca l l y  what  I  was say ing ,  Cha i r ,  i s  tha t  

I  am not  go ing  to  en ter ta in  th i s  because I  was not  par t y  to  

the  memorandum of  agreement .   Those who ente red in to  

tha t  agreement  a re  the  ones tha t  must  ac tua l l y  approve 

fu tu re  t ransact ions wh ich  were  a t  any ra te  go ing  to  be  

i r regu lar .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And then paragraph 4  se ts  our  your  

f ina l  reason fo r  re jec t ion :  

“The paragraph in  t reasury  regu la t ions tha t  has  

been c i ted . . . ”  10 

I  am a f ra id ,  Cha i r ,  the  photocopy ing  has cu t  o f f  a  coup le  o f  

le t te rs  on  the  r igh t  hand s ide  bu t  i t  seems to  be :  

“…that  has been c i ted  in  the  mot iva t ion  memo. ”  

I s  tha t  the  prov i s ion  o f  the  Treasury  ins t ruc t ion  no te  I  read 

out  ear l ie r  tha t  you are  re fer r ing  to?   

MR MLAMBO:    I t  i s  cor rec t ,  I  can  read the  res t  o f  i t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  thank you.  

MR MLAMBO:    “The paragraph in  t reasury  regu la t ions tha t  

has been c i ted  i n  the  mot iva t ion  memo is  re levant  

because i t  was not  impract ica l  to  tes t  the  supp ly  20 

market . ”  

Th is  ins t ruc t ion  no te  dea ls  essent ia l l y  w i th  emergency  

procurement .   I f  emergency p rocu rement  you do not  rea l l y  

have the  luxu ry  o f  ge t t ing  quotes  bu t  in  th is  par t i cu la r  

ins tance i t  was ac tua l l y  qu i te  poss ib le .   Assuming tha t  we 
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d id  no t  have the  capab i l i t y  w i th in  the  group i t  was poss ib le  

to  go  ou t  and f ind  a  su i tab le  supp l i e r  a t  a  compet i t i ve  ra te .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  i t  i s  the  second t ime tha t  i t  looks  

l i ke  somebody who is  go ing  to  tes t i f y  here  who re l ied  on  

th is  p rov i s ion  does not  seem on the  fac t  o f  i t  to  unders tand  

what  impract ica l  means.   I  d id  have another  w i tness  here  in  

re la t ion  to  the  Free S ta te  ev idence,  the  then CFO of  the  

Depar tment  o f  Agr icu l tu re  sa id  she  re l ied  on  th is  p rov i s ion  

fo r  suppor t ing  tha t  a  cer ta in  job  shou ld  no t  be  sen t  ou t  to  

open tender  bu t  I  asked he r  what  her  unders tand ing  o f  10 

impract ica l  i s  and  i t  seems here  –  I  mean,  when you look a t  

Mr  Burger ’ s  reasons,  there  seems to  be  noth ing  tha t  shows 

tha t  i t  was impract ica l  to  inv i te  b ids  because tha t  i s  what  

th is  p rov is ion  says,  you know,  i f  i t  must  be  impract ica l  to  

inv i te  o the r  b ids  be fore  you can invoke i t .   So  tha t  i s  the 

po in t  I  th ink  you  make in  your  las t  reason but  Mr  Burger  

w i l l  come here ,  maybe he w i l l  persuade me tha t  ac tua l l y  i t  

was impract i ca l .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  he  w i l l  be  g iv ing  ev idence a t  a  

la te r  s tage,  Cha i r .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And he w i l l  be  asked to  dea l  w i th  

tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    May I  ask  the  w i tness,  Cha i r ,  to  jus t  
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g ive  an  example  o f  what  you unders tand wou ld  const i tu te  

the  type o f  emergency tha t  makes i t  impract ica l .  

MR MLAMBO:    Wel l ,  i f  there  i s  a  thunders to rm,  i t  b lows  

o f f  the  roo f  o f  a  house and you ac tua l l y  need to  p ro tec t  the  

assets  w i th in  the  house you can ac tua l l y  jus t i f y  go ing  ou t  

to  one se rv i ce  prov ider  o r  roo f ing  cont rac tor  to  do  the  work  

because you cannot  wa i t  seven days or  th ree  weeks  before  

you get  the  work  done.   I f  l i f e  is  ac tua l l y  th rea tened o r  

your  assets  a re  ac tua l l y  th rea tened in  the  process you are  

jus t i f ied  in  go ing  to  jus t  one serv i ce  prov ide r  bu t  the  10 

expecta t ion  is  tha t  you must  keep  a  record  o f  tha t  so  tha t  

when you a re  aud i ted  you can prove beyond any doubt  tha t  

indeed th is  was an emergency,  you d id  no t  have va luab les  

to  wa i t  fo r  two weeks or  th ree  weeks befo re  you cou ld  have  

the  prob lem addressed.  

CHAIRPERSON:    In  o ther  words,  you cannot  re ly  on  how 

good a  par t i cu la r  se rv i ce  prov ider  i s  to  jus t i f y  invok ing  th is  

regu la t ion ,  you cannot  say  they  are  so  good,  they are  

in te rnat iona l ,  they  are  th i s ,  they prov ide ,  you  know,  

exce l len t  serv ice .   That  i s  no t  a  reason to  invoke th i s  20 

…[ in tervenes]  

MR MLAMBO:    Cer ta in ly  no t  o therw ise  tha t  wou ld  nu l l i f y  

the  no t ion  o f  go ing  ou t  on  tender .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  because …[ in tervenes]  

MR MLAMBO:    Because the  very  reason why we go  out  on  
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tender  i s  to  ac tua l l y  es tab l i sh  who o f  the  tendere rs  or  

b idders  i s  the  best  in  te rms o f  the  work  tha t  i s  requ i red  or  

the  serv ice  tha t  i s  requ i red  and the  pr i ce ,  you know,  to  do  

the  job .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja  because  when you look  a t  the  

reasons tha t  Mr  Burger  g i ves ,  he  says one,  i t  i s  

unpara l le led  exper t i se  on  fabr ica t ion  o f  complex  

eng ineer ing  sys tems.   That  i s  jus t  about  how good  i t  i s  in  

h is  v iew.   Then he says i t  i s  a  key supp l ie r  and s t ra teg ic  

par tner  o f  DLS,  tha t  says no th ing  about  impract ica l i t y .   He 10 

says i t  o f fe rs  the  best  va lue .   Tha t  says no th ing  about  the  

impract ica l i t y .   And then he goes on.   But ,  as  I  read th is  i t  

jus t  seems to  me  tha t  he  may have I  m isunders tood what  

impract ica l i t y  means in  tha t  p rov i s ion  bu t  he  w i l l  come and 

he w i l l  exp la in  and maybe he w i l l  g ive  us  a  cer ta in  

perspect ive .   Yes ,  Mr  Kennedy.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r .   What  was the  

ou tcome o f  th is  –  your  second –  the  second t ime tha t  you  

were  re fus ing  to  g ive  your  approva l  o r  a  cont rac t  tha t  had 

a l ready been awarded?  What  then  happened w i th  tha t?  20 

MR MLAMBO:    I  seem to  reca l l  i t  may we l l  be  in  t h is  –  i n  

my ev idence tha t  th is  was a lso  ove r ru led .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.   Yes,  you are  r igh t ,  you do say 

tha t .   Le t  me jus t  ge t  you the  …[ in tervenes]  



28 OCTOBER 2020 – DAY 293 
 

Page 60 of 211 
 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  I  see a t  839 there  is  someth ing  

wr i t ten  Mr  Ntshepe over ru l ing  Mr  Mlambo’s  re jec t ion .   I  

guess tha t  i s  wha t  he  sa id ,  840,  I  assume.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Sor ry,  d id  you ment ion  849?  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  I  sa id  839.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    839,  thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  i t  says  Mr  Ntshepe over ru l ing  Mr  

Mlambo’s  re jec t ion .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Then 840 I  th ink  must  be  the  annexure  10 

where  –  okay,  no ,  no ,  I  am sor ry,  840 is  someth ing  e lse  bu t  

there  i s  a  no te  a t  839.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  Cha i r,  may I  jus t  ind ica te ,  h is  

a f f idav i t ,  the  w i tness ’s  a f f idav i t  re fe rs  to  th is  annexure  as  

be ing  showing tha t  Mr  Ntshepe over ru led .   Th is ,  o f  course ,  

i s  the  same document  tha t  we looked a t  a  b i t  ear l ie r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  yes ,  yes .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And tha t  was a t  page 824 to  5 .   I t  i s  

exact ly  the  same document .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   Wel l ,  I  am look ing  a t  841 where  Mr  20 

Ntshepe wro te  “Approved”  and then put  h is  s ignature .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  tha t  must  be  over ru l ing  tha t  i s  be ing  

re fer red  to .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    May I  jus t  ask  the  w i tness to  conf i rm 

tha t?   Mr  Mlambo you have re fe r red  to  th is  a t  841 as  be ing  

the  over ru l ing  by  Mr  Ntshepe.  

MR MLAMBO:    841,  yes ,  tha t  i s  Mr  Ntshepe.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t .  

MR MLAMBO:    Over ru le  o r  over tu rn ing  my dec is ion .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t .   Okay,  thank you.   Now we can 

move o f f  th is  cont rac t .   So we have dea l t  w i th  now the  

second cont rac t  wh ich  is  the  VLS  cont rac t  awarded fo r  a  10 

so le  supp ly  –  s ing le  supp l ie r  to  VR Laser.   Now i s  i t  cor rec t  

tha t  there  was another  p rocess fo l lowed by  DVS,  Dene l  

Veh ic le  Systems to  award  a  s im i la r  cont rac t  fo r  the i r  

p roduct  needs to  VR Laser  as  a  s ing le  source  supp l i e r?  

MR MLAMBO:    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now you  dea l  w i th  tha t  in  your  

a f f idav i t .   I f  I  can  jus t  g ive  the  Cha i r  the  re ference,  tha t  i s  

f rom page 722,  Cha i r.   Now may I  take  you …[ in tervenes]3  

CHAIRPERSON:    722?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    722,  yes .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    May I  take  you now,  Mr  Mlambo to  a 

document  tha t  you re fer red  to  in  your  a f f idav i t  tha t  re la tes  

to  th is .   I f  I  can  take  you p lease to  843.  

MR MLAMBO:    To  page 843?  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:    843,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

MR MLAMBO:    Yes,  I  found i t .    

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now the  f i rs t  emai l  there  seems to  be  

an emai l  f rom a  Mr  Johan S teyn,  is  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR MLAMBO:    Yes,  i t  i s .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Who was  Mr  S teyn in  the  Dene l  

Group?  

MR MLAMBO:    Mr  S teyn was the  Ch ie f  Execut ive  Of f i cer  

o f  DVS,  Dene l  Veh ic le  Systems.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    So  he was the  equ iva len t  o f  Mr  10 

S tephan Burger  in  the  o ther  d iv is ion ,  DLS? 

MR MLAMBO:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    A l r igh t .   Now I  am jus t  go ing  to  read 

the  f i rs t  few l ines :  

“S ince Zwelakhe ’s  surpr is ing  ins t ruc t ion  to  me a  few 

weeks ago to  en ter  in to  an  agreement  w i th  VRL we  

have made good progress w i th  Johan Wesse ls ’  he lp  

and we have had severa l  d iscuss ions w i th  VRL…” 

Which  I  unders tand to  mean VR Laser .  

“…and DCO abou t  th is . ”  20 

Now can you te l l  the  Cha i r  p lease ,  we know tha t  DLS has 

had a  cont rac t  awarded to  VR Laser  fo r  i t s  spec i f i c  

requ i rements  on  a  s ing le  source  supp l ie r  bas i s  fo r  ten 

years .   That  was  desp i te  the  fac t  tha t  they d id  no t  comply  

w i th  p rocesses and d id  no t  ge t  your  approva l  a  number  o f  
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t imes.   You have g iven ev idence on tha t .  

MR MLAMBO:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now can you te l l  the  Cha i r  p lease  

what  was be ing  p roposed in  re la t ion  to  DVS? 

MR MLAMBO:    Mr  Ntshepe,  who was a t  the  t ime the  Group 

CEO,  had ins t ruc ted  Mr  Johan S teyn,  CEO of  DVS,  to  en ter  

in to  a  s im i la r  ag reement  w i th  VR Laser  and th i s  i s  what  Mr  

S teyn is  desc r ib ing  as  a  su rp r is ing  ins t ruc t ion .   DVS and 

LMT bas ica l l y  have very  much s im i la r  capab i l i t ies  and tha t  

i s  why in  some o f  my re jec t ion  no tes  I  ment ioned the  two 10 

compan ies  as  to  why they are  no t  be ing  cont rac ted  to  do  

the  work  ins tead o f  VR Laser .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Do you remember  whether  Mr  Ntshepe  

was Act ing  Group  CEO or  Group CEO at  the  t ime? 

MR MLAMBO:    A t  the  t ime i f  i t  is  –  2019 he was  a l ready  

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    O f  November  2015.  

MR MLAMBO:    2015 he was Act ing  then because Mr  

Sa loo jee  was …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    On suspens ion .  20 

MR MLAMBO:    Suspended in  –  I  th ink  i t  was 

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    September  2015 .  

MR MLAMBO:    September  2015.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   Okay,  so  he  was ac t ing .  
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MR MLAMBO:    Ja  and he was  appo in ted  as  the  Act ing  

Group CEO.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes and I  th ink  Mr  Sa loo jee  le f t  

somet ime in  2016 or  ear l y  2017,  I  cannot  remember .   Ja ,  

okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you.   And were  you asked fo r  

your  approva l  f rom the  supp ly  cha in  management  

execut ive ’ s  pe rspect ive  fo r  what  was be ing  p roposed?  

MR MLAMBO:    Yes,  Cha i r ,  I  was ac tua l l y  approached 

about  tha t  and I  ac tua l l y  re jec ted  tha t  p roposa l  and  I  seem 10 

to  reca l l  tha t  Mr  S teyn had ac tua l l y  been to ld  by  Mr  

Ntshepe tha t  you are  repor t ing  to  me,  you cannot  take  

ins t ruc t ions f rom Mr  Mlambo.   That  i s  what  Mr  S teyn to ld  

me and he sa id  to  me what  can I  do?  I  sa id  do  what  i s  

r igh t  fo r  the  bus iness,  I  am not  a f ra id  o f  anyone.   He must  

conf ron t  me and le t  me know why  he ac tua l l y  ins is ts  tha t  

you have to  ou tsource  work  tha t  you can do yourse l f  

because Mr  S teyn ac tua l l y  po in ted  out  tha t  by  ou tsourc ing  

tha t  work ,  tha t  was ac tua l l y  go ing  to  cost  h im about  15% 

more  to  do  tha t  and i t  jus t  d id  no t  make sense and I  sa id  to  20 

h im then do what  i s  r igh t .   I  have made i t  very  c lea r ,  i t  i s  in  

wr i t ing ,  I  am re jec t ing  tha t ,  you a re  no t  go ing  to  ou tsource 

tha t .   But  then he  is  the  Group CEO and he fe l t  tha t  he  had 

a l l  the  r igh ts  to  over tu rn  my dec is ion  and he d id  jus t  tha t  to  

the  de t r iment  o f  the  bus iness.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:    Was there  any f inanc ia l  de t r iment?  

MR MLAMBO:    Ja ,  there  was –  a t  tha t  t ime there  was 

surp lus  capac i ty  a t  DVS which  cou ld  no t  be  u t i l i sed  

because the  Group CEO,  Mr  Ntshepe tha t  t ime,  ins i s ted  

tha t  the  work  be  outsourced to  VR Laser .   So tha t  

de f in i te ly  had an  adverse  impact  on  the  f inanc ia ls  o f  the  

group.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    You re fer  in  your  a f f idav i t  to  Mr  

S teyn d i scuss ing  a  h igher  cost  tha t  wou ld  be  invo lved w i th  

VR Laser .   Do you reca l l  tha t?  10 

MR MLAMBO:    Yes,  I  do  reca l l  tha t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:     What  d id  he  te l l  you?  

MR MLAMBO:    That  i t  was go ing  to  increase h i s  costs  by  

a t  leas t  15%.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    By  how much? 

MR MLAMBO:    15%.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:  15%.     

MR MLAMBO:    That  i s  co r rec t  and t yp i ca l l y  we  do not  

even make tha t  k ind  o f  p ro f i t  in  the  de fence indust ry .   I f  

you  make 7% i t  i s  an  exce l len t  ne t  p ro f i t  on  a  cont rac t .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    So  i t  was qu i te  a  ser ious  f inanc ia l  

de t r iment .  

MR MLAMBO:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    P re jud ice  to  the  en t i t y .  

MR MLAMBO:    Yes,  Cha i r ,  i t  was very  ser ious.   That  i s  
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why I  be l ieve  tha t  even i f  he  ac tua l l y  to ld  Mr  Ntshepe tha t  

he  was not  go ing  to  do  i t ,  i f  he  go t  f i red  or  d isc ip l ined he  

wou ld  s t i l l  have h is  in teg r i t y  in tac t .   In  fac t  he  wou ld  la te r  

be  proved r igh t ,  tha t  he  was ac t ing  in  the  in te res ts  o f  the  

group.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    May I  jus t  have a  moment ,  Cha i r?   

A l r igh t ,  may I  jus t  ment ion ,  Cha i r ,  a t  page – Cha i r ,  may I  

jus t  ind ica te  th is  –  we l l ,  perhaps I  shou ld  take  the  w i tness 

to  i t .   Can I  take  you in  your  a f f idav i t  p lease,  Mr  M lambo,  10 

to  page 722.   You re fer  in  parag raph 7 .1 ,  722 is  the  page.  

MR MLAMBO:    722.   Yes,  I  found i t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.   7 .1  and 7 .2  re fe rs  to  Mr  S teyn  

say ing  he  had rece ived the  ins t ruc t ion  to  pu t  an  MOA in  

p lace  fo r  DVS wi th  VR Laser  and he expressed h is  

reserva t ions and the  15% is  there  ment ioned and then you 

say in  7 .3 :  

“Mr  S teyn fu r the r  p resented to  me a  submiss ion  

wh ich  I  was supposed to  s ign  in  suppor t  o f  the  

procu rement  dec i s ion  to  en ter  in to  an  MOA wi th  VR 20 

Laser  Serv ices .   I  re jec ted  the  submiss ion  and  

presented my reasons in  my handwr i t ing  on  the  sa id  

document . ”  

Now you do not  re fe r  to  any annexure  there  and I  have not  

found any o f  the  annexures to  your  a f f idav i t ,  the  document  
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you  re fer  to  here .   We are  dea l ing  here ,  o f  course ,  w i th  V 

…[ in tervenes]  

MR MLAMBO:    DVS.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Sor ry ,  DVS,  no t  the  DLS tha t  we  

were  re fer r ing  to  ear l ie r .   Do you in  fac t  have tha t  

document  ava i lab le  to  you?  

MR MLAMBO:    Unfo r tunate ly  I  do  no t  have i t  bu t  I  had 

ac tua l l y  requested the  invest iga tors  to  request  tha t  

document  and  the  un for tunate  th ing  is  tha t  I  have  a l ready 

le f t  Dene l  and I  cou ld  no t  have access to  the  documents  10 

tha t  I  had rece ived.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    A l r igh t ,  thank you.   Cha i r ,  may we  

under take tha t  we w i l l  p roduce tha t  fo r  your  records .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    To  have i t  admi t ted .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    We jus t  need to  -  i t  i s  no t  an  

annexure  to  another  w i tness ’s  a f f idav i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    We a re  no t  qu i te  sure  a t  th is  s tage.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  tha t  i s  f ine  and i f  tha t  i s  found la te r  

he  cou ld  poss ib ly  jus t  do  a  supp lementary  a f f idav i t  and 

conf i rm what  he  knows about  i t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    We wi l l  do  tha t ,  thank you Cha i r.     

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:   What  then happened w i th  th is  p ro jec t  

to  award  a  so le  supp l ie r  cont rac t  fo r  DVS’s  requ i rements  to  

VR Laser,  tha t  was ins t ruc ted  by  the  now Group Ch ie f  

Execut ive  Mr  Ntshepe,  wh ich  you  were  asked to  approve,  

wh ich  you re fused to  approve,  what  then happened ,  was i t  

u l t imate ly  awarded?  

MR MLAMBO:    I  am not  aware  tha t  i t  was awarded,  bu t  i t  

i s  h igh ly  l i ke ly  tha t  i t  was awarded,  because jus t  l ike  w i th  

the  o thers  they  were  awarded  w i thout  my knowledge 

thereof .  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay,  bu t  you do not  have persona l  

knowledge as  to  tha t?  

MR MLAMBO:    No,  I  do  no t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    A l r igh t ,  thank you.   Now may I  now 

tu rn  –  leave tha t  cont rac tor  the  DVS cont rac t  to  another  

cont rac t  wh ich  i s  re fe r red  to  as  t he  Chad cont rac t  in  your  

a f f idav i t .   Te l l  the  Cha i r  p lease what  was th is  Chad  

cont rac t  fo r?   

MR MLAMBO:    Wel l  Dene l  en tered in to  a  cont rac t  w i th  the  

Chad government ,  had to  supp ly  40  vesper  veh ic les  a t  a  20 

cost  o f  I  th ink  around $18.2mi l l ion .   What  I  know about  the  

cont rac t  i s  tha t  Mr  Ntshepe i s  the  one tha t  approved the  

cont rac t  bu t  i t  was la te r  ment ioned in  one o f  the  EXCO 

meet ings tha t  the  approva l  o f  tha t  cont rac t  was det r imenta l  

to  Dene l  because i t  was ac tua l l y  be low cost  and  i t  was  
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go ing  to  cost  Dene l  money and there  was a lso  an  issue o f  

what  we normal ly  re fe r  to  as  a  techn ica l  adv i sor  tha t  had  

ac tua l l y  been pa id  bu t  there  was no ev idence tha t  the  

techn ica l  adv isor  had ac tua l l y  done  any work  fo r  Dene l .    

And Dene l  had a l ready been commi t ted  to  de l i ver  

those 40 veh ic les  and what  tu rned out  was tha t  the  IP 

wh ich  is  someth ing  tha t  rea l l y  surpr ised me in  the  

mot iva t ion  i t  was ment ioned tha t…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    In te l lec tua l  p roper ty.      

MR MLAMBO:    The IP fo r  the  Casper  veh ic les  be longs to  10 

VR Laser.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  I  jus t  want  fo r  the  reco rd  to  conf i rm 

tha t  when you say IP you re fer  to  in te l lec tua l  p roper ty.     

MR MLAMBO:    In te l lec tua l  p roper ty,  tha t ’s  r igh t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   

MR MLAMBO:    I  was to ld  tha t  i t  be longs to  VR Laser  and 

fo r  tha t  reason I  was requested to  approve g iv ing  the  work  

once aga in  to  VR Laser  to  manufac tu re  the  40  Casper  

veh ic les .   I  re jec ted  tha t  request  on  the  grounds tha t  I  was 

conv inced tha t  the  in te l lec tua l  p roper t y  be longed to  Dene l  20 

and no one cou ld  ac tua l l y  fu rn ish  any sound reasons as  to  

why i t  was now in  the  hands o f  VR Laser.   I  requested  

proof  tha t  Dene l  had ac tua l l y  fo l lowed a  due process to  

se l l  the  IP to  VR Laser  and in  my v iew tha t  wou ld  have 

been we l l  documented i f  tha t  had happened and I  a lso  
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wanted to  know what  were  the  reasons or  what  was the  

ra t iona le  beh ind  se l l ing  the  IP when there  were  lo ts  o f  

oppor tun i t ies  fo r  Dene l  to  supp ly  Casper  veh ic les  no t  jus t  

to  Chad but  to  o ther  count r ies .    

And a l l  I  go t  was tha t  yes  i t  was but  no  proof  to  

au thent ica te  tha t  yes  we had so ld  tha t  and one  o f  the  

th ings tha t  was sa id  in  the  mot iva t ion  was tha t  VR Laser  

had under taken  a t  i t s  own cost  to  ac tua l l y  make 

improvements  to  the  Casper  veh ic les  and i t  was fo r  tha t  

reason tha t  you know they ended up owning the  in te l lec tua l  10 

proper ty.    

And my quest ion  was how cou ld  they do  tha t  w i thou t  

an  orde r  f rom Dene l  because under  no rmal  c i r cumstances 

when you p lace  an orde r  on  a  company to  improve a  

product  you ’ve  pa id  fo r  tha t  improvement  the  IP remains  

yours  so  I  d id  no t  unders tand  why in  th is  par t i cu la r  

ins tance the  IP ended up in  the  hands o f  VR Laser.   So I  

re jec ted  tha t  request  and in  the  process we learn t  tha t  VR 

Laser  had been  p laced under  bus iness rescue and tha t  

ac tua l l y  fo rced us  to  look  a t  ou r  own in te rna l  capab i l i t y  and  20 

capac i ty  and a  dec is ion  was taken tha t  we wou ld  do  

revers ing  the  eng ineer ing  in  th is  case because we  d id  no t  

have the  la tes t  da ta  pack because tha t  i f  you  do not  have  

the  IP you cou ld  no t  poss ib ly  have the  la tes t  da ta  pack.   

So tha t  was the  reason and DLS mot iva ted  tha t  another  
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company cou ld  ac tua l l y  supp ly  some o f  the  products  

because tha t  i s  the  chass is  in  pa r t i cu la r.    

The chass is  had  a l ready been used successfu l l y  

be fore  accord ing  to  the  mot iva t ion  f rom DLS and they 

submi t ted  the  le t te r  to  myse l f  f rom a  company  ca l led  

S ino t ruk  wh ich  is  a  Ch inese company tha t  le t te r  conf i rmed  

tha t  the  accred i t ed  representa t i ve  was a  company known 

as ENNE7 and no one e lse  cou ld  supp ly  tha t  chass is  

except  tha t  company and i t  was on the  le t te rhead o f  

S ino t ruk .   And on  the  bas i s  o f  tha t  I  ac tua l l y  approved the  10 

des ignat ion  o f  ENNE7 as a  s ing le  source  supp l ie r  because 

there  was ev idence in  th is  par t i cu la r  case.    

And i t  la te r  tu rned out  tha t  there  was a  Bowman’s  

repor t  tha t  had invest iga ted  the  who le  saga and found tha t  

amongst  o ther  th ings tha t  were  wrong tha t  the  so-ca l led  

le t te r  f rom S inu t ruck  was not  au thent ic  i t  was a  fake  le t te r  

and I  had to  face  d isc ip l ina ry  ac t ion  fo r  hav ing  approved  

tha t  and I  went  ou t  o f  my way in  f ac t  once aga in  a f te r  the  

event  to  ver i f y  the  au thent ic i t y  o f  tha t .   I  wro te  to  the  

manag ing  d i rec to r  o f  S inu t ruck  and sent  a  copy o f  tha t  20 

le t te r  to  h im and asked h im whether  i t  was an au thent ic  

le t te r  and he conf i rmed in  wr i t ing  tha t  i t  was indeed an 

authent ic  le t te r.    

CHAIRPERSON:    So  you faced d i sc ip l inary  ac t ion  in  

regard  to  th is  one inc ident  what  about  o ther  inc idents  i n  
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wh ich  o ther  peop le  seems to  have been invo lved wh ich  

appear  to  have been prob lemat ic?   

MR MLAMBO:    Wel l  I  ac tua l l y  saw th is  as  a  ruse or  as  an  

excuse to  ge t  me  out  o f  the  way because I  was a  d i f f i cu l t  

person I  wasn ’ t  towing the  l ine  and a t  tha t  t ime the  Group  

CEO was Mr  Danny Du To i t  because Mr  Ntshepe had  

a l ready le f t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh.     

MR MLAMBO:    And I  ac tua l l y  thought  tha t  i t  had 

someth ing  to  do  w i th  some prev ious d i sagreement  a lso  10 

re la t ing  to  the  award  o f  a  con t rac t  to  a  company an 

aud i t ing  company tha t  they ac tua l l y  be l ieved had to  be  

awarded tha t  con t rac t .   But  the  eva lua t ion  process d id  no t  

suppor t  tha t  and  I  re jec ted  tha t  and because I  was now 

fac ing  d i sc ip l ina ry  ac t ion  fo r  hav ing  approved someth ing  

tha t  was authent ic  I  requested a  copy o f  tha t  repor t  f rom 

Bowman’s  and to  th is  day I  never  rece ived tha t  repor t ,  

each t ime I  go t  excuses.    

There  are  a  number  o f  emai ls  tha t  I  exchanged w i th  

Mr  Du To i t  and I  never  go t  tha t  un t i l  I  en l i s ted  the  serv i ces  20 

o f  an  a t to rney Mr  F isher  who cha l lenged tha t ,  requested 

the  documenta t i on  and tha t  never  happened and Dene l  

ac tua l l y  backt racked a f te r  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  are  you say ing  tha t  you were  to ld  

tha t  Bowman’s  had conducted an  invest iga t ion  and had  
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conc luded tha t  the  le t te r  was fake  but  you never  ac tua l l y  

saw the  repor t  f rom Bowman’s .          

MR MLAMBO:    Ja ,  p rec ise l y  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    But  you  say you yourse l f  had 

communica ted  w i th  the  company and so r t  conf i rmat ion  tha t  

the  le t te r  was authent ic  and they had prov ided tha t  

conf i rmat ion .     

MR MLAMBO:    That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  and tha t  was before  you were  

d ismissed o r  was  i t  a f te r  you were  d ismissed.    10 

MR MLAMBO:    No,  I  was never  d ismissed.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh you were  never  d ismissed.   

MR MLAMBO:    No.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh you res igned .   

MR MLAMBO:    What  happened I  ac tua l l y  dec ided to  leave 

the  company because I  thought  the  s i tua t ion  was such tha t  

I  cou ld  no t  cont inue work ing  fo r  Dene l  I  app l ied  fo r  a  VSP,  

vo lun tary  severance package.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.     

MR MLAMBO:    I t  was ac tua l l y  approved but  a f te r  the  20 

ment ion  o f  tha t  Bowman’s  repor t  I  was to ld  tha t  i t  was 

go ing  to  be  suspended pend ing  the  ou tcome o f  the  

d isc ip l ina ry  hear ing .  But  when I  s i t  back and thought  about  

the  c i rcumstances tha t  led  to  tha t  i t  was b la tan t ly  c lea r  as  

we w i l l  d iscuss tha t  o r  we w i l l  p resent  ev idence la te r  tha t  
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my re fusa l  to  approve the  appo in tment  o f  E rns t  &  Young 

ac tua l l y  t r iggered  tha t  because I  based my dec is ion  on  the  

eva lua t ion  teams repor t  in  th is  course .   I  in te r roga ted tha t  

and I  was sa t is f ied  tha t  they were  ob jec t i ve ,  impar t ia l ,  fa i r  

and they d id  th ings in  acco rdance  w i th  the  requ i rements  o f  

the  po l i cy.    

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  Mr  Kennedy.       

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Cha i r,  thank you.   Mr  Mlambo you 

have dea l t  b r ie f l y  now in  the  las t  few minutes  w i th  a  

number  o f  top ics  a l l  o f  wh ich  are  se t  ou t  in  some deta i l  in  10 

your  a f f idav i t  the  Chad cont rac t ,  the  Bowman’s  repor t ,  the  

au thent ic i t y  o f  the  le t te r,  your  approach to  –  your  concern  

about  the  in te l lec tua l  p roper ty  no t  be ing  es tab l i shed and  

then a l so  and I  do  no t  p ropose Cha i r  un less  you wou ld  l i ke  

me to  go  th rough any o f  tha t  in  any  de ta i l…[ in te rvene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    No tha t  i s  f ine .    

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Because I  th ink  he  has covered ve ry  

usefu l l y  the  broad out l ine .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.    

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And Mr  Mlambo you conf i rm a l l  you r  20 

ev idence in  your  a f f idav i t  spec i f i ca l l y  in  re la t ion  to  tha t  and 

a lso  the  annexures tha t  you put  up  in  suppor t  o f  tha t?  

MR MLAMBO:    That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i r.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    The appo in tment  o f  the  aud i to rs  was 

tha t  the  appo in tment  o f  E rns t  &  Young tha t  i s  re fe r red  to  in  
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your  a f f idav i t?  

MR MLAMBO:    Ja ,  E rns t  &  Young was not  the  w inn ing  

b idder.   The w inn ing  b idder…[ in tervene]  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I  am sor ry  yes i t  was Kopano  was i t  

no t  who was ac tua l l y  awarded.   

MR MLAMBO:    Ja ,  bu t  Kopano was ac tua l l y  second  on the  

l i s t  I  do  no t  know where  the  eva lua t ion  repor t  i s  here  i t  i s  

one o f  the  annexures.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  bu t  jus t  summar i se  in  a  

sentence o r  two  i f  you wou ld  fo r  the  Cha i r ’s  ass is tance.   10 

What  was the  d i f f i cu l t y  in  re la t ion  to  the  appo in tmen t  o f  the 

aud i to rs?  

MR MLAMBO:    The tender  was ac tua l l y  fo r  the  

appo in tment  o f  an  in te rna l  aud i t  company.   A f te r  the  

eva lua t ion  as  per  our  p rocess the  eva lua t ion  team 

presented the i r  repor t .   I  was ac tua l l y  qu i te  happy w i th  

the i r  repor t  in i t ia l l y  they had recommended tha t  the 

company known as Nex ia  SAB&T someth ing .   But  i t  tu rned 

out  tha t  tha t  company had ac tua l l y  no t  d isc losed some 

cont ravent ion ,  i t  was gu i l t y  o f  i ssu ing  a  BBBEE ce r t i f i ca te 20 

tha t  they were  no t  supposed to  i ssue and the  BBBEE 

Commiss ion  was  invo lved in  tha t .   So tha t  was a  ser ious 

cont ravent ion  and on the  bas is  o f  the  representa t ion  to  

myse l f  by  the  ac t ing  group f inanc ia l  d i rec tor  and a lso  i n  

tha t  repor t  he  ment ioned the  Cha i r  o f  the  aud i t  commi t tee  
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Mr  Ta l iep  Sad ick  tha t  he  had ac tua l l y  exp ressed concerns  

tha t  eva lua t ion  team had over looked tha t .    

I  saw the  ev idence and on the  bas i s  o f  tha t  

ev idence I  concur red  w i th  h im tha t  yes  i t  was the  r igh t  

th ing  to  do  to  d isqua l i f y  tha t  company wh ich  I  d id .   And I  

sa id  then we have to  as  per  po l i cy  award  the  cont rac t  to  

the  next  best  company i t  was Kopano and the  a rgument  

tha t  was ra ised  a f te r  tha t  was  tha t  they d id  no t  know 

Kopano i t  was the  ac t ing  Group CFO was suppor ted  by  the  

Group CEO and they ac tua l l y  c la imed tha t  even the  head o f  10 

the  aud i t  commi t tee  d id  no t  suppor t  the  idea o f  Kopano  

be ing  appo in ted  because they d id  no t  know i t  and my  

argument  was tha t  you do not  have  to  know the  company.    

A f te r  a l l  the  th ree  compan ies  are  la rge  compan ies  

and tha t  p re -supposes tha t  they have enough resources to  

execute  the  cont rac t  and i f  I  look  a t  the  head coun t  o f  the 

th ree  compan ies  there  i s  no  way  tha t  they wou ld  no t  be  

ab le  to  execute  tha t  cont rac t  and I  sa id  we do not  ac tua l l y  

appo in t  compan ies  on  the  bas is  o f  who we know in  those 

compan ies .   I  look  a t  the  eva lua t ion  repor t  and on the 20 

bas is  o f  tha t  I  approve o r  re jec t  i f  I  f ind  tha t  there  is  any 

anomaly  in  tha t  repor t .   And then they ra i sed  anothe r  

a rgument  tha t  the  company in  quest ion  was do ing  work  fo r  

the  Aud i to r  Genera l ,  I  invest iga ted  tha t  and even spoke to  

a  sen ior  manager  in  the  Aud i to r  Genera l ’s  o f f i ce  and tha t  
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sen ior  manager  conf i rmed tha t  a lmost  a l l  the  compan ies ,  

aud i t  f i rms tha t  a re  in  South  A f r i ca  are  do ing  work  fo r  the 

Aud i to r  Genera l  and I  sa id  i f  tha t  i s  the  argument  I  am not  

go ing  to  en ter ta in  i t .   The award  w i l l  go  to  Kopano as  per  

the  ou tcome o f  the  eva lua t ion  process tha t  was re jec ted  

because the  Group CEO and the  Group CFO were  

supposed to  a lso  s ign  as  approv ing  tha t .    

They re jec ted  tha t  and u l t imate ly  the  cont rac t  was 

cance l led  bu t  one  o f  the  th ings tha t  d id  no t  happen.   When 

you cance l  a  con t rac t  tha t  was adver t i sed on the  eTender  10 

por ta l ,  the  Nat iona l  Treasury ’s  por ta l  you have to  fu rn i sh  

reasons and post  on  tha t  webs i te  as  to  why you a re  

cance l l ing  tha t  tender  tha t  was  not  done.   But  then 

unfor tunate l y  dur ing  tha t  per iod  tha t  i s  the  t ime when I  le f t  

the  company but  a  subsequent ly  learn t  tha t  the  tender  was 

re-adver t i sed and the  ou tcome was in  favour  o f  E rns t  &  

Young the  company they wanted to  appo in t .    

So i t  wou ld  be  in te res t ing  fo r  the  eva lua t ion  p rocess  

to  be  invest iga ted  and see whether  a  proper  p rocess was 

fo l lowed in  award ing .   I  do  no t  th ink  i t  i s  a  co inc idence tha t  20 

the  cont rac t  ended up go ing  to  Erns t  &  Young tha t  i s  what  

they wanted to  do  r igh t  a t  the  ou tse t .                      

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you Cha i r  may I  jus t  conc lude  

these quest ions by  ask ing  th is ,  had you s tar ted  w i th  Dene l  

in  2004?  
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MR MLAMBO:    That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i r.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And you worked cont inuous ly  there  

un t i l  you  le f t  in  the  c i rcumstances tha t  you have jus t  

ou t l ined to  the  Cha i r.    

MR MLAMBO:    In  2019.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    In  2019 so  i t  was 15 years  

a f te rwards.   How d id  you fee l  when you le f t?   How d id  you 

fee l  about  the  c i r cumstances in  wh ich  you came to  leave?  

MR MLAMBO:    Wel l  i t  was ac tua l l y  sad because I  had  

ac tua l l y  invested  a  lo t  o f  t ime and energy in  mak ing  sure  10 

tha t  together  obv ious ly  w i th  peop le  who be l ieved in  the  

fu tu re  o f  Dene l  to  make sure  tha t  Dene l  i s  a  v iab le  and 

successfu l  o rgan isa t ion .   When I  jo ined Dene l  I  jo ined one  

o f  the  d iv i s ions wh ich  was a t  the  t ime the  b iggest  d iv is ion  

in  the  group tha t  was known as Kent ron  but  i t  was la te r  

renamed Dene l  Dynamics .    

I  d id  qu i te  a  lo t ,  Dene l  was los t  mak ing  tha t  t ime i t  

was in  a  d i re  s ta te .   My key ro le  a t  tha t  t ime was to  

imp lement  a  management  sys tems to  comply  w i th  the  

re levant  ISO s tandard ,  ISO o f  9001,  14  001 and  18 001  20 

and the re  I  managed to  ge t  Dene l  Dynamics  wh ich  was the  

b iggest  d iv i s ion  a t  the  t ime to  be  ISO 9000 and  14 000 

accred i ted  because one o f  our  b iggest  c l ien ts  a t  the  t ime 

wh ich  was A rmscor  i t  i s  no t  one to  do  bus iness w i th  

compan ies  tha t  a re  no t  ISO cer t i f ied .   And the  next  b ig  
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p ro jec t  tha t  I  hand led  was runn ing  w i th  deve lopment  and  

imp lementa t ion  o f  the  s t ra tegy tha t  we dubbed voyage to  

exce l len t .   And a t  tha t  t ime Mr  Wesse l ’s  was ac tua l l y  the  

CEO of  Dene l  Dynamics  and ve ry  suppor t i ve  I  th ink  he  d id  

a  s te r l ing  job  a t  tha t  t ime suppor ted  me and even go t  me to 

ac tua l l y  be  pa r t  o f  the  team tha t  approved the  appo in tment  

o f  key  ind iv idua ls  in  the  group w i th  a  v iew to  dr iv ing  a  

t ransformat ion  because as  a  h igh- tech organ isa t ion  we 

employed a  lo t  o f  eng ineers  and sc ien t is t  a t  Dene l .   

And we managed  th rough the  r igh t  in te rvent ions to  10 

ge t  a  lo t  o f  b lack  eng ineers  in to  the  group and  in  tha t  

per iod  the  d iv i s ion  was ac tua l l y  do ing  we l l  peop le  were  

very  mot iva ted  and i t  was regarded as  s t ra teg i c .   In  fac t ,  

they  used the  te rm sovere ign ,  sovere ign  capab i l i t y  wh ich  is  

above s t ra teg ic  s ta tus  because there  i s  no  o the r  company  

on the  en t i re  cont inent  tha t  has go t  the  capab i l i t y  to  

deve lop  miss i les  and UAV’s  and Dene l  Dynamics  had tha t  

and in  the  southe rn  hemisphere  as  we l l  i t  was the  on ly  one  

tha t  cou ld  do  tha t .    

So we were  very  proud o f  what  we have ach ieved 20 

and the  company s ta r ted  do ing  we l l  f inanc ia l l y  and you 

know the  group  and w i th  the  appo in tment  o f  Mr  R iaz  

Sa loogee the  company d id  even  bet te r.   I  th ink  i t  was  

dur ing  h i s  e ra  tha t  Dene l  d id  except iona l l y  we l l  and i t  was  

showed qu i te  constant ly  w i th  the  labe l  o f  the  best  governed  
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SOE because we had good governance,  we were  jus t  do ing  

we l l .   Our  p rocesses were  g reat  and then i t  was ac tua l l y  

sad to  see Dene l  in  the  S ta te  i t  was in  be ing  unab le  to  pay  

sa la r ies  most  o f  the  t ime,  depend ing  on tenders  and we 

were  los ing  a  lo t  o f  c r i t i ca l  sk i l l s  because the  focus had 

been los t ,  we were  no t  focus ing  on  the  th ings tha t  ac tua l l y  

make a  bus iness to  hum.    

So i t  was ac tua l l y  sad to ,  fo r  me to see tha t  

happen ing  but  what  I  am hop ing  to  see because  I  s t i l l  

be l ieve  Dene l  i s  a  very  s t ra teg i c  and  cr i t i ca l  bus iness no t  10 

jus t  fo r  the  S ta te  bu t  fo r  the  count ry.   I t  i s  impor tan t  to  f ind  

the  r igh t  peop le  in  key pos i t ions  tha t  w i l l  tu rn  the  fo r tunes  

o f  Dene l  a round.   I  th ink  i t  i s  s t i l l  poss ib le  they can s t i l l  ge t  

back some o f  those los t  c r i t i ca l  sk i l l s  and jus t  ge t  peop le  

tha t  w i l l  focus on  the  th ings tha t  mat te r  in  a  bus iness.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  Kennedy.                      

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you  those are  ou r  quest ions  

Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.  Thank you very  much Mr  

Mlambo fo r  coming to  ass is t  the  Commiss ion  we apprec ia te  20 

i t  very  much and i f  we need you we w i l l  ask  you aga in  and  

I  have no doubt  you w i l l  come back i f  asked.   Thank you 

very  much.      

MR MLAMBO:    My p leasure .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   
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MR MLAMBO:    Thanks fo r  g iv ing  me the  oppor tun i t y.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you,  you are  excused.   

MR MLAMBO:    Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  Kennedy.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you Cha i r  may we  ca l l  our  

next  w i tness.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    May I  jus t  ind ica te  the  next  w i tness 

is  no t  the  person who d i rec ted  ema i l  cor respondence  to  the  

Commiss ion  tha t  was the  sub jec t  o f  d iscuss ion  ear l i e r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now h is  s i tua t ion  w i l l  be  c la r i f ied  and 

dea l t  w i th  on  a  la te r  da te .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    We propose now to  ca l l  as  the  next  

w i tness Mr  Nkos i ,  Mr  Phumlane Nkos i  who I  be l ieve  is  

p resent .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    May I  ask  tha t  he  then come to  the  

w i tness Cha i r  and then be sworn  in?  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay they can br ing  h im up  to  the 

w i tness cha i r.  Maybe I  shou ld  take  a  f i ve  m inute ’s  

ad journment  wh i l e  you so r t  ou t  every th ing .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    As  you p lease Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  we w i l l  ad journ .    
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INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes Mr Kennedy.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you Chai r  I  conf i rm that  our next  

wi tness who is now in the wi tness box is Mr Phumlane Nkosi .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   May he be sworn in please? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Before he is sworn in Mr Nkosi  where is 

your jacket?  Where is your jacket? 

MR NKOSI:   Oh I  have – I  am [Not speaking into 10 

microphone].  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR NKOSI:   [Not  speaking into microphone].  

CHAIRPERSON:   You d id not  wear a jacket?  You should 

wear a jacket  when you come to a forum l ike this.   I  th ink 

somebody is go ing to give you a jacket .   Thank you Mr Nkosi  

and to those who have assisted you.   Now you may take the 

oath or a ff i rmat ion.  

REGISTRAR:   P lease state your fu l l  names for the record.  

MR NKOSI:   Phumlane Nkosi .  20 

REGISTRAR:   Do you have any object ion to  taking the 

prescr ibed oath? 

MR NKOSI:   No.  

REGISTRAR:   Do you consider the oath to be b inding on 

your conscience? 
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MR NKOSI:   Yes.  

REGISTRAR:   Do you swear that  the evidence you wi l l  g ive 

wi l l  be the t ruth;  the whole t ruth and nothing else but  the 

t ruth;  i f  so please ra ise your r ight  hand and say,  so help me 

God. 

MR NKOSI:   So help me God.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you;  you may be seated Mr Nkosi .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Good af ternoon Mr Nkosi .   Mr Nkosi  is  10 

i t  correct  that  you have provided at  the request  of  the 

commission an aff idavi t  which is – i t  should be in f ront  of  you 

in the bundle.  

MR NKOSI:   Correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Chai r  for the record the bundle that  I  

am referr ing to is Denel  Bundle 03.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And i t  is Exhib i t  W13.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes thank you.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Mr Nkosi  would you please look at  the 20 

document – you wi l l  see that  there are var ious page numbers 

look on the top lef t  hand side of  each page you wi l l  see page 

numbers – do you see that  Denel  -03-004?  You have that? 

MR NKOSI:   Correct  yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   For  convenience we wi l l  just  refer to 
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the number here as being 4 – we wi l l  not  read out  the whole 

thing.   You conf i rm that  th is is – i t  is referred to as a 

statement but  th is  is in fact  your aff idavi t?  

MR NKOSI:   Correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And may I  take you please to page..  

CHAIRPERSON:   P lease raise your voice Mr Nkosi .  

MR NKOSI:   Correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And t ry and just  look towards the Chair  

i f  you would not  mind even though the quest ions are coming 

f rom me just  so that  he hears you clear ly.   And can I  ask you 10 

please to turn to page 27.    

MR NKOSI:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Is that  your s ignature above the typed 

Phumlane Nkosi? 

MR NKOSI:   Correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And you signed that  before a 

Commissioner  of  Oaths whose detai ls and signature appear 

on the fol lowing page? 

MR NKOSI:   Correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   You conf i rm that  th is in fact  sets out  20 

your evidence in wri t ten form of  an aff idavi t?  

MR NKOSI:   Correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And do you – have you been through 

this aff idavi t  to conf i rm that  you are happy wi th the contents 

as being t rue and correct? 
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MR NKOSI:   Yes correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And – r ight .   Thank you Chai r  we would 

ask then formal ly for leave to have th is aff idavi t  and i ts 

annexures admit ted in – as evidence of  the commission 

Denel  Bundle 03 Exhibi t  W13.  

CHAIRPERSON:   The statement/aff idavi t  of  Mr Phumlane 

Nkosi  start ing at  page 4 of  th is bundle is admit ted as  Exhibi t  

W13.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you Chai r.   Chair  I  propose wi th 

your leave to go through part icular ly the int roductory parts 10 

very br ief ly and to lead the wi tness on issues that  are 

uncont roversial .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Mr Nkosi  you are a Mechanical  

Engineer is that  r ight? 

MR NKOSI:   Correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   You hold degrees of  Bachelor of  

Science as wel l  as an MSC in Leadership and Innovat ion? 

MR NKOSI:   Correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And then you have var ious other  20 

qual i f icat ions.   You are employed where at  the moment? 

MR NKOSI:   Armscor.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Armscor.   And when did you star t?  

MR NKOSI:   I  star ted in 2009. 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   2009? 
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MR NKOSI:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Your aff idavi t  refers to your being 

in i t ia l ly at  Armscor as a t rainee engineer in  2000 to 2002 and 

then you moved elsewhere to CSIR, is that  r ight? 

MR NKOSI:   Correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And then you jo ined BAE Land Systems 

South Af r ica? 

MR NKOSI:   Correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Is that  the ent i ty also known somet imes 

as BLSSA? 10 

MR NKOSI:   I t  is the current  DVS Denel  Vehicle System yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   The current  DVS? 

MR NKOSI:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   Previously was owned by the 

Bri t ish Arms Group BAE but  i t  was acquired later by Denel .  

MR NKOSI:   Correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And then i t  is  now known as DVS Denel  

Vehicle Systems, is that  correct? 

MR NKOSI:   Correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   So you worked there for what years? 20 

MR NKOSI:   From 2005 unt i l  2009.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And is that  when you moved then over 

f rom Denel  to  Armscor? 

MR NKOSI:   Correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And in what capaci ty? 
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MR NKOSI:   I  was a Program Manager at  Armscor.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Right .   And then you were promoted to 

what posi t ion? 

MR NKOSI:   To a Team Leader.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Team Leader? 

MR NKOSI:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   For what? 

MR NKOSI:   In Program Management Support .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And is that  the posi t ion you hold 

current ly? 10 

MR NKOSI:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Now your aff idavi t  i f  you can look at  

page 6 again look at  the top lef t  hand numbers.   The last  

digi t  is 6 paragraph 3.   You set  out  there your ro les and 

responsibi l i t ies.  

MR NKOSI:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   As a Team Leader Program 

Management Support? 

MR NKOSI:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Now I  am going to just  leave i t  on the 20 

basis that  obviously the Chai r  has the aff idavi t  before the 

commission and has the opportuni ty or has had the 

opportuni ty to read through al l  o f  that  detai l .   I  do not  

bel ieve Chai r  wi th subject  to your guidance that  i t  is 

necessary for us…. 
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CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   To take him through that .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja no that  is f ine.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Mr Nkosi  you deal  in the body of  your 

aff idavi t  wi th a number of  issues relat ing to  standards that  

had to be met and RSA Mi l  – M- i- l  standard 37.   You deal  

wi th a number of  tests that  are referred to as TP2 and TP3 

tests.   Before we get  into that  just  expla in your role  as an 

Armscor Off ic ia l  in th is part icular job that  you hold now what  

ro le  i f  any do you have to play in relat ion to  test ing arms – 10 

i tems of  arms or components of  arms and weapons? 

MR NKOSI:   Yes.   I  am a blast  special ist  what was then 

referred to as a RSM new standard off icer.   That  entai ls  

basical ly ensuring that  al l  the vehicles that  go to the SANDF 

are properly tested and cert i f ied.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   Now you refer in your aff idavi ts  

and again we wi l l  get  into the deta i l  in a moment to  a need 

for tests to be done for certain i tems relat ing to the 

Hoefyster contract .  

MR NKOSI:   Correct .  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   You conf i rm that? 

MR NKOSI:   Correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Right  and what were those i tems? 

MR NKOSI:   Basical ly before the vehicle can be issued to 

SANDF according to the RSM Mi l  standard that  is a  clear ly  
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speci f ied – i t  has to be [ intervent ion]  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes I  am asking sorry to interrupt .   

What i tems are we ta lk ing about? 

MR NKOSI:   I t  is – i t  is the vehicle i tsel f .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   The vehicles? 

MR NKOSI:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   These are armoured vehicles? 

MR NKOSI:   Armoured vehicles yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Under the Hoefyster contract? 

MR NKOSI:   Yes.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And were these being purchased by 

Armscor f rom Denel? 

MR NKOSI:   Correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And Armscor would supply whom with 

those armoured vehicles? 

MR NKOSI:   SANDF.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   SANDF? 

MR NKOSI:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Right .   And is i t  Armscor ’s funct ion to 

test  the vehicles for something speci f ic? 20 

MR NKOSI:   I t  is Armscor ’s funct ion to test  that  before i t  is 

given to the SANDF.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Can Denel  or i ts div is ions or ent i t ies do 

their  own test ing or do you – are – is Armscor ul t imately  

responsible? 
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MR NKOSI:   Armscor is ul t imately  responsib le they are the 

Nat ional  Author i ty.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Right .   Now again Chai r  subject  to your  

guidance I  am going to be very br ief  in t ry ing to  get  the 

wi tness to explain.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   In very layman’s terms lay person 

terms.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Some technical  issues and Mr Nkosi  10 

can you just  p lease bear in mind that  we are – we are on the 

legal  s ide rather  than the mechanical  engineer ing side so 

please assist  us in our – certainly in my ignorance on 

technical  aspects such as this.   Were you in your capaci ty 

that  you have descr ibed personal ly responsible for  test ing 

these armoured vehicles in relat ion to the Hoefyster contract  

or at  least  ensuring that  proper tests were done? 

MR NKOSI:   I  only became responsible f rom 2011.  The tests 

happened in 2005 as per CV has indicated that  I  was at  

CSIR at  the t ime.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   So long before you jo ined there 

were certa in tests that  were done? 

MR NKOSI:   Correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And you have indicated in  your aff idavi t  

concerns about the adequacy or the correctness of  the tests 
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that  were done.  

MR NKOSI:   Correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And were they speci f ical ly done on 

armoured vehicles that  were being manufactured as part  of  

the Hoefyster Project? 

MR NKOSI:   Correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you.  How many tests were done 

– are you aware of  in 2005? 

MR NKOSI:   In 2005 there were three tests that  were done.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Three tests? 10 

MR NKOSI:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Okay.  And your aff idavi t  refers to a Mr 

Frans Beetge.  

MR NKOSI:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Who was he or is he? 

MR NKOSI:   Frans Beetge is the – is the previous incumbent 

of  the posi t ion that  I  am current ly ho lding now.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   So you replaced him? 

MR NKOSI:   Yes I  replaced h im.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   In what year? 20 

MR NKOSI:   Basical ly I  was his understudy f rom 2011 

basical ly get t ing al l  the background informat ion for his work 

because i t  is a cr i t ical  ski l l  and a cr i t ical  work as speci f ied 

by Armscor and hence i t  is not  a work that  can be – you need 

t ime just  to get  a  ground unt i l  you get  acquainted wi th the 
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work.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes I  understand what understudy 

means.   Now Mr Beetge you have recorded in your  aff idavi t  

has sadly passed away.  

MR NKOSI:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   D id – and – when he lef t  the employ of  

Armscor how d id he leave the employ of  Armscor? 

MR NKOSI:   Ja unfortunately  he was i l l  –  he could not  carry 

on anymore I  th ink he ret i red just  before – before turning 65.   

He must have been around 62.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Right .  

MR NKOSI:   So he fel t  he needs to  spend enough t ime with  

his fami ly.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Okay.   Now Mr Nkosi  was he the person 

occupying the posi t ion you later took over at  the t ime of  the 

tests – the three tests that  you have referred to as having 

been done in 2005? 

MR NKOSI:   Correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And did he – did he convey to you 

informat ion about what tests have been done? 20 

MR NKOSI:   Yes he conveyed and provided al l  the evidence 

on al l  the tests that  were done.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Did he provide you wi th documentat ion 

in that  regard? 

MR NKOSI:   Yes I  have documentat ion,  I  have v ideos,  I  have 
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f i les and the p ictures basical ly.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   A lr ight  thank you.   Now you refer in  

your aff idavi t  to a standard that  is referred to as RSA-Mi l  

standard 37 i f  I  can take you to page 8.  

MR NKOSI:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Your  paragraph 4 has a heading 

Summary of  the RSA-Mi l  standard 37 issue 3.   Now am I  

r ight  in understanding Mi l  there means mi l i tary? 

MR NKOSI:   Correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Okay.   Now can you just  very,  very 10 

br ief ly  Mr Nkosi  I  do not  want you to go into considerable 

technical  detai l  but  can you just  explain to  us in  a sentence 

or two what the standard is,  who lays i t  down, what is i ts 

purpose? 

MR NKOSI:   The standard ’ s purpose is to ensure that  the 

vehicle that  ul t imately goes to service by the SANDF has 

been properly tested as i t  involves basical ly those vehicles 

are subject  –  could be subjected to  landmines in the area of  

operat ion.   So basical ly that  – that  standard lays down on al l  

the processes that  one has to fo l low unt i l  the vehic le can be 20 

issues to the SANDF.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Right .   So is the – is the main object  of  

a test  to ensure that  the vehicle  has suff ic ient  protect ion 

against  the damage that  might  be caused i f  the vehic le came 

into contact  wi th an explosive device such as a landmine? 
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MR NKOSI:   Correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Right .   Now you refer in your aff idavi t  

to two tests.   You refer to them as test  piece 2 or TP2 and I  

am going to use the abbreviat ion and test  piece 3.  

MR NKOSI:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   TP2 and TP3.  Were they tests that  

were part  of  th is RSA-Mi l  standard 37 issue 3? 

MR NKOSI:   Yes they are part  of  that .   There is also a TP1 a 

test  plate 1 whereby i t  is just  the prel iminary stage of  the 

whole process.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.  

MR NKOSI:   So – so basical ly they are part  of  that  s tandard 

test .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Do you have any issue wi th any test  

re lat ing to these vehicles in the Hoefyster Project  that  relate 

to the TP1 test? 

MR NKOSI:   TP1 test  is basical ly a  test  p lates that  you st i l l  

sort  of  l ike t ry ing to f ind out  scient i f ic evidence or maybe the 

vehicle can [00:15:30]  sustain and survive any landmines or  

something l ike that .   The cr i t ical  ones are actual ly the TP2 20 

and TP3.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   TP2 and TP3. 

MR NKOSI:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And is that  is why have deal t  wi th those 

in your aff idavi t  ra ther than TP1? 
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MR NKOSI:   Correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Okay.   Now what is  the – what  

speci f ical ly does TP2 test  seek to test  as compared wi th  

TP3?  Again very br ief ly  f rom a technical  point  of  v iew.  What  

is TP2 test? 

MR NKOSI:   A TP2 test  basical ly i t  is the cr i t ical  test  

whereby i f  there are bidders on a part icular contract  of  

supplying armoured vehicles.   I t  is an ent ry test  whereby you 

actual ly t ry ing to ensure that  the vehicle that  you are going 

to accept  has a minimum st ructural  integr i ty to be able to be 10 

considered for – for the cont ract .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Right .  

MR NKOSI:   Yes.   So basical ly the understanding is that  the 

vehicle is not  being properly developed yet  because i t  is st i l l  

a bidding phase.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Right .  

MR NKOSI:   Ja.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Sorry did the Chair  – I  th ink the Chai r  

wants to ask something.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  yes,  ja.    20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you may I  proceed?  Thank you.   

May I  just  ask Mr  Nkosi  page 10 paragraph 4.6 unt i l  4.9 on 

the fol lowing page.  Does that  set  out  in more technical  

terms the di fferent  elements of  the TP2 test? 

MR NKOSI:   Correct .  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you.   And have you employed the 

same approach in  relat ion to the TP3 test  the detai ls are set  

out  in paragraph 5 page 11 to 12? 

MR NKOSI:   Correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Just  explain to us though in layman’s 

terms TP3 test  how does that  compare wi th the TP2 test? 

MR NKOSI:   The TP3 test  i t  is af ter  you have basical ly had a 

conf idence that  the vehicle has the bare minimum 

requi rements.   The TP3 test  is the f inal  test  now whereby the 

design has been ful ly developed.  So i t  is  –  you can then test  10 

but  having a TP2 test  actual ly prevents an issue whereby 

you go to a TP3 and there are issues.   So the TP3 test  is the 

f inal  test  basical ly.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   The f ina l  one.  

MR NKOSI:   The manufactur ing base l ine has been reached.   

Just  before you begin to manufacture i t  has to pass a TP3 

test .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Right .   So before you get  to a TP3 test  

you must  have passed the TP2 test? 

MR NKOSI:   Correct .  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Right .   And once you have passed that  

then you can be considered further for the project  but  that  is 

subject  to a TP3 test  being passed? 

MR NKOSI:   Yes.   The understanding is there is st i l l  some 

development issues that  st i l l  have to be tackled but  by and 
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large you have – you have met the basic requirements.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Right .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Now is i t  possible to supply to  the end 

user in th is case the South Af r ican Nat ional  Defence Force 

who wi l l  then al locate human beings to si t  in these armoured 

vehicles.   Is i t  possible to supply to the SANDF an armoured 

vehicle which has not  passed the TP2 and then the TP3 test? 

MR NKOSI:   Not  according to the RSM-Mil  standard.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Right .   And what would the 10 

consequence be i f  there was not  a  proper test  conducted at  

the TP2 stage and the TP3 stage and that  these were passed 

ful ly? 

MR NKOSI:   The consequences are qui te severe.   One could 

be – can be death of  the so ldiers,  [00:19:04] ,  in jur ies,  

basical ly ja.   Those are the main things – and loss of  l ives.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Would that  be because just  correct  me 

i f  I  am wrong and my layman’s understanding.   The TP2 and 

the TP3 tests are there to ensure that  the vehicle – the 

armoured vehicle is suff ic ient ly compl iant  wi th requi rements 20 

to t ry and minimise damage to vehicles and dest ruct ion or  

in jury – sorry destruct ion of  vehicles or in jury to humans or 

their  deaths 

MR NKOSI:   Correct .   I f  I  may further elaborate.   Basical ly i f  

you having al l  those tests you have evidence that  you have 
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done basical ly – al l  the necessary things just  to ensure that  

the soldiers are safe.   For  future legal  ramif icat ions i f  there 

could be loss of  l ives you know that  you could actual ly refer 

them back to al l  those tests resul ts  and tests data that  you 

obtained to show that  you have actual ly done proper  

engineering judgment.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   Right  now let  us get  to you 

involvement in  relat ion to  reviewing informat ion regarding 

the landmine tests.   You deal  wi th that  in your aff idavi t  f rom 

page 12 paragraph 6,  correct?  And so you have al ready 10 

test i f ied that  the two tests in quest ion were done in 2005.  

MR NKOSI:   Three tests.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Sorry three tests I  beg your  pardon 

correct .   In 2005 many years before you even jo ined.   So you 

were not  involved in those tests but  what was your 

involvement in re lat ion to those tests?  Your aff idavi t  refers 

to your discussions wi th Mr Beetge who had been involved in  

the tests and were you required then as your heading 

suggests paragraph 6 to reviewing informat ion relat ing to 

two tests in quest ion? 20 

MR NKOSI:   Yes basical ly I  had to review the informat ion 

and look at  the data just  to acquaint  mysel f  wi th the work as 

i t  was on-going at  the t ime.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Right .   And f rom the informat ion you 

obtained f rom Mr Beetge presumably both what he said and 
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what  he provided in the form the documentary evidence that  

you refer to were you able to sat isfy yoursel f  that  a test  had 

been conducted for TP2?  Let  us leave aside whether  i t  was 

a proper test  – whether i t  was passed or not .   Had there 

been an at tempt to undergo a TP2 test  for the vehicles in 

quest ion? 

MR NKOSI:   Yes basical ly there has been – there is  

evidence that  tests were conducted for a TP2 test .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   For TP2 tests? 

MR NKOSI:   Yes.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Did you say? 

MR NKOSI:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Sorry I  just  did not  hear you.   And what  

about  the TP3 test  was that  done? 

MR NKOSI:   No i t  was not  done.   I t  was not  done.  

CHAIRPERSON:   We are at  one o’clock Mr Kennedy.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you Chai r  would this be a 

convenient  t ime? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Shal l  we take the lunch adjournment unt i l  

two? 20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay we wi l l  take the lunch adjournment 

we wi l l  resume at  two o’clock.   We adjourn.  

REGISTRAR:   A l l  r ise.  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 
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INQUIRY RESUMES :     

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay let  us cont inue.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Thank you,  Chai r.   Mr Nkosi ,  we were 

deal ing wi th some backgrounds . . . [ intervenes]   

MR NKOSI :    Sorry.   Sorry,  Chai r.   Just  water,  p lease? 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Sorry?  

MR NKOSI :    Water.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Water?  

MR NKOSI :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Can someone help wi th water? 10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  somebody must just  organise water 

for him.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Now Mr Nkosi ,  you have explained to  

the Chai r  before we took the adjournment about  the 

di fference about the TP2 and TP3 tests,  both of  which had to 

be passed.  

 And part icular ly the TP3 test  as being the ul t imate test 

before products could be suppl ied to the end user.   In th is 

case,  the SANDF.   

 Now you have referred to a number of  tests that  were 20 

done before you started in your current . . .  in your posi t ion,  

taking over f rom Mr Beetge.    

 What,  in very broad out l ine,  did you discover?  How 

many tests were conducted for TP2 in 2005?  

MR NKOSI :    Okay.   I  wi l l  repeat  again.   I t  is three tests that  
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are conducted for TP2 tests,  three tests.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .  

MR NKOSI :    There were two sets of  tests that  were done.  

One done by the auspices of  Armscor.   The other one done 

by LMT on thei r  own accord.    

ADV KENNEDY SC :    With who?  

MR NKOSI :    With CSIR.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    The CSIR?  

MR NKOSI :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Which came f i rst?  10 

MR NKOSI :    The one that  was conducted by Armscor.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    By Armscor?  

MR NKOSI :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And ordinar i ly,  would Armscor conduct  

these tests i tsel f?  

MR NKOSI :    We conduct  i t  together  wi th CSIR as they are 

our  technology partner but  i t  is  important  for Armscor to be 

there so that  they keep a record of  the hul l  conf igurat ion 

amongst  other th ings.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.   You ment ioned in your aff idavi t ,  20 

you have touched on this ear l ier,  that  in Armscor,  in fact ,  has 

a legal  author i ty,  a legal  status in relat ion to the cert i f icat ion 

of  arms components or i tems such as this.   Is i t  in fact  as the 

statutory author i ty,  the legal  author i ty to pursue?  

MR NKOSI :    I  am not  sure about that  but  i t  is Armscor ’s task 
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as responsibi l i ty.   I  am not  sure as in terms of  the statutory 

requi rements.   But  i t  is thei r. . .  they are obl iged to do so.    

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Okay.  

MR NKOSI :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And then there were two. . .  so there 

were two processes that  you have just  reminded us of  in 

2005,  had three tests done.  Is that  r ight?  

MR NKOSI :    Correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And was any TP3 tests done in 2005?  

MR NKOSI :    No,  they would not  have done that  because at  10 

the t ime the basel ine had not  been f inal ised.   So i t  is a. . .  i t  

was just  an entry test .    

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Just  explain to the Chair  what a 

basel ine is,  p lease?  

MR NKOSI :    Basical ly,  again,  i t  is a ent ry test  so that  

Armscor makes a due di l igence to make sure that  i f  some 

modif icat ions are happening to l ike the baton(?),  then you 

would have done max the bare minimum requi rements.    

 The bare minimum requi rements test ,  wi th  the 

understanding that  – because we wanted addi t ional  th ings on 20 

the hul l .   There wi l l  be addi t ional  th ings that  are st i l l  going to  

be f inal ised for the process,  for the procurement of  that .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And did you discuss wi th Mr Beetge 

what the outcome of  the f i rst  test  was in 2005?  

MR NKOSI :    Yes,  I  d iscussed with  him the outcome of  that .   
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And he basical ly to ld me everything that  he had to.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Is i t?  

MR NKOSI :    Yes,  that  he had.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Okay.   What was . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sorry.   He in formed you of . . .?  

MR NKOSI :    Ja,  he informed me of  everything else and al l  

the int r icacies that  were involved in  the projects and some of  

his misgiv ings as wel l .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Okay.   Wel l ,  we wi l l  get  to that   I f  you 

can just  . . . [ intervenes]   10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Do not  be too far f rom the mic but  do not  

be too close e i ther.  

MR NKOSI :    Okay.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   [ laughing]    

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And i f  you could please just  t ry and 

remember.   I  know i t  is d i ff icul t  but  t ry and look towards the 

Deputy Chief  Just ice,  the Chair  rather than me even though I  

am giving most  of  the quest ions.  

MR NKOSI :    Okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Because i t  wi l l  be easier for the Chair  20 

then to hear and i t  wi l l  a lso p ick up on your microphone in  

that  di rect ion.  

MR NKOSI :    Okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Okay.   So what was the outcome of  the 

f i rst  test?  Did the vehicles. . .   These are cal led Pat r ia 
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vehicles,  is that  r ight?  

MR NKOSI :    Correct ,  s i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Did those Pat r ia vehicles,  in  fact ,  

passed or fa i led the f i rst  test?  

MR NKOSI :    Let  us start  wi th the f i rst  test .   I t  is a  wheel -

short - test .   They passed the wheel -short - test .    

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Is i t  correct  that  there are di fferent  

elements to the tests?  

MR NKOSI :    Yes,  there are di fferent  elements that  those 

tests actual ly enta i l .  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Okay.   So . . . [ intervenes]   

MR NKOSI :    Ja,  i t  depends on the complexi ty of  the vehicle 

that  is being tested.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.   And you deal  wi th th is in some 

detai l  in your aff idavi t  which the Chair  wi l l  be able to go 

through.  Can you just  conf i rm?  So some of  the elements of  

the f i rst  TP2 tests that  these vehicles were subjected to,  

some of  those have passed and others not .  

MR NKOSI :    Yes,  i t  is a ser ies of  tests,  basical ly.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Okay.  20 

MR NKOSI :    Yes,  h’m.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    So what was the overal l  outcome of  

the test  i tsel f  . . . [ intervenes]   

MR NKOSI :    The overal l  outcome.   The f i rst  test ,  i t  was a 

wheel-short - test .   Genera l ly,  by enlarge,  wi th my exper ience 



28 OCTOBER 2020 – DAY 293 
 

Page 105 of 211 
 

wi th the tests,  the wheel - test  general ly passed because i t  

shows you. . .    

 I t  sorts of  l ike simulates one the . . . [ indist inct ]  that  wi l l  

h i t  a landmine wi th the f ront  tyres or the rear tyres.   So 

basical ly because of  the. . .  i t  passes general ly but  the most  

important  test  that  fa i l  is the hul l  shot .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    So i t  fa i led the hul l . . .?  

MR NKOSI :    The hul l  shot .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Hul l  shot?  

MR NKOSI :    Yes.   Basica l ly,  where the occupants s i t  at  the 10 

back.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    A lr ight .    

MR NKOSI :    Ja.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And how important  is that  as an 

element?  

MR NKOSI :    Wel l  . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    What is the s igni f icance i f  you fai l  that  

part icular element of  the TP2 test?  

MR NKOSI :    Basical ly,  we get  human readings on the. . .   We 

put  a  dummies.   From pics.   Just  devices on that ,  the 20 

dummies.   And we basica l ly get  a threshold values wi th. . .   

 Threshold values f rom internat ional  l i terature and 

studies that  have actual ly show that  i f  i t  was a human who 

si ts on that  vehic le,  i f  i t  is  above a certain threshold,  then 

they wi l l  e i ther pass. . .   
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 They wi l l  e i ther die or being amputated,  basical ly.   In 

just  s imple terms.  But  the hul l  test  fa i led because the 

readings were just  a bi t  too high.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Okay.  

MR NKOSI :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Now . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Come closer to the mic again.    

MR NKOSI :    Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You are too far.   So you say i t  would affect  

people si t t ing at  the back.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    What about  people si t t ing in the f ront?  

They would not  be affected?  

MR NKOSI :    I t  depends.   When we.. .   That  is  why i t  is 

important  for Armscor to be involved at  the. . .  on the test  

because we are an independent body wi th  an interest  of  the 

SANDF at  heart .   We look at  the vehic le to see where. . .  

which area is l ikely to actual ly cause damage.  That  is where 

we put  the landmines,  basical ly.   We look at  the worst  case 

scenario.    20 

CHAIRPERSON :    What I  am t rying to f ind out .   You know, 

when you talk about  the people at  the back,  one supposes 

that  at  the back,  there could be people at  the f ront .  

MR NKOSI :    Yes,  the dr ivers.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  
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MR NKOSI :    There is normal ly a dr iver  and there is normal ly 

the crew commander.   There is people operat ing the vehic le 

as wel l .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.    

MR NKOSI :    And . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    But  does i t  mean that  they would be safe? 

MR NKOSI :    I t  does not  mean that  they wi l l  be safe but  we 

have to take the . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  chances of  being in jured are. . .  there 

are less chances of  them being in jured compared to those 10 

who si t  at  the back.  

MR NKOSI :    Basical ly,  we look. . .  we could ei ther put  i t  at  

where the dr ivers are because the landmine can actual ly 

explode. . .   In actual  sense,  we should be test ing al l  the 

areas where people are si t t ing,  just  to be sure.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR NKOSI :    Yes,  basical ly,  on this part icular test ,  according 

to my predecessor,  they actual ly in tended to look at  var ious 

cr i t ical  posi t ions because of  the nature of  the vehicle and the 

complexi ty of  the vehicle.    20 

 Because we include the tarot  as wel l  where human l ives 

si t  as wel l .   But  because we.. .  i t  is just  on the second test ,  i t  

just  fa i led the hul l  test .   But  the intent ion was to look at 

other st rategic posi t ions wi thin the vehicle to see i f  i t  passes 

or not .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  I f  i t  fa i ls,  one . . . [ intervenes]   

MR NKOSI :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . . just  l ike four  people at  the back.   Do 

you then have to take i t  back and they look at  everything 

including people who would si t  in  the vehicle and in the 

f ront? 

MR NKOSI :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    So in other words,  you do not  have to do 

al l  because . . . [ intervenes]   

MR NKOSI :    Depending . . . [ intervenes]   10 

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .one is enough.  

MR NKOSI :    I f  you are fai l ing in one,  i t  is enough.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR NKOSI :    because al l  the l ives on the vehicle matters.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR NKOSI :    Only one is enough.   So i t  would mean that ,  

basical ly,  the potent ia l  b idder . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

MR NKOSI :    . . .w i l l  have to go back to. . .  going back to the 

drawing board.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

MR NKOSI :    Go back to the t r icky one and do s imulat ions 

again and do their  own test  outside of  our test  before coming 

back to us again wi th conf idence wi th the . . . [ indist inct ] ,  

basical ly.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    But  wai t .   In terms of  which one you test  

whether i t  is people at  the back or in the f ront ,  is i t  l ike a 

sample?  You just  take anyone . . . [ in tervenes]   

MR NKOSI :    No,  but  . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    The manufacturers never know whether 

you test  people in  the f ront  or people in the middle.   You just  

take anyone.  And i f  i t  fa i ls,  that  is i t .  

MR NKOSI :    Yes,  that  is why i t  is  important  for Armscor to 

be the people who choose that  because you do not  want a 

si tuat ion whereby maybe potent ia l . . .  be i t  the part icular area,  10 

knowing very wel l  that  you wi l l  be test ing that .    

 So i t  is a decision by the nat ional  author i ty.   Armscor 

together wi th the CSIR would s i t  and look at  the cr i t ical  part  

wi thin the speci f ic vehicle.   At  which point  can they actual ly  

hi t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Thank you.   Thank you,  

Mr Kennedy.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Thank you,  Chai r.   And did Mr Beetge 

discuss this problem with the very f i rst  test  that  he had been 

involved in wi th you when you were. . .  when he was handing 20 

over to you?  

MR NKOSI :    Yes,  he discussed everything.   I  saw the 

footage.   The beauty of  i t . . .   That  is why i f  i t  is under the 

auspices of  Armscor,  we are. . .  we have Armscor qual i ty as 

wel l  which is a cr i t ical  d iv is ion wi thin our Armscor as wel l  
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that  that  offers independent qual i ty  check of  the vehicle.    

 You need to check the basel ine of  the vehicle,  the 

drawings.   Somet imes actual ly you need to measure.   You 

need to measure the weight  of  the vehicle.   You need to go 

and take pictures of  a l l  the angels.    

 Wherever you can so that  you can put  i t  on your  

requisi te for any possible ramif icat ion that  had come af ter in 

years to show that  you have done.. .  you have taken p ictures,  

you have done, you weighed the vehicle,  th is is the correct  

basel ine and everything l ike that .    10 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Now you refer in  your aff idavi t  to a 

report  which came from the CSIR document ing the 

requi rements of  Armscor f rom the test .   This is the. . .  I  just  

want to  conf i rm.  Yes,  that  is the f i rst  test .   This is  in your  

aff idavi t ,  page 15.   I f  you look at  the top lef t  numbers,  15.    

MR NKOSI :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Paragraph 8.2.    

MR NKOSI :    15,  8.2.   Yes.    

ADV KENNEDY SC :    You refer to the report  referr ing to LMT 

and not  Pat r ia as the provider  of  the i tem to be tested.   Do 20 

you know.. .   Can you explain that?  

MR NKOSI :    Basical ly,  the vehicle was provided to us by 

LMT.  I  guess maybe the relat ionship wi th Patr ia,  that  I  am 

not  party to . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Okay.  
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MR NKOSI :    . . .  a sample was provided to us by LMT.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And then you refer to an execut ive 

summary of  the report  in 8.4.  

MR NKOSI :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    The thi rd l ine of  8.4.    

“The test  team passed the wheel - test  but  fa i led the 

hul l - test  due to great  than thresholds. ”  

 What is the. . .  the . . . [ indist inct ]  forces.    

“This objects prevai l ing the inter ior of  assessed i tem 

and penetrat ion of  the hul l  by the blast . ”  10 

MR NKOSI :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    So was this your understanding of  the 

reason why i t  fa i led th is test?  

MR NKOSI :    Yes.   Yes,  i t  is basical ly,  is that .   Just ,  i f  you 

look at  8.5,  the test  was actual ly c lassi f ied as catastrophic.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.  

MR NKOSI :    Because there was f i re(?) ins ide the vehicle.   

The hul l  ruptured actual ly.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    A lr ight .  

MR NKOSI :    So i t  means that  i f  i t  was a human being that  20 

was there,  i t  would have been the end of  their  l ives.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    The end of  . . . [ intervenes]   

MR NKOSI :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Let  me just  have a moment to clar i fy  

something,  please Chai r.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    May I  take you please Mr Nkosi  to  

page 254?  Sorry,  255.    

MR NKOSI :    255? 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.    

MR NKOSI :    Where is the page? 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Do you have i t?  

MR NKOSI :    255,  where is the page? 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    P lease turn to  page 255.    

MR NKOSI :    I  have. . .  okay,  255.   Okay thank you. 10 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    P lease just  go to the page number I  

have given you.  

MR NKOSI :    255,  okay.   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Is  th is the CSIR report  that  you are 

referr ing to which was done for the f i rst  test  wi th Armscor?  

MR NKOSI :    I  just  have to look at  the document i tsel f .   This 

is not  the one here.   I  th ink this is the second one that  was 

done by CSIR.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Is that  the second test?  

MR NKOSI :    That  is the thi rd test .  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    That  is the thi rd test?  

MR NKOSI :    Yes.   This is the one that  was requested by 

LMT on thei r  own accord.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.  

MR NKOSI :    . . . . to  by the CSIR. 
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ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes,  but  you f i led the var ious reports  

in your. . .  as part  of  your annexures to your aff idavi t ,  not  so?  

MR NKOSI :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Okay.   Sorry about the wrong 

reference,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    [No audible reply]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .   Then the. . .   You then deal  wi th  

a second test  also conducted in 2005 on these vehicles,  

correct?  

MR NKOSI :    Let  us be speci f ic.   I t  is the thi rd test  because 10 

there are two tests that  they . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    That  is the thi rd.  

MR NKOSI :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    But  we know that  i t  is not  the f i rst .  

MR NKOSI :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    You have clar i f ied that .  

MR NKOSI :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Thank you.   May I  just  take you back to  

your evidence so that  we do not  jump ahead to the thi rd test .   

Let  us get  back to the end of  the f i rst  test .   That  was a 20 

catastrophic fa i lure.  

MR NKOSI :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    As you put  i t .   Now then there was a 

second test  and that  you deal  wi th on page 16,  your  

paragraph 9.  
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MR NKOSI :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Again,  i t  was conducted in 2005 long 

before you jo ined?  

MR NKOSI :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And what was the outcome.. .   Sorry.   

Who submit ted the vehic les for the second test?  

MR NKOSI :    Because they fai led the Armscor test ,  LMT on 

their  own accord.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    I t  was LMT?  

MR NKOSI :    Yes,  on their  own accord,  they f ixed the 10 

vehicle,  basical ly.   They ret ro-f i t ted the vehicle that  fa i led 

and they moved to the . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Just  speak up,  please.   And t ry to look 

towards the Chai r.  

MR NKOSI :    Yes,  yes.   They basical ly removed.. .  they retro-

f i t ted the vehicle.   They removed the part  that  was blown 

apart .   And apparent ly increased the thickness of  the hul l  

and went back to  the CSIR to basical ly test  the vehicle on 

their  own accord wi thout  Armscor ’s presence in terms of  

ver i fy ing the basel ine,  looking at  the vehicle,  tak ing the 20 

masses,  as i t  is a requi rement by the standard.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    So the quest ion was,  who sent  i t  for a  

test?  The answer is LMT did.  

MR NKOSI :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And but  did not  involve Armscor?  
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MR NKOSI :    Correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Should i t  have involved Armscor?  

MR NKOSI :    Yes,  according to the standard,  they have to 

involve Armscor because as we stand current ly,  Armscor 

does not  even have the correct  basel ine of  th is part icular 

vehicle that  was tested.    

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Now where the f i rst  test  that  resul ted 

in a catastrophic fa i lure,  you indicate in your aff idavi t ,  

paragraph 9.2 . . . [ intervenes]   

MR NKOSI :    Yes.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    . . . that  the. . .   I t  is not  documented why 

the Pat r ia vehicle  was al lowed to undergo the second test  

af ter there was a catastrophic fa i lure of  the f i rst  test .   Why is 

that?  

MR NKOSI :    Yes,  I  do not  know why. . .  why was this . . .  does 

LMT al low . . . [ indist inct ]  on the test .   Maybe i t  was before my 

t ime.  I  am not  sure about that .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Okay you do not  know.  I t  was not  

explained there.  

MR NKOSI :    Yes,  yes,  yes.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    But  i f  I  were to submit  a vehicle  for the  

TP2 test  and i t  resul ts in a catast rophic fa i lure,  does that  

mean I  have to close down that  business?  I  can never carry 

on.   I  can never improve or correct  i t?  

MR NKOSI :    I  am not  sure on the contractual  condi t ions but  
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on the documents that  I  have seen on the cr i t ical  cr i ter ia,  on 

the documents that  I  have seen,  i t  means that  the company 

has actual ly fa i led.   They need to restart  again or maybe the 

whole process to actual ly restart  again.    

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Okay.   Now what was the outcome of  

that  second test?  

MR NKOSI :    Yes,  the second test .   Unfortunate to have 

someone who was part  of  the rest ,  who was. . .  he was a 

. . . [ indist inct ]  at  the CSIR who was part  of  i t .   They passed 

the test .    10 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And f rom your study of  the documents,  

was i t  appropriate that  they passed the test?  

MR NKOSI :    Not  according to France and not  accord ing to  

the CSIR because they have provided them wi th the 

specimen that  was not  even documented or recorded or  

weighed or even establ ished on the adequacy of  that  

part icular test  i tem that  was on the vehicle,  to present  i t .    

 But  wi th the CSIR, they have clear ly stated that  i f  you 

provide. . .  i f  you br ing the vehicle to them and say test ,  they 

would test  scient i f ical ly and accord ing to the RMS Standard.    20 

 But  they are not  sure on whatever th ing that  you 

provided because they did not  real ly spend t ime with the 

vehicle,  look at  the data fact ,  what changes were made.   

 Because i f  i t  fa i ls,  l ike the Armscor test ,  they are 

supposed to go back to do the TSP1, provide the simulat ion 
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resul ts to show that  now they are ready again to test ,  

provide the engineering test  which is what the second.. .  the 

thi rd test  was supposed to be.    

 I t  is an engineering test  just  for them to get  conf idence 

again so that  they can resume that  they have actual ly fa i led.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Okay.   And then in 9.3 you say:  

“The engineering test  was subsequent ly interpreted 

to be a TP2 by Armscor. ”  

MR NKOSI :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Who in Armscor interpreted the 10 

outcome of  th is test  to be a TP2 test?  

MR NKOSI :    I t  was my predecessor.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Your. . .  Is that  Mr Beetge?  

MR NKOSI :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Okay.   Did he raise any concerns 

about the outcome of  th is th ing?  

MR NKOSI :    Yes,  he actual ly  raised so many concerns 

because f rom 2009 up to now, you could see that  there was 

qui te  a lot  of  the movement because once they real ised that  

th is test  was actual ly not  correct ly done according to l ike 20 

RMS Standards.    

 So they t r ied to apply i t  in al l  the hul ls that  are missing 

on that  test  so that  i t  might  look legi t imate on an eye that  

does not  de lve on the detai ls of  i t  yet .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Now . . . [ intervenes]   
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CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sorry.  

MR NKOSI :    Yes,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :     Does i t  say that  they t r ied to cr i t ic ise the 

test? 

MR NKOSI :    No,  no,  no.   Basical ly,  af ter rea l is ing the 

inadequacies of  th is part icular test  that  passed,  there was 

later at tempts to  t ry and legi t imise the hul l  operat ion by 

doing other addi t ional  s imulat ion tests,  basical ly.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR NKOSI :    On the vehicle.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Now you say the inadequacies of  the test .  

MR NKOSI :    Yes,  inadequacies.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Now that  might  mean the test  was f lawed 

not  the vehicles.  

MR NKOSI :    Yes the . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Was i t  the test  that  had f laws or the test  

was f ine by the vehicles were not  manufactured according to 

the required standard.   That  is why they fai led the test .  

MR NKOSI :    Basical ly,  i f  you do the test ,  there are many 

components on the test .   You look at  f ly ing objects.   As you 20 

can. . .   I f  I  can take you back to 8.4.2.   On the test  

. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    E ight  po int  four. . .?  

MR NKOSI :    8.4.2.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  
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MR NKOSI :    Yes,  basical ly,  inside the vehicle,  there are 

objects that  once the vehicle is subjected to  a landmine-test ,  

they f ly around.  Those are cr i t ical  . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.  

MR NKOSI :    They can never remain . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  okay.  

MR NKOSI :    . . .or  skewer the people inside the vehic le.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR NKOSI :    A l l  those part icular i tems were removed on that  

test .   Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Now I  understand.   Thank you.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Thank you,  Chai r.   So am I  r ight  in  

saying that  in understanding that  the TP2 test  involves a 

number of  elements?  

MR NKOSI :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And are you saying that  some of  those 

elements were not  even tested?  

MR NKOSI :    They were not  even tested.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    They were not  even tested in the 

CSIR.  So they did some but  not  others?  20 

MR NKOSI :    Yes,  they did some but  not  the others.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Now you set  out  a number of  technical  

issues f rom 9.3.1 . . . [ intervenes]   

MR NKOSI :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    . . . to 9.3.21.  
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MR NKOSI :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    As being discrepancies that  were 

ident i f ied.  

MR NKOSI :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    What are those discrepancies?  Does 

that  refer to elements of  the test  not  even being tested?  

MR NKOSI :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Is that  r ight?  

MR NKOSI :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    So in other  words,  the test  was. . .   10 

There was a test  done but  i t  was not  a comprehensive test .   

They only tested for a few things.  

MR NKOSI :    Yes,  basica l ly . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And whatever  . . . [ intervenes]   

MR NKOSI :    Just  that  whatever th ing that  they 

. . . [ intervenes]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Okay.  

MR NKOSI :    . . . they requested them to test .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.   Now as a resul t  of  that  test ,  was 

any cert i f icate issued by Armscor?  20 

MR NKOSI :    Yes,  unfortunately,  the cert i f icate was issued 

by Armscor.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Even though that  they should not  have 

been bypassed by LMT going di rect ly to CSIR?  

MR NKOSI :    Yes.   How they did i t ,  I  do not  know.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC :    And even though, also,  the test  by 

CSIR was not  a comprehensive test  and many of  the 

elements were not  even tested?  

MR NKOSI :    Correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Is the posi t ion that  Armscor issued the 

cert i f icates on the st rength of  the test  done by the CSIR or 

did they a lso do the test  or supervised the test  and 

. . . [ intervenes]   

MR NKOSI :    No,  they were actual ly  invi ted as guests.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR NKOSI :    Yes,  they were there as guests.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Not  to oversight? 

MR NKOSI :    Not  to oversight .   To actual ly see the whole 

process.   Because what normal ly happens before the test .   

You actual ly go to the premises of  the vehicle,  the 

manufacturer,  you. . .  the exchanged document,  the data 

packs.   You have sent  the data packs.   You weigh the 

vehicle.   You take pictures just  as evidence.   As evidence.   

That  is cr i t ical  in the whole process.    20 

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  

MR NKOSI :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m, h’m.  They d id not  do this,  that  here? 

MR NKOSI :    No,  no.   They might  have done i t  wi th the 

CSIR, I  am not  sure.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR NKOSI :    But  Armscor,   current ly . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Armscor did not  do i t?  

MR NKOSI :    Armscor,  current ly,  does not  have that  

evidence.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh.  

MR NKOSI :    What vehicle was actual ly tested.   Because on 

the CSIR report  i t  was evident  that  basical ly what happened 

was.   They basical ly took the vehicle that  was blown 

catastrophica l ly and basical ly cut  a sect ion that  was torn 10 

apart  and retro-f i t ted a thicker. . .  

 And took the vehicle back again to the test  wi th the tarot  

baskets that  have actual ly . . . [ indist inct ]  af ter the f i rst  test .   I  

am.. .   I  wish,  maybe, you could have actual ly be exposed to 

the pictures that  actual ly happened on that  test .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR NKOSI :    So you can see how catastrophical ly the test  

was.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes.  

MR NKOSI :    So basical ly i t  was just  . . . [ intervenes]   20 

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  sounds l ike a cut  and paste job.    

MR NKOSI :    Cut  and paste job,  l ike. . .   Honest ly,  i t  was a cut  

and paste job.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR NKOSI :    I  would not  want to fur ther descr ibe i t .  



28 OCTOBER 2020 – DAY 293 
 

Page 123 of 211 
 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR NKOSI :    But  i t  does not  fo l low engineering pr inciples.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR NKOSI :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.    

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Can I  ask you to turn in the bundle to  

page 46?  

MR NKOSI :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Just  have a quick g lance at  that  

document and just  conf i rm.  I  want  you to indicate whether 10 

you are able to te l l  us whether th is was the CSIR report  for  

the f i rst  test  or the second test  or anything else.  

MR NKOSI :    Okay.   Page 46,  basical ly,  before the tests 

were taken,  LMT or  Armscor rather.   Armscor requested 

CSIR.. .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes?  

MR NKOSI :    Apologies.   Armscor requested the CSIR to do 

a theoret ical ly evaluat ion of  the specimen before the test  

that  happened, the f i rst  two tests that  happened.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    So this was before the f i rst  two tests?  20 

MR NKOSI :    Yes,  yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    So this was not  the f i rst  test?  

MR NKOSI :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And maybe i f  I  can ask you please to 

turn to page 138?  
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MR NKOSI :    [No audible reply]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    That  also seems to be a CSIR report .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Did you say 138? 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    138.   Yes,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    This one is  dated the 14t h  of  June 2005 

which is a l i t t le af ter the other test  we just  looked at .  

MR NKOSI :    138,  yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.   Is th is the test  report  for the f i rst  

or the second test  that  you referred us to,  the TP2 test?  10 

MR NKOSI :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Or . . . [ intervenes]   

MR NKOSI :    This is  the. . .   I f  I  look at  i t ,  i f  you can look 

careful ly,  approved by. . .   I t  is important  to have an Armscor 

signature there.   There is a . . . [ indist inct ]   Unfortunately,  th is  

one is unsigned but  I  can actual ly get  you a copy of  the 

signed one.   This should be the tests resul ts of  the f i rst  two 

tests that  actual ly  happened that  were under the auspices of  

Armscor.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Of  the f i rst  test?  20 

MR NKOSI :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .   And i f  I  can ask you now please 

to turn to page 255?  

MR NKOSI :    255,  yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    That  is also dated 2005.  August  2005.   
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Are you able to indicate whether th is was the repor t  for the 

second . . . [ intervenes]   

MR NKOSI :    Thi rd test .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Was this the thi rd test?  

MR NKOSI :    Yes,  that  is an engineering test  that  was 

conducted by CSIR on behal f  of  LMT.   I f  you can look 

careful ly on the signature page as wel l .   There is no Armscor 

involvement there.   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    That  is page 256?  

MR NKOSI :    I f  you look at  page 256,  yes.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.   Okay.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Would Armscor. . .   Would that  be a 

signature f rom somebody f rom Armscor there,  even though 

on the face of  i t ,  i t  appears to be CSIR document? 

MR NKOSI :    Yes,  as i t  is the case wi th the test  that  we. . .  

that  was conducted wi th Armscor being there.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR NKOSI :    So we work wi th CSIR as our technology 

partner.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  okay.  20 

MR NKOSI :    So that  one would have a CSIR page as wel l .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR NKOSI :    The other one would. . .   Even i f  for. . .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

MR NKOSI :    You can have Armscor person there or not .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR NKOSI :    Depending on who requested the test .  

CHAIRPERSON :    But  the absence of  a s ignature f rom 

somebody f rom Armscor . . . [ intervenes]   

MR NKOSI :    Yes,  i t  . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    . . . i t  ref lects  d i fferent  -  i t  i s  no t  what  i t  

shou ld  be .  

MR NKOSI :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  does not  ca r ry  the  same s ta tus .   I t  i s  

no t  va l id .  10 

MR NKOSI :    Not  necessar i l y.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR NKOSI :   Not  necessar i l y,  bu t  fo r  the  SANDF veh ic les ,  

A rmscor  s ignatu re  has to  be  there .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR NKOSI :    Because Armscor  qua l i t y,  you have to  

[ ind is t inc t ]  00 .00 .20 to  take  p lace,  Armscor  Qua l i t y  hav ing  

to  ove rsee the  process as  we l l  together  w i th  Armscor  

acqu is i t ion  as  we l l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  20 

MR NKOSI :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  the  absence o f  A rmscor  wou ld  

weaken the  we igh t  o f  th is  document .  

MR NKOSI :    In  th is  ins tance.  

CHAIRPERSON:    In  th is  ins tance.  
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MR NKOSI :    Ja ,  I  w i l l  have to  be  spec i f i c  in  th is  ins tance.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  ja ,  okay.  

MR NKOSI :    Because CSIR on the i r  own -  they do  va l ida te  

tha t  on  the i r  own and then issue ce r t i f i ca tes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you .   But  d id  Armscor  la te r  

accept  th is  tes t  as  hav ing  been passed?  

MR NKOSI :    Yes,  my predecessor  accepted i t  wh ich  is  a  

dec is ion  tha t  he  ac tua l l y  regre t ted  because i f  you can look  

on  some o f  the  annexures,  CSIR  as we l l ,  together  w i th  10 

Frans Beetge,  they had ac tua l l y  –  i t  i s  Dr  I zak  Snyman and  

Dr  Frans Beetge,  they ac tua l l y  they  wro te  in  the i r  m isg i v ing  

on  the  tes t  tha t  had ac tua l l y  happened but  why d id  he  s ign  

the  ce r t i f i ca te  I  do  no t  know because tha t  cer t i f i ca te  was a  

c r i t i ca l  requ i rement  in  p lac ing  the  cont rac t ,  was a  c r i t i ca l  

requ i rement  in  p lac ing  a  cont rac t  i f  we have to  pu t  i t  on 

record .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Was pass ing  the  TP2  tes t  a  

requ i rement  o f  the  cont rac t  in  a  sense o f  i f  you  do not  

comply  then you are  in  b reach o f  cont rac t?  20 

MR NKOSI :    Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    A l r igh t .   Now you have sa id  tha t  you  

are  no t  sure  why  Beetge ac ted  in  the  way he d id .   D id  he  

express anyth ing  to  you as  to  whether  he  was happy w i th  

how he had ac ted? 



28 OCTOBER 2020 – DAY 293 
 

Page 128 of 211 
 

MR NKOSI :    No ,  in  p r inc ip le  he  to ld  me every th ing  was  

ac tua l l y  invo lved.   I t  i s  a  mat te r  o f  he  says,  she says,  bu t  

bas ica l l y  the  bo t tom l ine ,  whoever  conv inced h im to  s ign  I  

cannot  d ivu lge  the  names and th ings l i ke  tha t .   Bas i ca l l y  

he  had promised  tha t  because the  s tandard  anyway st i l l  

requ i res  the  TP3 tes t  to  be  conduc ted.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  

MR NKOSI :    He shou ld  no t  wor ry  about  tha t  because there  

is  f ie ld ,  i t  i s  m in ing  phase whereby th is  veh ic le  w i l l  s t i l l  be 

tes ted  and h i s  reason ing  fo r  s ign ing  was based on those  10 

assumpt ions.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    So  am I  r igh t  in  unders tand ing  what  

you are  say ing  tha t  he  was fa i r l y  re laxed about  agree ing  

tha t  the  passed the  TP2 tes t  because he took comfor t  f rom 

the  fac t  tha t  we l l ,  i f  there  are  any shor tcoming they  w i l l  be  

p icked up a t  the  TP3 s tage.  

MR NKOSI :    Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And you cannot  de l i ve r  veh ic les  to  

the  customer  un less  and unt i l  the  TP3 tes t  has been  

passed.  20 

MR NKOSI :    Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  what  do  you say about  tha t  

exp lanat ion  o r  reason ing?  

MR NKOSI :    Fo r  me i f  we were  together  I  was not  go ing  to  
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ac tua l l y  i ssue the  cer t i f i ca te .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Not  have ag reed to  tha t .  

MR NKOSI :    I  wou ld  no t  have agreed to  the  cer t i f i ca te  

because there  is  a  lo t  o f  omiss ions tha t  were  no t  done on  

tha t  tes t .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  he  seems to  have been to ld  and 

what  he  seems to  have agreed to  does i t  no t  amount  to  no t  

do ing  your  job?  

MR NKOSI :    I  cannot  say  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  you  cannot  say  you canno t  say  i t  10 

because you a re  h is  successor,  you know – wou ld  i t  no t  be  

your  job  i f  you  a re  faced w i th  the  same s i tua t ion?   Would  

you not  be  de re l i c t  in  your  du ty  i f  you  d id  what  he  seems to  

have done.  

MR NKOSI :    Ja ,  i t  wou ld  have  been –  i t  wou ld  been  

tan tamount  to  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR NKOSI :    Bu t  I  do  no t  know the  reasons tha t  ac tua l l y  

compel led  [ inaud ib le  –  speak ing  s imu l taneous ly ]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  bu t  on  the  fac t  o f  i t… 20 

MR NKOSI :    On the  fac t  o f  i t  …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  wou ld  be  a  dere l i c t ion  o f  du ty  as  fa r  

as  you a re  concerned and i t  i s  no t  someth ing  tha t  you  

wou ld  do .  

MR NKOSI :    I t  is  no t  someth ing  tha t  I  wou ld  have done in  
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h is  pos i t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  yes .  

MR NKOSI :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    May I  jus t  pu t  to  the  w i tness a  

vers ion  tha t  w i l l  be  g iven by  …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  Beetge.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Dr  Ne l l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    From LMT.  10 

MR NKOSI :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Who has g iven us  an  a f f idav i t  and he 

has been re fer red  to  your  a f f idav i t  and your  comments  you  

be l ieve ,  as  you have sa id  in  9 .4  o f  your  a f f idav i t ,  i t  was 

inco r rec t  fo r  A rmscor  to  i ssue cer t i f i ca tes  fo r  l andmine  

pro tec t ion .   Dr  Ne l l  w i l l  say  be fore  the  Commiss ion  tha t  a t  

the  comple t ion  o f  the  LT –  sor ry,  the  TP2 tes t ,  Armscor  

congra tu la ted  LMT and issued cer t i f i ca tes .  That  was  before  

your  t ime,  cor rec t?  

MR NKOSI :    Yes,  cor rec t .  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.   Does tha t  g ive  you any 

reassurance  was  to  what  was  done ,  whether  i t  was good o r  

bad?  

MR NKOSI :    Congra tu la t ions  can mean anyth ing ,  

congra tu la t ion  can mean tha t  maybe thanks fo r  hav ing  
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made –  passed the  eng ineer ing  tes ts ,  see you aga in  on  the  

TP2 tha t  i s  admin is te red by  Armscor.   Congra tu la t ions  can  

bas ica l l y  mean anyth ing .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay.  

MR NKOSI :    Ja .   I t  does not  mean tha t  necessar i l y  tha t  

they have been g iven a  go  ahead tha t  you are  the  heroes  

o f  the  revo lu t ion .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t .   So you have tes t i f ied  tha t  

A rmscor  d id  i ssue a  cer t i f i ca te  desp i te  the  fac t  tha t  there  

were  shor tcomings in  the  tes t ,  how i t  was done,  as  you  10 

have ind ica ted .   Do those ce r t i f ica tes  las t  fo reve r  o r  d id  

they las t  fo r  a  l im i ted  per iod?  

MR NKOSI :    The cer t i f i ca tes ,  odd ly,  the  ac tua l l y  

subsequent ly  requested to  be  changed aga in  in  the  year  

2009.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.   So you dea l  w i th  tha t  in  your  

parag raph 10.  

MR NKOSI :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    They were  re issued in  2009.   What  I  

am rea l l y  asked fo r  i s  an  answer  to  th is  quest ion .   Does  20 

there  have –  i s  there  an  automat ic  exp i ry  o f  a  cer t i f i ca te?   

Why were  the  cer t i f i ca tes  re issued?  Why were  they no t  

jus t  cont inu ing?  

MR NKOSI :    I  am not  sure .   Maybe they p icked up there  

was an issue –  there  was an er ror  in  the  cer t i f i ca te  tha t  
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was issued in  2005 tha t  I  was no t  par ty  to .   For tunate ly,  

one o f  the  persons tha t  s t i l l  –  tha t  i ssued h is  s ignature  i s  

s t i l l  there ,  he  s t i l l  a l i ve ,  maybe he can answer  to  tha t  

quest ion  why.   But ,  my unders tand ing ,  there  was an er ror  

w i th  the  Cassp i r (? )  repor t  tha t  was s tamped on the  

cer t i f i ca te  so  they were  t ry ing  to  rec t i f y  tha t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  the  norm i s  tha t  when those –  when 

such cer t i f i ca tes  are  i ssued genera l l y,  do  they –  a re  they  

va l id  fo r  cer ta in  spec i f ied  per iods or  a re  they va l id  10 

fo rever?  

MR NKOSI :    I t  i s  a  ce r t i f i ca te  tha t  i s  va l id  –  va l id  

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Forever.  

MR NKOSI :    Ja ,  va l id  fo reve r,  bas ica l l y.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja  because i t  re la tes  to  a  pa r t i cu la r  

t ime.  

MR NKOSI :    So  one wou ld  ask  h imse l f  because i f  you s ign  

the  ce r t i f i ca te  you need to  have p roper  documents  in  f ron t  

o f  you,  wou ld  make sure  tha t  what  appears  on  tha t  20 

cer t i f i ca te  i s  genu ine  as  accord ing  to  l i ke  the  tes t ,  so 

whatever  reasons tha t  they ac tua l l y  changed,  I  do  no t  

know.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Mr  Nkos i ,  may you p lease  tu rn  to  
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page 302?   Do you have i t?   I  th ink  tha t  appears  to  be  an  

Armscor  ce r t i f i ca te  o f  p roduct  va l ida t ion .  

MR NKOSI :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I t  says  tha t  i t  cer t i f ies  tha t  the  m ine  

pro tec ted  Pat r ia  TP2 hu l l  has  been va l ida ted  aga ins t  an  8  

k i logram TNH sur rogate  landmine underneath  the  crew 

compar tment .   I t  g ives  the  tes t  number,  i t  says  i t  has  been  

ver i f ied  by  Armscor  in  accordance  w i th  tes t  p rocedure  and 

i t  g ive  the  par t i cu la r  tes t  p rocedure .  

MR NKOSI :    Cor rec t .  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And then  i t  says  –  i t  g ives  the  

cer t i f i ca te  o f  va l ida t ion  number  fo r  land mob i l i t y  

techno log ies  LMT (P ty)  L td .   I s  tha t  the  LMT tha t  you have  

been re fe r r ing  to?  

MR NKOSI :    Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    As  the  representa t i ve  o f  Pat r ia  

veh ic les .   I t  was i ssued on the  7  September  2005.  

MR NKOSI :    Okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Was tha t  the  f i rs t  cer t i f i ca te  tha t  you 

were  aware  o f  a r i s ing  f rom the  TP2  tes ts  in  2005?  20 

MR NKOSI :    I  w i l l  te l l  you now i f  –  the  f i rs t  one tha t  was  

issued was the  VO.   I f  you  tu rn  to  page 304.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    304.  

MR NKOSI :    Yes,  tha t  i s  the  chrono logy,  you s ta r t  w i th  the  

VO.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:    VO4 is  da ted  …[ in tervenes]  

MR NKOSI :    Sor ry,  303,  303,  sor ry.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    303,  r igh t?   So 303 is  da ted  the  

same date .   

MR NKOSI :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    The 7  September  2005.  

MR NKOSI :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    So  there  were  two cer t i f i ca tes  i ssued  

in  2005.   Cor rec t?  

MR NKOSI:    Yes.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes and both  o f  those cer t i f i ca tes  

you fe l t  were  wrong ly  i ssued.  

MR NKOSI :    No,  no ,  no ,  the  whee l  tes t  passed,  the  tes t  

tha t  was conducted by  Armscor.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I  see .  

MR NKOSI :    I t  passed.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay.   So was tha t  the  one  a t  page 

303?  

MR NKOSI :    Yes,  303,  tha t  i s  the  one tha t  Armscor  have  

a l l  the  necessary  in fo rmat ion .  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    So  i t  passed tha t?  

MR NKOSI :    I t  passed the  whee l  …[ in tervenes]  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t ,  bu t  the  o ther  one i t  d id  no t  

pass and ye t  Armscor  gave i t  a  cer t i f i ca te  say ing  i t  had  

passed.  
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MR NKOSI :    The  o ther  one had fa i led  the  hu l l  tes t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  

MR NKOSI :    And subsequent ly  they d id  an  eng ineer ing  

tes t  tha t  A rmscor  conver ted  to  a  TP2 tes t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay.   And  then the  next  ce r t i f i ca te 

a t  page 304 is  one issued in  September  2009,  7  September  

2009.   I s  th is  the  cer t i f i ca te  tha t  your  a f f idav i t  re fe rs  to  as  

hav ing  been re i ssued?  

MR NKOSI :    Yes bas i ca l l y  –  they bas i ca l l y  re issued the  

same two cer t i f i ca tes ,  303 and 304.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  

MR NKOSI :    So  bas ica l l y   303 now has been conver ted  to  

304,  i f  you  can page on the  document .   There  is  the  whee l  

tes t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay.  

MR NKOSI :    Ja .    

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now …[ in tervenes]  

MR NKOSI :    And  then the  302 has  been – is  the  –  ja .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t .   Now was a  fu r ther  tes t  

ac tua l l y  done by  LMT for  th is  veh ic le  be fore  the  re issu ing  20 

o f  the  cer t i f i ca te  in  2009 f rom wha t  you were  ab le  to  learn  

f rom Mr  Beetge o r  f rom the  documents  what  were  ava i lab le  

to  you?  

MR NKOSI :    There  was no fu r the r  tes t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    There  was no  tes t .  
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MR NKOSI :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    What  –  you have a  comment  on  

whethe r  i t  was acceptab le  or  no t  to  re issue a  ce r t i f i ca te  

where  there  was no fu r the r  tes t?  

MR NKOSI :    I  th ink  the  reason fo r  re issu ing  th is  s ta tement  

was apparent ly  hav ing  to  do  –  to  cor rec t  the  tes t  number.    

I f  you  can look a t  the  tes t  number  on  page 303 and 304  

they are  d i f fe ren t .   They are  t ry ing  to  a l ign  tha t  fo r  

whatever  reason.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    You are  re fe r r ing  to  the  tes t  10 

procedure  on  page [ inaud ib le  –  speak ing  s imu l taneous ly ]  

MR NKOSI :    I f  you  look a t  the  tes t  number.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Sor ry,  ho ld  on ,  Mr  Nkos i ,  p lease do 

not  ta lk  over  when I  am put t ing  a  quest ion  to  you.  

MR NKOSI :    A l r igh t ,  f ine .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Because the  Cha i r  w i l l  no t  be  to  hear  

and the  m icrophone w i l l  no t  record  i f  we are  bo th  ta lk ing  a t  

once.  

MR NKOSI :    Cor rec t . .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    So  can I  jus t  pu t  the  quest ion ,  you 20 

are  re fer r ing  on  page 302 to  the  number  DEF.  

MR NKOSI :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    2005/166 or  504.  

MR NKOSI :    Yes.   Yes,  exact ly,  so  i t  was …[ in tervenes]  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Sor ry,  wh ich  one?  



28 OCTOBER 2020 – DAY 293 
 

Page 137 of 211 
 

MR NKOSI :    Yes,  the  tes t  number  was subsequent ly  

changed to  re f lec t  tha t  one fo r  wha tever  reason.   Ja .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I  see  two numbers  on  th is  page,  Mr  

Nkos i .  

MR NKOSI :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Bo th  s ta r t  w i th  DEF 2005.  

MR NKOSI :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    The f i rs t  number  re fers  to  /166 and  

the  second to  504.   Which  one shou ld  we be look ing  a t  fo r  

your  pu rposes?  10 

MR NKOSI :    I  am spec i f i ca l l y  zooming a t  the  tes t  number,  

i f  you  can …[ in tervenes]  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  wh ich  one?  I s  i t  166?  

MR NKOSI :    The  159.   I  am look ing  page 303.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Mr  Nkos i ,  w i l l  you  no t  p lease  

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    A re  we on the  same page?  

MR NKOSI :    Yes,  I  am on page 303 and 304 now.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  I  th ink  we a re  on  302.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I  was put t ing  to  you quest ions  20 

re la t ing  to  302.  

MR NKOSI :    302 ,  cor rec t .   Okay,  ja .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay.   So on 302 wh ich  one shou ld  

we look a t?   The tes t  number  wh ich  ends in  166 or  the  tes t  

p rocedure  wh ich  ends in  504?  
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MR NKOSI :    Yes,  they changed the  tes t  number.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Sor ry,  wh ich  one is  the  tes t  number?   

I s  i t  166?  

MR NKOSI :    I t  i s  166,  yes .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t  and where  d id  they change i t?  

MR NKOSI :    Th i s  i s  the  whee l  –  th is  i s  the  hu l l  tes t ,  th is  i s  

the  hu l l  tes t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  jus t  show me where  they  

changed i t .  

MR NKOSI :    Okay.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    You sa id  they changed i t  somewhere .   

Where?  

MR NKOSI :    I f  you  look a t  page 303.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    303,  yes?  

MR NKOSI :    On the  l ine  tes t  number.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  

MR NKOSI :    Yes,  i t  i s  DEF 2005/159.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    159.  

MR NKOSI :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    So  tha t  i s  the  change …[ in te rvenes]  20 

MR NKOSI :    Tha t  i s  the  change,  yes .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    166 ins tead o f  159 tha t  shou ld  have  

been the  same? 

MR NKOSI :    No ,  i t  i s  no t  the  change.   The change –  i f  I  

may jus t  take  you  baby s teps.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  ja .   Ja .  

MR NKOSI :    Look a t  page 303 and page 304.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  I  am not  ge t t ing  to  304 ye t .  

MR NKOSI :    Yes.   Those a re ,  i f  I  may exp la in?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  

MR NKOSI :    They are  the  same – they a re  the  whee l  tes ts .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Jus t  come c loser  to  the  m ic  and ra i se  

your  vo ice  a  b i t?   Yes,  okay,  jus t  s ta r t  a f resh,  exp la in?  

MR NKOSI :    Yes.   303 and 304 a re  the  whee l  tes t s .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    So  302 we can ignore  because tha t  i s  10 

the  hu l l  tes t?  

MR NKOSI :    Yes,  tha t  i s  the  hu l l  tes t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay.  

MR NKOSI :    Tha t  i s  the  po in t  tha t  I  was t ry ing  to  make.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay.  

MR NKOSI :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    So  what  was the  prob lem wi th  303  

tha t  they needed to  change? 

MR NKOSI :    They changed  the  tes t  number  –  

un for tunate l y  I  am not  pa r ty  to  the  reasons why d id  they 20 

change the  tes t  number.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay.  

MR NKOSI :    As  you can see there  is  change on  tha t ,  i t  

says  –  say i t  i s  a  whee l ,  i t  i s  a  f ron t  whee l ,  on  304 they  

changed the  tes t  number  on  tha t .  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay.  

MR NKOSI :    Ja .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    So  i t  was …[ in tervenes]  

MR NKOSI :    Bas i ca l l y  they were  t ry ing  to  rea l ign  fo r  

whatever  reasons  tha t  I  am – tha t  I  was not  par t y  to .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay but  i t  was not  because they had  

re tes ted  the  veh ic le .  

MR NKOSI :    No,  no t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And i t  was now pass ing .  

MR NKOSI :    No.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I t  was because they wanted to  

change the  number  fo r  reasons you do not  know.  

MR NKOSI :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay.   Thank  you.  

MR NKOSI :    Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now in  your  a f f idav i t  you  have a  

lengthy  sect ion  tha t  dea ls  w i th  your  in te rac t ions w i th  Mr  

Goosen,  in te rna l  memorandum,  a  desktop  s tudy conducted 

in  2009 and a  landmine b las t  ana lys i s  in  August  2016 and  

then you go back to  the  in te rna l  memorandums.   In  fac t  20 

la te r  in te rna l  memorandums between you and Mr  Goosen  

on a  landmine pro tec t ion  issue.  

MR NKOSI :    Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now I  wou ld  l i ke  you –  you dea l  f rom 

paragraph 13.4 .  
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MR NKOSI :    Page number?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I  am g iv ing  you tha t  in  a  moment .   

Jus t  bear  w i th  me ,  i f  you  wou ld?  

CHAIRPERSON:    13 .4  i s  a t  page 20.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.   From page 20 you 

dea l  w i th  in te rna l  memo 1  and then memo 2  and then the  

a f f idav i t  goes on fo r  some pages to  dea l  w i th  a  who le  lo t  o f  

memos and so  fo r th .   

MR NKOSI :    Yes,  yes ,  yes .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I  do  no t  be l ieve ,  sub jec t  to  the 10 

Cha i r ’s  gu idance,  tha t  i t  i s  necessary  fo r  us  to  go  in to  a l l  

the  de ta i l  o f  the  memos,  they are  a l l  ava i lab le  and you  

have ana lysed fo r  the  ass is tance o f  the  Commiss ion .  

MR NKOSI :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Can you jus t  te l l  us ,  i f  you  wou ld  

p lease,  Mr  Nkos i ,  what  i s  be ing  dea l t  w i th  a t  a  very  

summary leve l?  

MR NKOSI :    Okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    What  was your  p rocess or  in te rac t ion  

w i th  Mr  Goosen?   What  d id  the  desktop  s tudy invo lve  and 20 

a l l  these memos?  What  was  the  purpose o f  these  

communica t ions?  

MR NKOSI :    Bas i ca l l y  I  be l ieve  once they rea l i sed tha t  

there  were  some f laws on the  tes ts  they t r ied  to  conduct  

o ther  desktop  s tud ies  and s imu la t ion  s tud ies  to  t ry  and 



28 OCTOBER 2020 – DAY 293 
 

Page 142 of 211 
 

move away f rom conduct ing  a  TP3 tes t  and  ac tua l l y  

c lass i f y ing  the  veh ic le  has  ac tua l l y  reached a  

manufac tur ing  base l ine .  

 So f rom 2014 Mr  Beetge came to  me,  he  was  

abso lu te l y  wor r i ed  now …[ in tervenes]  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    He was what?   Wor r ied .  

MR NKOSI :    Wor r ied .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Worr ied ,  yes? 

MR NKOSI :    Because the re  were  rumours ,  there  was a  

groundswel l  o f  ev idence tha t  there  is  manufac tur ings 10 

happen ing  ac ross  the  count ry  fo r  whatever  reason but  they  

have ac tua l l y  no t  reached the  po in t  whereby …[ in te rvenes]  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Try  and speak up a  b i t  p lease and 

p lease …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    You are  lower ing  your  vo ice .  

MR NKOSI :    Yes,  can you hear  me now? 

CHAIRPERSON:    Jus t  go  c loser  to  the  m ic  and t ry  and  

ra ise  i t .  

MR NKOSI :    Yes,  can you hear  me now?  Yes,  can you 

hear  me?  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    The more  you lean back the  more  I  do  

no t  hear  you.  

MR NKOSI :    Yes,  can you hear  me now?   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR NKOSI :    Mr  Beetge,  wh i ls t  we s t i l l  –  I  was s t i l l  h is  
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unders tudy,  he  was ac tua l l y  wor r ied  w i th  whatever  i s  

happen ing  ac ross the  count ry  when whereby the re  was a  

go-ahead be ing  g iven to  s ta r t  bu i ld ing  the  hu l l s  on  the  

veh ic le  tha t  has no t  been tes ted .    

So he was worr i ed  now tha t  you know what ,  looks  

l i ke  they are  busy bu i ld ing  the  hu l l s  bu t  we have no t  tes ted  

–  we have not  cer t i f ied  the  veh ic le .    

So tha t  i s  why I  was now busy wr i t ing  the  memo 

tha t  Ph i l l i p ,  I  s t i l l  need the  veh ic le  tes t  be fo re  you can 

dec lare  tha t  reached the  manufac tur ing  base.   We have to  10 

tes t  the  veh ic le .    

So bas i ca l l y  tha t  was tha t  because we t r ied  to  a lso  

in t roduce a  s imu la t ion  to  show tha t  the  veh ic le  i s  –  can be  

f i t  fo r  peop le  to  use but  the  RSM was go ing  to  d isappear,  

you cannot  use s imu la t ions to  cer t i f y.   So bas ica l l y  a l l  the 

communica t ions was to  ac tua l l y  t ry  to  ge t  the  veh ic le  to  

Armscor  to  tes t  be  tha t  i s  a  phase  tha t  was –  tha t  has no t  

been comple ted .   That ,  as  an  eng ineer,  as  a  South  A f r i can,  

I  cou ld  no t  le t  tha t  s l ide  because i t  i s  our  so ld ie rs ’ l i ves  

tha t  a re  ac tua l l y  invo lved.   So tha t  i s  why I  was qu i te  20 

voc i fe rous on  tha t ,  tha t  you cannot  –  no t  under  my watch .  

I t  cou ld  have happened in  2005 whereby the  TP2 

had a  lo t  o f  unanswered quest ions  bu t  on  th is  spec i f i c  one,  

because you w i l l  never  know,  i t  cou ld  my ch i ld  who is  

ac tua l l y  on  tha t  veh ic le  and then I  had g iven i t  a  go-ahead  



28 OCTOBER 2020 – DAY 293 
 

Page 144 of 211 
 

w i thout  g iv ing  i t  a  go -ahead.   So bas ica l l y  I  –  we fought ,  

together  w i th  Frans Beetge because he rea l i sed tha t  the  

t ide  now is  ac tua l l y  mov ing  towards the  r igh t  be fore  t ime.  

There  was euphor ia  and exc i tement  on  the  

manufac tur ing  be fore  we had ac tua l l y  g iven the  go-ahead  

tha t  we have tes ted  a l l  the  necessary  po in ts  to  now b less  

the  manufac tur ing  [ ind is t inc t  –  d ropp ing  vo i ce ]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Was tha t  change o f  a t t i tude maybe  

because o f  your  ro le  tha t  you were  now p lay ing  in  th is  

who le  th ing  wh ich  obv ious l y  you d id  no t  p lay  in  2005 10 

because you were  no t  there?  

MR NKOSI :    Yes,  the  ro le  now i t  w i l l  be  Phumlane  Nkos i ’s  

name tha t  had ac tua l l y  led  such is  a  c r i t i ca l  requ i rement  on  

the  RSMA s tandard  to  be  ignored so  I  cou ld  no t  a l low tha t ,  

together  w i th  A rmscor.   A rmscor  w i th  my d i v is iona l  

manager,  we s tar ted  wr i t ing  memos.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR NKOSI :    To  tes t  the  veh ic le .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR NKOSI :    Because tes t ing  the  veh ic le  cost  a  f rac t ion  o f  20 

the  en t i re  cont rac t ,  i t  was –  i t  i s  the  r igh t  th ing  to  do ,  so 

tha t  we know we have done due d i l igence as  Armscor  

employees,  as  eng ineers ,  as  South  A f r i cans.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    What  pos i t ion  does –  i s  Mr  Goosen 

s t i l l  employed by  Dene l  –  by  Armscor,  I  beg your  pardon.  
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MR NKOSI :    No,  no ,  no ,  I  th ink  th roughout  these  

in te rac t ions I  th ink  somehow he  dec ided to  leave the  

employ.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    He le f t .  

MR NKOSI :    Ja ,  he  le f t  the  company I  th ink  towards the 

end o f  2017 fo r  whatever  reasons,  I  do  no t  know.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay.   Ja ,  jus t  t ry  and – i f  you can,  

jus t  t ry  and d i rec t  your  answer  to  the  spec i f i c  quest i on .   My 

quest ion  was not  why he le f t  bu t  I  sa id  i s  he  s t i l l  there .  

MR NKOSI :    Yes.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    So  no.  

MR NKOSI :    Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    So  he has  res igned.   What  pos i t ion  

be fore  he  res igned d id  he  occupy when you were  dea l ing  

w i th  h im in  these meet ings and the  memos tha t  a re  

re fer red  to  in  your  a f f idav i t?  

MR NKOSI :    He was the  programme manager  fo r  the  

programme [ ind is t inc t  –  d ropp ing  vo ice ]  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay.   And i f  I  unders tood your  

ev idence ear l ie r  cor rec t l y,  bu t  p lease co r rec t  me i f  I  am 20 

wrong,  these communica t ions suggested to  you tha t  there  

were  a t tempts  to  t ry  and f i x  up  a  prob lem tha t  had had 

a l ready s ta r ted  as  fa r  back and 2005? 

MR NKOSI :    Yes,  they busy t ry ing  to  amel io ra te  tha t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    To  amel io ra te  i t?  
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MR NKOSI :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  

MR NKOSI:    But  pu t t ing  th ings tha t  a re  no t  sc ien t i f i ca l l y  

p roven to  ac tua l l y  p rov ide  sa fe ty  fo r  the  so ld ie rs .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Try  and keep  your  vo lume up p lease,  

Mr  Nkos i .  

MR NKOSI :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Jus t  l i ke  I  am keep ing  my vo lume up.   

Try  and keep i t  up ,  somet imes you  s tar t  loud and then you  

s ink  down.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  your  vo i ce  goes down,  Mr  Nkos i .   

So maybe you shou ld  keep much c loser  to  the  m ic  tha t  

wou ld  be  normal .  

MR NKOSI :    Tha t  i s  f ine ,  I  w i l l  do  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja  because I  th ink  you eas i l y  s low down 

and then you become,  your  vo i ce  becomes …[ in te rvenes]  

MR NKOSI :    Okay,  can you put  tha t  quest ion  aga in?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay.   What  pos i t ion  d id  he  ho ld  a t  

the  t ime?  You sa id  programme manager.  

MR NKOSI :    Cor rec t .  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Was he  t ry ing  to  f i x  up  prob lems wi th  

the  TP2 ce r t i f i ca tes  or  was he  t ry ing  to  ge t  a  TP3 

cer t i f i ca te  a t  tha t  s tage?  

MR NKOSI :    I  th ink  he  was t ry ing  to  ge t  a  TP3 cer t i f i ca te 

a t  tha t  s tage w i thout  ac tua l l y  tes t i ng  the  veh ic le .  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:    Wi thout  tes t i ng  the  veh ic le?  

MR NKOSI :    Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Why do you say you th ink  tha t  i s  the  

case?  

MR NKOSI :    I t  i s  my op in ion  because they were  

…[ in tervenes]  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I t  i s  based on what?  

MR NKOSI :    I t  i s  based on what  has been happen ing  on  

Dene l  when the re  was apparent ly  manufac tu r ing  base l ine  

tha t  has been reached tha t  we are  no t  fami l ia r  to .  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now lega l l y  i s  i t  poss ib le  to  –  sor ry,  

in  fac t  we have dea l t  w i th  tha t .   Sor ry,  Cha i r,  may I  jus t  

rephrase i t?   Has Dene l  in  fac t  been manufac tu r ing  these 

veh ic les  w i thout  a  TP3 cer t i f i ca te?  

MR NKOSI :    My invo lvement  i s  la rge ly  on  the  landmine  

pro tec t ion .   I f  I  may jus t  answer  i t  l i ke  tha t .   There  has no t  

been any TP3 tes t  tha t  has  been done.   So you are  cor rec t  

tha t  Dene l  has been manufac tur ing  veh ic les  w i thou t  a  TP3 

tes t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    The f i x ing  o f  a  p rob lem tha t  wou ld  have  20 

occur red  or  p rob lems tha t  had occur red  in  2005,  wou ld  tha t  

be  a  bas i s  to  suspect  tha t  maybe  there  was an a t tempt  to  

concea l  someth ing  or  tha t  wou ld  be  go ing  too  fa r?  

MR NKOSI :    Yes,  I  w i l l  be  go ing  too  fa r,  I  am not  sure .  

CHAIRPERSON:    You are  no t  sure .  
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MR NKOSI :    Yes,  I  am not  sure .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  bu t  cer ta in ly  i t  was an a t tempt  to  

f i x  the  prob lem whether  cor rec t l y  o r  no t  cor rec t l y  m ight  be  

another  i ssue.  

MR NKOSI :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now when i t  –  and in  fac t  your  

a f f idav i t  records  a lso  your  conf i rmat ion  now tha t  Dene l  has 

been –  has s ta r ted  manufac tur ing  p la t fo rm hu l l s .  

MR NKOSI :    Yes.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    You re fer  to  DLS,  i s  tha t  Dene l  Land  

Systems?  Are  they manufac tu r ing  the  hu l l s?  

MR NKOSI :    That  i s  what  I  heard ,  yes .   That  i s  what  

ac tua l l y  spur red  Fran Beetge to  te l l  me tha t  you know 

what ,  you cannot  le t  th is  th ing  to  happen because I  am jus t  

about  to  re t i re ,  i t  cannot  be  –  they are  no t  supposed to  be  

manufac tur ing  the  hu l l  a t  th is  po in t  be fore  we ac tua l l y  g ive  

them a  go-ahead  by  tes t ing  the  veh ic le ,  by  cer t i f y ing  the  

veh ic le  to  [ ind is t i nc t  –  d ropp ing  vo ice ]  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Had  they a l ready  s ta r ted  20 

manufac tur ing  a t  the  t ime tha t  he  le f t?  

MR NKOSI :    Bas i ca l l y  the re  was a  groundswel l  o f  

ev idence tha t  …[ in tervenes]  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Sor ry,  had they  s ta r ted  

manufac tur ing?  
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MR NKOSI :    I  am not  sure .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:     You are  no t  sure .  

MR NKOSI :    Ja .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you.   And as  we s i t  o r  s tand  

here  today has there  ye t  been a  TP3 ce r t i f i ca te  i ssued fo r  

these veh ic les?  

MR NKOSI :    Nope.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And you re fer  –  i f  I  can  take  you in  

your  a f f idav i t  to  page 27.   Cou ld  you read fo r  the  Cha i r  

p lease your  paragraph 14.6?  In  fac t ,  sor ry,  14 .5  to  the 10 

end.  

MR NKOSI :    “ In  shor t ,  TP3 tes t  i s  a  fundamenta l  tes t ,  i t  i s   

fundamenta l  to  tes t  and eva lua te  a l l  des ign  changes  

imp lemented s ince  the  s t ruc tu ra l  TP2 p la t fo rm tes ts  

and to  assess secondary  f ragmenta t ion  r i sks  and  

reparab i l i t y. ”  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  ca r ry  on? 

MR NKOSI :    The  RSMA s tandard  TP3 tes t  on  the  sect ion   

var ian t  wou ld  address the  cr i t i ca l  aspects  o f  

eva lua t ing  the  assessed wors t  case scenar io  fo r  20 

occupant  surv ivab i l i t y  o f  the  Hoefys te r  fami ly  o f  

veh ic les  in  o rder  to  secure  the  best  resu l ts  fo r  the  

SANDF and the  fu tu re  users  and  opera to rs  o f  the  

Badger  sys tems.   Last ly ,  i t  w i l l  ensure  compl iance  

w i th  th is  RSMA s tandard  as  requ i red  by  the  
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SANDF. ”  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Car ry  on?  

MR NKOSI :    “A  TP3 tes t  wh ich  was not  addressed  on the   

sys tem spec i f i ca t ion  document ,  A rmscor  has  

commi t ted  tha t  they w i l l  a l loca te  funds in  o rde r  to  

conducts  these tes ts .   In  November  2013 Dene l  

commi t ted  in  comply ing  w i th  the  request  to  conduct  

TP3 tes t ing  on  th is  veh ic le . ”  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And your  las t  sentence?  

MR NKOSI :    Yes.  10 

“ I  am aware  tha t  Dene l  has s ta r ted  a  manufac ture  

p la t fo rm hu l l s  desp i te  the  fac t  tha t  the  veh ic les  

have not  been ce r t i f ied  in  the  TP3 tes t . ”  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Can you g ive  jus t  in  a  sentence 

maybe to  the  Cha i r  you r  fee l ing  as  a  c i t i zen ,  as  you put  i t  

ear l ie r ,  and as  a  h igh l y  qua l i f ied  mechan ica l  eng ineer  

respons ib le  fo r  impor tan t  i ssues i n  Armscor ,  can you jus t  

g ive  you ove ra l l  conc lus ion  as  to  how you fee l  about  th is  

i ssue re la t ing  to  the  cer t i f i ca t ion  o f  these veh ic les?  

MR NKOSI :    Yes,  fo r  me the  resu l ts  o f  the  f igh t  tha t  20 

s ta r ted  on  the  memos on 2005  cu lm inated in  paragraph  

14.7  where  Dene l  w i th  the  ass i s tance o f  DVS Veh ic les  

Systems they acknowledged the  impor tance o f  th i s  tes t  and 

they had ac tua l l y  pu t  a  p lan  in  p lace  to  make sure  tha t  th is  

veh ic le  i s  ac tua l l y  tes ted  but  now the  quest ion  remains ,  
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w i th  a l l  these hu l l s  tha t  have been  manufac tured,  what  w i l l  

happen i f  the  veh ic le  fa i l s?   But  i f  i t  passes then everyone 

is  happy and there  w i l l  no t  be  issues but  i t  i s  impor tan t  to  

ac tua l l y  tes t .  

 As  a  South  A f r i can ho ld ing  th is  pos i t ion  tha t  I  am 

ho ld ing ,  I  wou ld  no t  have a l lowed th is  th ing  to  s l ide  w i thout  

p roper  tes ts  be ing  conducted.   Le t  a lone whatever  

happened in  2005 w i th  the  TP2 tes t  wh ich  was – i t  i s  

impor tan t  to  b r i ng  the  wor ld -de f ined base l ine  to  be  tes ted  

because the  veh ic les  [ ind is t inc t  –  d ropp ing  vo i ce ]  l i ke  the  10 

SANDF.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Jus t  ask  a  f ina l  quest ion  on  the  same 

top ic .   You suggested ear l ie r  tha t  some o f  these changes  

or  e f fo r ts  tha t  were  be ing  made,  fo r  example ,  the  change in  

a  cer t i f i ca te  tes t  number  and in  some o f  the  e f fo r t s  to  re -

programme th ings to  see i f  they  cou ld  ach ieve progress in  

re la t ion  to  a  cer t i f i ca t ion .   From a  prac t ica l  po in t  o f  v iew  

what  –  are  there  s ign i f i can t  imp l ica t ions tha t  wou ld  f low,  i f  

i t  were  t rue ,  tha t  peop le  a re  man ipu la t ing  th ings,  chang ing  

th ings i nappropr ia te ly  o r  i s  i t  jus t  s imp ly  a  quest ion  o f  20 

paperwork  and tes t  number  no t  rea l l y  mat te r ing?  

MR NKOSI :    I  am not  a t  l iber ty  to  compla in  –  to  comment  

on  the  imp l ica t ions on  peop le  who are  t ry ing  to  do  th is  o r  

do  tha t  bu t  what  I  can ac tua l l y  comment  on  are  the  

impor tance o f  the  tes t .  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:    Impor tance o f  a  tes t .  

MR NKOSI :    Yes,  whether  peop le  were  t ry ing  to  h ide  o r  

no t ,  i t  i s  no t  my bus iness to  compare .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay.  

MR NKOSI :    As  an  RSMA s tandard  o f f i ce r,  as  a  P lus  

Spec ia l i s t  we have to  conduct  tha t  tes t  be fore  we g i ve  i t  to  

our  use rs .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t .   Cha i r,  we have noth ing  

fu r the r,  thank you .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you,  Mr  Nkos i ,  fo r  coming to  10 

ass is t  the  Commiss ion ,  i f  we need  you to  come back and  

ass is t  us  you w i l l  be  asked but  thank you very  much,  you 

are  now excused.  

MR NKOSI :    Thank you.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r,  may we now tu rn  

to  ca l l ,  w i th  your  leave,  the  next  w i tness?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Who is  Mr  Ml ipha.   Do you  want  to  

take  a  shor t  ad journment  wh i le…? 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay,  le t  me take a  f i ve  m inutes  20 

ad journment  wh i l e  every th ing  is  be ing  p repared.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    We ad journ .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 
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CHAIRPERSON:    A re  you ready Mr  Kennedy?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you,  yes  we are  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    So wi th  your  leave may we  ca l l  as  

the  next  w i tness  Mr  Xo lan i  Ml ipha,  fo r  the  t ransc r ibe rs ’ 

benef i t  i t  i s  M- l - i -p -h -a ,  may he then be sworn  in?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay wh ich  bund le?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Chai r  i t  i s  Dene l  Bund le  02  and i t  i s  

Exh ib i t  W12.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay p lease  admin is te r  the  oa th  or  10 

a f f i rmat ion .  

REGISTRAR:   Please s ta te  your  fu l l  names fo r  the  record?  

MR MLIPHA:   Xo lan i  L inco ln  Ml ipha.  

REGISTRAR:   Do you have any  ob jec t ions to  tak ing  the  

prescr ibed oath?  

MR MLIPHA:    I  do  no t .  

REGISTRAR:   Do you cons ider  the  oa th  to  be  b ind ing  on  

your  consc ience?  

MR MLIPHA:   Yes I  do .  

REGISTRAR:   Do you swear  tha t  the  ev idence you w i l l  20 

g ive  w i l l  be  the  t ru th ,  the  who le  t ru th  and noth ing  e lse  bu t  

the  t ru th ,  i f  so  p lease ra ise  your  r i gh t  hand and say  so  he lp  

me God.  

MR MLIPHA:    So he lp  me God.  

XOLANI  LINCOLN MLIPHA:   [duly  sworn,  s tates ]  
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CHAIRPERSON:    You may be sea ted.   Oh Mr  Kennedy th is  

i s  the  w i tness who made a  request?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes tha t  has been reso lved  Cha i r,  I  

have exp la ined  the  pos i t ion  to  the  w i tness and  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    And he unders tands?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    He unders tands the  s i tua t ion  and w i l l  

p roceed,  thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t ,  we apprec ia te  i f  you  

unders tand Mr  Ml ipha.  10 

MR MLIPHA:    Yes Cha i r  thank you .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Good a f te rnoon Mr  Ml ipha.  

MR MLIPHA:    Good a f te rnoon Mr  Kennedy.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Mr  Ml ipha may I  jus t  ask  you to  look  

towards the  Cha i r,  ra ther  than me,  even though I  am go ing  

to  be  pu t t ing  mos t  o f  the  quest ions  and t r y  and keep  up the  

vo lume o f  your  vo ice  and t ry  to  be  c lear  and very  br ie f  i f  

you  may.  

MR MLIPHA:    Unders tood.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you.   May I  jus t  fo r  the  reco rd  

conf i rm wi th  you  is  i t  cor rec t  tha t  you have s igned an 

a f f idav i t  a t  the  request  o f  the  Commiss ion?  

MR MLIPHA:    That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    May I  take  you in  the  bund le  tha t  i s  
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in  f ron t  o f  you,  tha t  i s  Dene l  Bund le  02 ,  Exh ib i t  W12,  there  

is  a  s ta tement ,  i t  i s  ca l led  a  s ta tement ,  i f  I  may ask  you to  

look  a t  the  top  le f t  hand corner  o f  each page fo r  the  page  

number,  you see tha t .  

MR MLIPHA:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    The page number  on  the  f i rs t  page o f  

your  s ta tement  ends in  the  d ig i t s  004.  

MR MLIPHA:    Unders tood.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Bu t  we are  no t  go ing  to  use the  

zeros ,  we w i l l  jus t  ca l l  i t  four.  10 

MR MLIPHA:    Unders tood.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    You conf i rm tha t  th is  i s  the  beg inn ing  

o f  the  a f f idav i t  tha t  you s igned?  

MR MLIPHA:    I  do .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Can you tu rn  to  page 42.  

MR MLIPHA:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I s  tha t  your  s ignature  above your  

name? 

MR MLIPHA:    That ’s  co r rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And you s igned tha t  on  the  16 t h  o f  20 

October  in  f ron t  o f  a  Commiss ioner  o f  Oaths .  

MR MLIPHA:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I s  i t  cor rec t  tha t  you have been 

th rough th is  a f f idav i t  and you  are  sa t is f ied  tha t  the  

contents  a re  t rue  and cor rec t?  
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MR MLIPHA:   That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i r.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you.   Cha i r  may we then ask  

fo rmal ly  fo r  the  admiss ion  o f  th is  a f f idav i t  w i th  i t s  

annexures,  Dene l  Bund le  02 ,  Exh ib i t  W12 the  a f f idav i t  o f  

Mr  Ml ipha.  

CHAIRPERSON:    The s ta tement /a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  Xo lan i  

Ml ipha s ta r t ing  a t  page 4  i s  admi t ted  as  Exh ib i t  W12.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you Cha i r,  may I  then proceed?  

CHAIRPERSON:    You may p roceed.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you.   Mr  Ml ipha your  a f f idav i t  10 

is  ve ry  he lp fu l  in  tha t  i t  g ives  a  lo t  o f  c la r i t y  and deta i l ,  I  

am go ing  to  t ry  in  the  in te res ts  o f  t ime and a lso  to  avo id  

unnecessary  re fe rence to  de ta i l  to  focus jus t  on  pa r t i cu la r  

a reas w i th  the  Cha i r ’s  leave and sub jec t  to  h is  gu idance  

may I  take  the  w i tness jus t  very  br ie f l y  th rough h is  

background.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    His  pro fess iona l  background and h is  

employment  background.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you Cha i r.    Mr  Ml ipha you are  20 

a  mechan ica l  eng ineer  by  p ro fess ion?  

MR MLIPHA:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    You ho ld  as  I  unders tand a  na t iona l  

d ip loma in  mechan ica l  eng ineer ing .  

MR MLIPHA:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i r.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:    And you o r ig ina l l y  worked fo r  

Naschem.  

MR MLIPHA:    Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And Naschem f rom there  you moved  

to  DLS to  Dene l  Land Systems.  

MR MLIPHA:    Cor rec t  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    When was  tha t  tha t  you moved to  

DLS? 

MR MLIPHA:    I t  was in  2004,  r igh t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t ,  and how long d id  you s tay  10 

there?  

MR MLIPHA:    I  s tayed there  un t i l  2008 end o f  yea r,  

December.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And where  d id  you go f rom the re?  

MR MLIPHA:    I  jo ined Armscor.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And is  tha t  s t i l l  your  cur ren t  

employer?  

MR MLIPHA:    That ’s  co r rec t  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    So  you jo ined when,  in  January  

2009?  20 

MR MLIPHA:    That  i s  r igh t ,  on  the  5 t h .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And what  i s  your  cu r ren t  job  t i t le  at  

A rmscor?   

MR MLIPHA:    Sys tems Eng ineer.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    When you were  s t i l l  a t  DLS between  
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2004 and 2008 d id  any o f  your  du t ies  and funct ions invo l ve  

the  Hoefys ter  p ro jec t?  

MR MLIPHA:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Jus t  in  a  sen tence or  two p lease jus t  

be  ve ry  br i e f ,  exp la in  what  sor t  o f  ro le  you p layed in  

re la t ion  to  the  Hoefys te r  Pro jec t .  

MR MLIPHA:    A t  Dene l  I  was pa r t  o f  the  compi la t ion  team,  

I  was work ing  on  the  ammuni t ion  segment  where  we  

prepared the  o f fe r  to  submi t  to  Armscor  and on beha l f  o f  

Dene l  to  do  the  j ob .  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Am I  r igh t  in  assuming tha t  the  

ammuni t ion  segment  i s  d i f fe ren t  f rom the  hu l l  e lement  o f  

these veh ic les?  

MR MLIPHA:    Yes i t  i s  d i f fe ren t ,  cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Were  you  par t  o f  the  negot ia t ing  

team f rom Dene l  in  re la t ion  to  the  cont rac t  fo r  the  pro jec t  

Hoefys ter  be ing  s igned in  2007?  

MR MLIPHA:    No .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay,  now jus t  te l l  us  what  in  very  

br ie f  te rms your  ro le  a t  A rmscor  now in  your  cur ren t  20 

capac i ty?  

MR MLIPHA:    Cha i r  my ro le  i s  to  do  the  sys tems 

eng ineer ing  work  on  beha l f  o f  A rmscor  and tha t  bas i ca l l y  

en ta i l s  check ing  a l l  the  ver i f i ca t ion  aga ins t  each  

requ i rement  tha t  the  cont rac t  has requested f rom Dene l  as  
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the  cont rac ted  agency,  so  I  ensure  tha t  requ i rements  are  

met  and I  check tha t  i t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And th is  i s  the  cont rac t  tha t  was 

awarded by  A rmscor  to  Dene l  in  what  year?  

MR MLIPHA:    In  2007 i f  I  am not  m is taken.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now in  your  a f f idav i t  you re fer,  and  

here  Cha i r  may I  jus t  re fe r  to  the  page number,  in  your  

a f f idav i t  Mr  Ml ipha you dea l  a t  page 12 w i th  two s tages,  

two phases ra the r  fo r  the  Hoefys ter  Pro jec t ,  o r  Hoefys te r  

Cont rac t  I  beg your  pa rdon.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    A t  what  page Mr  Kennedy?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    12.  

CHAIRPERSON:    12 ,  okay.  

MR MLIPHA:    Page 12.   Yes Mr  Cha i r?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And you d is t ingu ish  be tween two 

phases,  you say  tha t  the  Hoefys ter  cont rac t  was  d iv ided  

in to  two phases,  the  deve lopment  phase and the  

product ion  phase ,  jus t  in  non- techn ica l  te rms i f  you a re  

ab le  to  jus t  exp la in  b r ie f l y  the  d i f fe rence between the  two,  

what  i s  the  deve lopment  phase?  20 

MR MLIPHA:    Cha i r  deve lopment  phase wou ld  en ta i l  work  

tha t  wou ld  be  done to  rea l l y  s ta r t  a t  t imes f rom scra tch ,  a t  

t imes not  f rom scra t ch  as  you have heard  tha t  the  veh ic le  

was sourced f rom a  d i f fe ren t  count ry,  f rom a  d i f fe ren t  

company and we  wou ld  make i t  su i tab le  fo r  South  A f r i can  
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needs,  tha t  i s  deve lopment  work  and then the  –  th is  o ther  

phase,  tha t  i s  the  deve lopment  phase,  the  o ther  phase is  

the  product ion  phase where  now what  has been conf i rmed 

th rough deve lopment ,  the  requ i rements  tha t  have been 

made are  now produc ing  many numbers  o f  tha t  pa r t i cu la r  

p roduct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:     And the  second phase?  

MR MLIPHA:    Apo log ise  Mr  Kennedy,  I  thought  –  yes 

second phase wou ld  then be . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I s  the  product ion  phase,  what  s tage  10 

is  the  pro jec t  a t ,  a t  the  moment?  

MR MLIPHA:    A t  the  moment  we are  s t i l l  i n  the  

deve lopment  phase Cha i r  because we have not  ob ta ined  

the  base l ine  tha t  says deve lopment  i s  comple ted .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And what  i s  requ i red  to  ach ieve tha t  

base l ine  s t i l l ?  

MR MLIPHA:  Cha i r  what  i s  requ i red  is  to  ob ta in  a  base l ine  

tha t  i s  re fe r red  to  as  the  product  base l ine ,  abbrev ia ted  as  

PBL.    

ADV KENNEDY SC:    That ’s  a  PDM? 20 

MR MLIPHA:    PBL,  Papa,  Bravo,  L ima,  PBL.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    PBL,  I  beg  your  pa rdon,  now PBL is  

tha t  spec i f ied  anywhere  as  to  what  i t  requ i res?  

MR MLIPHA:    I t  wou ld  be  –  i t  i s  spec i f ied  Cha i r  yes .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And where  wou ld  one f ind  tha t  be ing  
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spec i f ied?  

MR MLIPHA:    Obv ious ly  in  the  cont rac t  i t  i s  a lso  spec i f ied  

Cha i r  bu t  a lso  in  accordance  w i th  the  es tab l i shed 

eng ineer ing  s tandards tha t  de f in i t ion  wou ld  be  g i ven.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t ,  i f  I  can  take  you in  your  

a f f idav i t  to  page 16,  one s ix .  

MR MLIPHA:    I  am there  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    You re fer  in  parag raph 11 to  p roducts  

base l ine ,  i s  tha t  the  PBL concept  tha t  you were  re fe r r ing  to  

ear l ie r?  10 

MR MLIPHA:    That ’s  co r rec t  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Won ’ t  you  p lease read out  to  the  

Cha i r  what  you say in  paragraph 11.1?  

MR MLIPHA:    Apo log ies  Mr  Kennedy,  11 .1?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Sor ry,  we are  page 19,  parag raph 11.  

MR MLIPHA:    Okay,  I  w i l l  read.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I t  fo l lows the  f i rs t  l i ne  o f  paragraph  

11.  

MR MLIPHA:    Yes I  w i l l  read.  

“The  product  base l ine  is  an  approved se t  o f  da ta  20 

i tems,  t yp ica l l y  t he  p roduct  spec i f i ca t ion ,  in teg ra ted  

suppor t  p lan ,  aud i t  repor ts  and resu l ts  o f  rev iews ,  

wh ich  conso l ida tes  and documents  the  resu l t s  o f  

the  des ign  and deve lopment  phase. ”    

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you.    Now the  –  am I  r igh t  in  
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unders tand ing  tha t  the  product  base l ine ,  the  PBL,  i s  jus t  

one o f  var ious base l ines tha t  have to  be  sa t is f ied ,  i f  we 

look on  the  same page above the  product  base l ine  there ’s  

parag raph 10,  there ’s  a l loca ted  base l ine .  

MR MLIPHA:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And then be low paragraph 11 you w i l l  

see  12,  manufac tur ing  base l ine .  

MR MLIPHA:    Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I f  we page backwards take  one page 

back,  we w i l l  see  a lso  tha t  there  are  two o ther  base l ines,  10 

parag raph 8 ,  a  requ i rements  base l ine  an  RBL,  and a  

funct iona l  base l ine ,  FBL.  

MR MLIPHA:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i r.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And you have he lp fu l l y  exp la ined 

what  each o f  these te rms means.    Now may I  take  you 

aga in  –  I  am sor ry  Cha i r  –  yes page 14,  paragraph 5 ,  i t  

dea ls  w i th  the  sys tems acqu is i t ion  management  p rocess  

and you say in  pa rag raph 5 .1 :  

“A t  A rmscor  the  sys tems acqu is i t ion  management  

p rocess is  governed th rough the  DAP 1000 po l i cy. ”  20 

And you have a t tached a  copy o f  tha t ,  as  one  o f  the  

annexures,  wh ich  is  the  SANDF s tandard  fo r  p rogramme 

base l ines du r ing  the  sys tem acqu is i t ion  management  

p rocess.  

MR MLIPHA:    That ’s  co r rec t  Cha i r.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:    SANDF in  th is  contex t  –  cor rec t  me i f  

I ’m  wrong –  I  unders tand is  the  customer  in  the  –  u l t imate  

customer  in  the  Hoefys ter  Pro jec t?  

MR MLIPHA:    Abso lu te l y  cor rec t  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    So i t  i s  A rmscor ’s  cus tomer,  cor rec t?  

MR MLIPHA:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Bu t  you are  in  tu rn  procu r ing  these 

i tems f rom Dene l?  

MR MLIPHA:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Bu t  the  SANDF lays  down a  DAP1000 10 

po l i cy,  be ing  the i r  s tandard .    How is  tha t  used,  what  i s  

tha t  meant  to  ach ieve and how is  tha t  used? 

MR MLIPHA:    Cha i r  tha t  po l i cy  de f ines and prov ides  

gu ide l ines  as  to  how the  acqu is i t ion  i s  to  be  executed  

w i th in  the  de fence,  par t i cu la r ly  our  de fence indust ry.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t ,  and  you then se t  ou t  some 

deta i l  about  m i les tones,  phases  and then you get  the  

pro jec t  base l ines .    We a re  go ing  to  be  look ing  spec i f i ca l l y  

aga in  in  a  moment  a t  the  product  base l ine ,  the  PBL 

e lement   tha t  i s  one o f  these var ious base l ines,  i s  that  20 

regu la ted  by   the  SANDF DAP1000 po l i cy?  

MR MLIPHA:    Cha i r  the  po l i cy  c i tes  o ther  s tandards,  so  

the  next  app l i cab le  document  tha t  i t  c i tes  i s  the  RSA 

Mi l i ta ry  S tandard  Number  3 .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I s  tha t  re fe r red  to  in  your  paragraph  
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5 .1  page 14?  

MR MLIPHA:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    So am I  r igh t  in  unders tand there  are  

–  there  i s  a  po l i cy  together  w i th  o ther  s tandards and they  

inc lude the  S tandard  3 ,  the  RSA mi l i ta ry  s tandard  3  tha t  

you re fer red  to?  

MR MLIPHA:    Abso lu te ly.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t ,  I  in te r rup ted  you,  and how 

does the  PDL,  does tha t  re la te  to  the  s tandard ,  Mi l  

S tandard  3  s tandard  o r  what?  10 

MR MLIPHA:    Yes Cha i r  PDL is  re fe rence a re  the  same as 

S tandard  3  as  one o f  the  base l ines tha t  have  to  be  

ach ieved as  par t  o f  do ing  p ro jec ts  acqu is i t ion .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   R igh t .   Now I  wou ld  l i ke  to  go  back to  

the  idea o f  the  PBL and you –  take  you to  page 20  o f  your  

a f f idav i t .  

MR MLIPHA:    Page 20,  yes .   I  am there  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Paragraph 15 is  headed  DLS’s  

ta i lo red  sys tem acqu is i t ion  management  p rocess lead ing  to  

increased r i sk  fo r  A rmscor.    Now before  we get  to  the  r i sk  20 

fo r  Armscor  can  you jus t  exp la in  to  us  p lease what  the 

ta i lo red  e lement  i s  o f  th is .   Who ta i lo red  what  and why? 

MR MLIPHA:    Cha i r  s temming f rom RSA Standard  3  i t  

s ta tes  tha t  a  con t rac to r,  o r  anyone,  whoever  i s  do ing  the  

job ,  they are  a l lowed to  ta i lo r,  they  may ta i lo r.   In  th is  
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ins tance the  cont rac t  a l lowed and they ta i lo red  fo r  a  PBLA,  

le t  me ca l l  i t  tha t  way and i t  i s  spec i f ied  l i ke  tha t  in  the 

cont rac t ,  so  tha t  i s  what  was ta i lo red .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Jus t  g ive  us  tha t  aga in ,  what  PB? 

MR MLIPHA:    PBLA.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   PBLA?  

MR MLIPHA:    Papa,  Bravo,  L ima,  A lpha.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t ,  and what  does tha t  s tand fo r?  

MR MLIPHA:    I t  s tands fo r  t hey  ca l l  i t  –  i t  was  a  r i sk  

reduct ion  be fo re  the  au thent ic  PBL tha t  Armscor  wou ld  10 

requ i re .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  th ink  Mr  Kennedy wanted to  what  P 

s tands fo r  and what  L and A s tand fo r,  i sn ’ t  i t  Mr  Kennedy? 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I  d id  yes thank you Cha i r.  

MR MLIPHA:    Apo logy Cha i r,  P s tands fo r  Product ,  B  

s tands –  B  and L s tands fo r  base l i ne .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And the  A ,  so  i t  i s  the  same PBL we  

were  ta lk ing  abou t  ear l ie r?  

MR MLIPHA:    Yes Mr  Cha i r,  i t  i s  the  same PBL we were  

ta lk ing  about  i t  i s  jus t  now th is  i s  a  ta i lo red  one.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay,  now . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    And the  A?  

MR MLIPHA:    The A is  jus t  a  subscr ip t  tha t  they –  the  A is  

a  subscr ip t  tha t  was prov ided to  d i f fe ren t ia te  i t  f rom the  

one tha t  we wou ld  want  as  Armscor,  they ca l l  t ha t  one 
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PBL1.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now was a  PBL spec i f ied  by  A rmscor  

be fore  i t  was ta i lo red?  

MR MLIPHA:    Cha i r  I  wou ld  say yes because RSA 

Standard  3  i s  an  app l i cab le  document  as  par t  o f  th is  

cont rac t  and one is  supposed to  do  acqu is i t ion  go ing  

th rough a l l  these  base l ines yes,  though one may ta i lo r  o f  

course .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  now the  cont rac to r  w i th  whom 10 

you cont rac ted  a t  A rmscor  o r  our  co l leagues d id  i s  DLS? 

MR MLIPHA:    Cor rec t  cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now is  i t  no rmal  and permiss ib le  fo r  

cont rac tors  to  ta i lo r  a  p rocess re la t ing  to  the  PBL e lement?  

MR MLIPHA:    Yes i t  i s  permiss ib le  I  suppose i t  i s  no t  on l y  

l im i ted  to  a  PBL as the  cont rac t  a lso  d id  no t  jus t  l im i t  the 

ta i lo r ing  to  PBL,  there  are  o the r  base l ines,  ADL,  tha t  were  

a lso  ta i lo red ,  they ta i lo red  yes Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And to  what  ex ten t  a re  cont rac tors  

a l lowed to  ta i lo r  these i tems such  as  a  PBL,  d id  they have  20 

to  comply  w i th  m in imum standards  or  can they – i s  the  sky  

the  l im i t  in  re la t ion  to  how they can  ta i lo r?  

MR MLIPHA:    Cha i r  there  i s  no  prescr ibed way o f  ta i lo r ing  

bu t  I  wou ld  say i t  goes w i thout  m isunders tand ing  tha t  r i sk  

i s  par t  o f  ta i lo r ing  tha t  one must  address f i rs t l y.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:    So  the  PBL tha t  i s  la id  down in  the  

Mi l  3  spec i f i ca t ion  is  the  s tandard  genera l l y  app l i cab le  one  

but  tha t  may be  ta i lo red  by  a  par t i cu la r  cont rac tor  f rom 

t ime to  t ime? 

MR MLIPHA:    Correc t  Cha i r.     

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And when a  cont rac tor  such  as  DLS  

does ta i lo r  the  PBL is  tha t  sub jec t  to  approva l  by  Armscor?  

MR MLIPHA:    Yes Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    So  a  cont rac tor  i s  no t  a t  la rge  to  

s imp ly  ta i lo r  un i la te ra l l y?  10 

MR MLIPHA:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i r  o f  course  i t  wou ld  have 

to  be  accepted.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Sor ry  Cha i r  i f  I  may have a  moment .   

Now in  re la t ion  to  the  Hoefys ter  p ro jec t  and the  cont rac t  

be tween Dene l  Land Systems and  Armscor  has there  in  fac t  

been a  ta i lo r ing  tha t  has been done? 

MR MLIPHA:    Yes there  has been yes.   Yes Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And was tha t  done w i th  the  

permiss ion  o f  A rmscor?  

MR MLIPHA:    Yes Cha i r.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Can I  take  you in  your  a f f idav i t  i f  you  

can tu rn  p lease to  page 20.  

MR MLIPHA:    I  am there  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    You say in  your  a f f idav i t ,  para  15 .1 :  

“DLS ta i lo red  the  process to  the i r  approach.   
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Numerous engagements  w i th  DLS  ensued where  i t  

was a t tempted to  h igh l igh t  the  r i sks  assoc ia ted  w i th  

the  ta i lo red  approach. ”  

And then you say :  

“An ex t rac t  o f  the  DLS sys tems eng ineer ing  maste r  

schedu le ,  the  SEMS which  fo rms o f  the  cont rac t  

h igh l igh ts  how the  acqu is i t ion  process w i l l  be  

ta i lo red  dur ing  the  pro jec t  execut ion . ”  

And then you re fer  to  an  annexure ,  and in  pa r t i cu la r  

spec i f i c  pages,  can you jus t  te l l  the  Cha i r  p lease what  i s  10 

the  SEMS of  DLS  invo lved?  

MR MLIPHA:    Cha i r  th is  SEMS,  Systems Eng ineer ing  

Master  Schedu le  i s  a  document  where  the  cont rac to r  p lans 

a t  what  po in t  they wou ld  do  eng ineer ing  ac t iv i t ies  and th i s  

i s  where  i t  i s  ev ident  and one can  see tha t  f rom the  onset  

a t  cont rac t ing  tha t  amongst  o the rs  th is  ta i lo red  base l ine  

was inc luded.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And tha t  was  par t  o f  the  cont rac t?  

MR MLIPHA:    Cor rec t  tha t  was par t  o f  the  cont rac t  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now i f  I  can  cont inue in  your  20 

a f f idav i t ,  paragraph 15.3 :  

“ the  p rocesses  to  jux taposed  to  the  sys tem 

acqu is i t ion  process d iscussed in  paragraph 5  above 

to  h igh l igh t  the  d i f fe rence in  t he  sequenc ing  o f  

rev iews and aud i t s .   The in ten t  i s  to  h igh l igh t  a l l  the  
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de l i verab les  in  t he  ye l low b lock  so  tha t  one can 

h igh l igh t  the  ou te r  phase rev iews and aud i ts . ”  

Jus t  p lease exp la in  tha t  to  us  in  hopefu l l y  non- techn ica l  

te rms as  to  wha t  the  po in t  o f  d i f fe rence was tha t  came 

about  by  DLS in t roduc ing  i t s  SEMS as par t  o f  the  cont rac t?    

I t  i s  a  d i f fe rence f rom what?  

MR MLIPHA:    Yes,  in  pa r t i cu la r  I  don ’ t  know whether  the  

SEMS is  in  f ron t  o f  you Cha i r,  in  par t i cu la r  there  are  

rev iews tha t  were  happen ing  a t  a  la te r  po in t  and aud i ts  

tha t  were  happen ing  ear l ie r,  tha t  i s  what  I  a t tempt  to  show 10 

here ,  yes  tha t  i s  what  I  am t ry ing  to  say tha t  one has to  

jux taposed i t  w i th  what  i s  in  the  normal  s tandard  tha t  i s  

un ta i lo red  when we compare  the  ta i lo red  vers ion  to  the  

un ta i lo red  vers ion .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:     Now i s  the  un ta i lo red  vers ion  the  

PBL?  

MR MLIPHA:    Yes,  in  the  un ta i lo red  vers ion  tha t  RSA 

Standard  3  one w i l l  see  tha t  there  is  a  PBL there ,  and then  

Cha i r  you w i l l  a l so  no t ice  tha t  there  a re  aud i ts  the  FCA 

funct iona l  conf igura t ion  aud i t  and the  phys i ca l  20 

conf igura t ion  aud i t  i t  i s  impor tan t  to  fo r  one to  no te  when  

they happen.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    So  is  i t  the  t im ing  o f  those  spec i f i c  

s teps tha t  have to  be  taken under  the  PBL? 

MR MLIPHA:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i r,  the  sequenc ing  is  
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impor tan t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes and tha t  i s  the  s tandard  PBL not  

the  one tha t  was la te r  in t roduced in  Dene l?  

MR MLIPHA:    Yes co r rec t  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I  th ink  you ment ioned ear l ie r  tha t  the  

one tha t  was ta i lo red  and produced the  Dene l  spec i f i c  

var ia t ion  was ca l l ed  PBL A?  

MR MLIPHA:    The ta i lo red  ve rs ion  inc ludes PBL A but  a lso  

Cha i r,  maybe I  was c lea r,  i t  does inc lude the  PBL 1  and 

PBL 1  wou ld  be  the  one tha t  i s  equa l  to  what  Armscor  10 

wou ld  des i re .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t .   So there  are  d i f fe rences 

between the  PBL 1  and PBL A?  

MR MLIPHA:    Cor rec t  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Were  they  s ign i f i can t  d i f fe rences in  

your  op in ion?  

MR MLIPHA:    They a re  Cha i r.    

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And we w i l l  ge t  in  a  moment  to  why 

you say tha t  and the  r i sks  tha t  you expand on  in  your  

a f f idav i t  bu t  you have ment ioned tha t  bo th  the  PBL A and  20 

the  PBL 1  were  spec i f ied  in  the  cont rac t .  

MR MLIPHA:    Cor rec t  Cha i r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now i f  the re  are  d i f fe rences  between  

the  PBL A and the  PBL 1  wh ich  vers ion  d id  Dene l ,  DLS 

have to  comply  w i th  accord ing  to  your  unders tand ing?  
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MR MLIPHA:    Dene l  i s  compel led  to  comply  w i th  bo th  o f  

them,  i t  i s  the  –  the  PBL A is  ea r l ie r  than the  PBL 1 ,  PBL A 

is  ear l ie r  than PBL 1 ,  the  reason  fo r  i t  i s  tha t  they sa id  

they were  reduc ing  r i sk .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Sor ry  d id  you  say ear l ie r  than?  

MR MLIPHA:    Ja  i t  wou ld  happen ear l ie r  than PBL 1 .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    So  a re  you say ing  tha t  there  had  

compl iance w i th  PBL A once tha t  was ach ieved on ly  then 

cou ld  they then be comply ing  w i th  PBL 1  they had to  go  

th rough both  s teps.  10 

MR MLIPHA:    Cor rec t  Cha i r,  they  are  bo th  pa r t  o f  the  

cont rac t .   Of  cou rse  ach iev ing  PBL A then they wou ld  do  

work  to  a lso  ach ieve PBL 1  and PBL 1  i s  the  one i s  the  one 

tha t  Armscor  i s  in te res ted  in .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  so  the  fac t  tha t  there  was a  PBL 

A tha t  in i t ia l l y  had to  be  compl ied  w i th  be fo re  PBL 1  is  o f  

less  s ign i f i cance  to  you a t  A rmscor,  you are  concerned  

rea l l y  w i th  the  PBL 1  as  i t  was ca l led?  

MR MLIPHA:    Fo r  me f rom the  techn ica l  perspect ive  PBL 1  

is  impor tan t  because tha t  s ign i f ies  as  we read the  20 

def in i t ion  ear l ie r  tha t  s ign i f ies  the  ach ievement  o f  

requ i rements  and  the  end o f  deve lopment .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay,  now I  wou ld  l i ke  to  take  you 

p lease,  because  we need you to  exp la in  h is ,  page 20,  

parag raph 15.4 .  
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MR MLIPHA:   Okay Cha i r.    

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Th i s  was my op in ion  a t  the  t ime,  I  

th ink  i t  means i t  was my op in ion  a t  the  t ime tha t  the  r i sk  

had s ign i f i can t ly  increased fo r  Armscor  as  payments  were  

l inked on the  ye l low b lock  de l i verab les  whereas the  

hardware  prog ress was lagg ing  beh ind .   I t  i s  however  no  

longer  an  op in ion  as  the  r i sk  has indeed mate r ia l i sed  in  the 

sense tha t  deve lopment  was schedu led  fo r  f i ve  years  

end ing  in  2012,  bu t  i t  i s  cur ren t ly  2020 and deve lopment  i s  

s t i l l  no t  ye t  comple ted .     10 

 Can you jus t  p lease exp la in  tha t  to  us  in  p rac t ica l ,  

s imp le  te rms i f  you wou ld .    You were  ind i ca t ing  tha t ,  i f  I  

unders tand i t ,  you  were  say ing  tha t  by  ta i lo r i ng  the  PBL to  

PBL A in t roduced  someth ing  wh ich  brought  about  r i sk ,  r i sk  

fo r  whom,  fo r  A rmscor  o r  fo r  DLS o r  fo r  whom? 

MR MLIPHA:    In  my op in ion  i t  in t roduced,  i t  increased the  

r i sk  fo r  A rmscor.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    D id  i t  in t roduce r i sk  fo r  the  

ach ievement  o f  the  Hoefys ter  Pro jec t  i t se l f?  

MR MLIPHA:  I t  is  my opinion correct  yes Si r.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  are you saying i t  int roduced or are you 

saying the r isk was always there but  i t  increased the r isk? 

MR MLIPHA:   Correct  Chai r  I  th ink you sum i t  wel l .  

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  increased the r isk.  
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MR MLIPHA:   The r isk was there,  the at tempt was to reduce 

the r isk.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MLIPHA:   Unfortunately  i t  increased the r isk for us 

because as i t  is  said that  I  – as I  s tated that  act iv i t ies were 

l inked to payments.   L ines were l inked to payment act iv i t ies 

so at  execut ion of  any l ine that  released cash whereas the 

solut ion seemed to lag behind or  the achievement  of  the 

requi rement seemed to lag behind and now as we f ind the 

si tuat ion today yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And in what sense did i t  – i t  change the 

t iming for the – for the payment of  part icular i tems?  Was 

that  brought about  by the int roduct ion of  the PBLA? 

MR MLIPHA:   Chai r  I  have to be clear.   The contract ing was 

set  out  f rom the start  and i t  execut ing any act iv i ty or a 

contracted l ine the project  had to – had to be fol lowed. So 

the – at  execut ing any act iv i ty i t  meant that  – and i f  i t  was 

correct  i t  meant that  payment had to  be made.  So that  was – 

that  was establ ished as part  of  the contract .   I t  is in  the 20 

contract .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I f  there had been – i f  i t  had simply 

been lef t  at  PBL1 rather than tai lor ing i t  to PBLA would that  

have improved the si tuat ion? 

MR MLIPHA:   Wel l  my understanding is that  i f  I  can answer 
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that  in a way that  I  understand i t  to  be technical ly  correct  is  

that  what is – what we are interested in is achieving the 

requi rements.   Unfortunately I  do not  deal  wi th the project  

management side of  works.   I  am interested in achieving the 

requi rements.    

So for me I  am real ly interested that  there should be 

point  where requi rements are met and that  would be a PBL1.   

I  hope that  c lar i f icat ion.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And this – and in  th is case they – should 

they have been met by 2012? 10 

MR MLIPHA:   I t  is  correct  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MLIPHA:   That  was – the development term was set  unt i l  

that  t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Right .    

CHAIRPERSON:   Must  – must  mean that  there is something 

that  –  is there something that  went terr ib ly wrong that  by 

2020 they have not  been met? 

MR MLIPHA:   There were indeed chal lenges Chai r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR MLIPHA:   There were… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ser ious chal lenges.  

MR MLIPHA:   Ja.   Technical  chal lenges indeed yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  
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MR MLIPHA:   Yes,  yes,  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.    

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And do you bel ieve that  the issues that  

you have ra ised and are – wi l l  st i l l  ra ise in relat ion to the 

PBL tai lor ing has contr ibuted to  that?  Has that  been one of  

the chal lenges or  the reasons for the delay in complet ion of  

the project  t imeously? 

MR MLIPHA:   Chair  I  –  I  –  I t  is  my opin ion Chai r  that  ja  

al though I  am not  responsible for p lanning and phasing the 

project  I  th ink i t  cont r ibuted in  the sense that  f inancial  10 

planning is – or  f inancial  act iv i t ies are coupled to those 

act iv i t ies and yes as part  of  a lso the contract  I  read that  

PBLA was one of  the major decision points.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Now as we speak in 2020 bearing in mind 

that  the requi rement should have been met in 2012 is there – 

what is  the project ion of  when the requirements wi l l  be met i f  

you are able to say?  Or is there no l ight  at  the end of  the 

tunnel? 

MR MLIPHA:   Chair  I  th ink August  th is year we – oh ja I  

th ink end of  August  th is year we sat  wi th the contractor and 20 

went through the compl iance against  requi rements and the 

team or Armscor and DLS have merged towards a posi t ion 

where we agree what is – what is  achieved and what is not  

achieved because we had a ser ious dispute re lat ing to what 

was – what was compl ied wi th and what is not  compl ied wi th.   
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So I  th ink – ja in August  we got  to that  point  and the 

act iv i t ies now are real ly t ry ing to  sum up the PBL1 that  

Armscor is interested in.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So i f  you look at  Armscor ’s view of  what  

requi rements have been compl ied wi th and what  

requi rements st i l l  have to be compl ied wi th  what  is  the 

project ion of  when al l  the requi rements that  Armscor regards 

as important  to be compl ied wi th are l ikely to be compl ied 

wi th? 

MR MLIPHA:   Chai r  there are ser ious requirements that  are 10 

not  compl ied wi th  as we heard that  have been put  on the 

table to be discussed with higher author i t ies but  at  my level  

on technical  level  these are cr i t ical  requi rements that  are not  

met and we have at  least  now with the contractor agreed that  

these are not  met whereas in the past  we were not  agreeing.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  – that  gives me the impression that  i t  

is not  known when al l  the requirements that  Armscor regards 

as important  wi l l  be met? 

 MR MLIPHA:   I  am… 20 

CHAIRPERSON:   That  is f rom your point  of  v iew? 

MR MLIPHA:   Chair  I  am careful  maybe to speak… 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  can see you are very careful .  But  I  just  

want to have an idea this  is something that  should have 

happened by 2012 
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MR MLIPHA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  mean in a di fferent  work st ream or  – of  

the commission I  was deal ing wi th certain government issues 

re lat ing to communicat ions and certain set  boxes were 

supposed to be you know instal led in houses or something 

supposed to have been done already in 2008 or thereabout  

and by last  year that  program was nowhere near.    

So now I  am coming across another  one where some 

things – you know al l  the requirements should have met in  

2012 and we are in 2020.  10 

MR MLIPHA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So I  am wondering whether i t  is just  one of  

those where there is just  no l ight  at  the end of  the tunnel  as 

to where i t  wi l l  end.  

MR MLIPHA:   Chai r  the reason why I  am careful  is because I  

do not  want to… 

CHAIRPERSON:   You do not  want your superiors to… 

MR MLIPHA:   And also the cont ractor has maybe made 

ment ion that  they have exhausted their  efforts so they are 

coming to declare what they have achieved and – so that  is 20 

why I  am saying.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR MLIPHA:   As ear ly as August  we have reached now an 

agreement of  what we know.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja okay.   No that  is al r ight .   Mr Kennedy.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you Chai r.   Now Mr Nkosi  you 

ment ioned ear l ier  that  there was a r isk for Armscor in 

re lat ion to making payments at  speci f ic stages.   Am I  r ight  in 

understanding that  you – that  what you were saying was that  

there were changes brought about  by PBLA which would 

have the potent ia l  that  Armscor would have to  pay for 

something before enough progress had been made or  

enough del iverables had been – had been del ivered.   Is  that  

and I  may be oversimpl i fy ing i t  and I  apologise i f  I  am.  Is my 

understanding correct? 10 

MR MLIPHA:   That  is correct  unless you want  me to 

elaborate.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   We wi l l  deal  wi th an elaborat ion in a 

moment.   Has Armscor in fact  –  has the r isk mater ia l ised?  In 

other words has Armscor in fact  been paying what might  be 

regarded as prematurely in that  i t  is paying too much up 

f ront  for something that  st i l l  has to be del ivered? 

MR MLIPHA:   That  is correct  that  is  my stand point .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   And but  Denel  has benef i t ted f rom 

that? 20 

MR MLIPHA:   In the sense that  they were saying they do the 

work and they have to be paid – yes that  is correct  Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   Now I  would l ike you please in  

paragraph 15.5 you say on page 21:  

“ I  wi l l  now ident i fy speci f ic instances where 
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the tai lor ing wi th the system acquisi t ion 

management process by DLS has resul ted in  

a r isk of  del iver ing the Hoefyster Project”  

That  is the project  i tsel f .  

“ Increasing and you wi l l  support  each i tem 

ident i f ied wi th evidence that  inc ludes internal  

memorandums, payments,  emai ls etcetera. ”  

And you then proceed to give your  var ious examples of  why 

you reach that  conclusion.   Correct? 

MR MLIPHA:   Correct  Chai r.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Now just  before – I  am not  go ing to 

take you through al l  of  the individual  example or instances 

that  you give but  just  expla in to us why would th is del ive – 

why would this increase the r isk of  del iver ing the Hoefyster  

Project  i tsel f?   

Is i t  not  just  a quest ion of  Armscor is having to pay a 

bi t  ear ly but  i f  they get  the i tems does i t  rea l ly matter?  The 

Hoefyster Project  wi l l  st i l l  be del ivered.   Or is i t  actual ly a  

more ser ious problem? 

MR MLIPHA:   Chai r  i t  becomes – Chair  i t  becomes a ser ious 20 

problem i f  I  can make example of  one.   I f  for  example we do 

an audi t  prematurely – an audi t  of  an i tem that  we say is now 

ready to proceed into the next  phase of  the l ives of  the 

acquisi t ion process.   

Let  me make example of  a physical  conf igurat ion 
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audi t .   I f  we audi t  the physical  i tem and say this  is now the 

one before i t  has f in ished i ts development l i fe we run a r isk 

of  repeatedly checking or audi t ing an i tem that  is st i l l  

evolving in i ts development l i fe.   That  is one of  the issues for 

an example.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Now may I  take you through some of  

the instances that  you have ident i f ied in your aff idavi t?  On 

page 21 you set  out  reviews and audi ts  paragraph 16 and 

you give us one of  the instances 16.1.1.  system 

requi rements review.  Now just  explain to us please what the 10 

purpose is of  the system requi rements review? 

MR MLIPHA:   Chai r  the system requirements review is the 

rev iew that  i f  I  can sum i t  up is the review that  says you – 

one has the – the contractor  or the developing – the 

developing agent  understands the requirements that  have 

been contracted to them.  And they wi l l  endeavour to achieve 

them.  So this  review real ly goes into detai l  of  saying you 

have captured al l  the requi rements;  there are no 

requi rements that  are missed.   That  is the essence of  th is  

system requi rements review.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And you then refer in 16.1.1.2 to your 

having real ised something as recent ly as 2018 DLS was 

developing the product  to meet i ts badger development 

speci f icat ion not  the Armscor speci f icat ion? 

MR MLIPHA:   Chai r  th is is t rue.   I  prefer to speak in  pictures 
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because i t  is much easier.   At  a higher level  there is – there 

is a  requirement  speci f icat ion and the developing agency – 

the cont ractor has to meet these requi rements.    

And now in meet ing these requi rements a developer  

wi l l  maybe say okay they wi l l  compi le thei r  own speci f icat ion 

which they wi l l  name a development speci f icat ion that  says 

each requirement  is going to be made in th is manner.   This 

is what they wi l l  do.    

Now with regards to what I  am stat ing here is that  

when that  was done as recent ly as 2018 in one of  the 10 

rev iews I  learnt  that  Denel  informed us that  they are not  

DLS; they are not  developing to meet the Armscor spec – 

bless you Chai r  –  they are developing to meet the Armscor 

spec but  the development speci f icat ion.    

This to  me was an issue in the sense that  obviously 

there would be a del ta between the two and we must now 

make sure that  th is del ta is covered in the sense that  i f  the 

contractor  is saying,  I  am only meet ing my speci f icat ion; 

yours you must  now check whether having met  the 

development speci f icat ion you are sat isf ied as Armscor.   20 

That  was for me the issue.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Right  thank you.   Then i f  we may turn 

by way of  another  example to paragraph 16.2 page 25 to 26.  

MR MLIPHA:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Physical  Conf igurat ion Audi t  PCA.  
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Chair  I  am afraid there are – there is more and more 

acronyms that  keep coming up but  I  suppose that  is the 

modern way.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  no I  have seen there are qui te  a lot .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Just  explain to us again in layman’s 

terms i f  you would – lay people’s terms PCA? 

MR MLIPHA:   I  shal l  at tempt.   The PCA Physical  

Conf igurat ion Audi t  is an audi t  that  says this bot t le of  water 

i f  I  can – is – is made to contain so much water and i t  does 

meet wi th requi rements that  were set  out .   So the PCA in 10 

essence is an audi t  that  is done af ter having achieved the 

funct ional i ty that  is requi red.    

I t  is an audi t  that  leads one into saying now you may 

bui ld more or make more of  these i tems.  So actual ly i t  is an 

outcome of  an industr ia l isat ion process not  a development 

process.   An audi t  that  is appl icable to the development  

process is the funct ional  conf igurat ion audi t  for reasons I  

have expla ined ear l ier I  say that  i f  one would be concerned 

of  doing a physical  conf igurat ion audi t  on an i tem that  is st i l l  

evolving in i ts development l i fe one is not  achieving much 20 

because the contractor would be al lowed to change the 

design i f  the requi rement is not  met.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Now i f  I  can take  you please Mr Ml ipha 

to paragraph 16.2.2 just  read out  that  paragraph please.  

MR MLIPHA:    
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“ I  have reviewed the PCA’s which were 

conducted by DLS and i t  was noted that  al l  

PCA’s are planned and conducted 

sequent ia l ly incorrect .   This defeats the 

purpose of  a valuable PCA where there is no 

value in the conf igurat ion as the design is  

st i l l  evolving.”  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Now so DLS – DLS’s PCA’s are – have 

been done in an incorrect  way.   Incorrect  i f  we can go back 

to the idea of  the PBL1 and the PBLA. 10 

MR MLIPHA:   Yes Sir.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   What has been adopted by the part ies 

themselves not  just  Denel  but  Armscor as wel l  by adopt ing 

the PBLA is Denel  complying wi th  PBLA in relat ion to the 

sequencing and planning and conduct ing of  these PCA’s? 

MR MLIPHA:   Chai r  they would not  be in the sense that  the 

PCA that  would be done for PBLA – PBLA is  a point  or  a 

base l ine where funct ional i ty has not  been achieved or 

requi rements have not  been achieved.   So for one to be 

interested in those PCA’s in my opinion not  everyone wi l l  20 

di ffer wi th me – in  my opinion defeats the purpose.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   What I  am real ly asking for is;  is the 

problem that  you ident i fy in 16.2.2 the incorrect  planning and 

sequencing of  the PCA’s by Denel?  Is that  at t r ibutable to 

the fact  that  the PBL was tai lored to become PBLA or  is th is 
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a separate problem? 

MR MLIPHA:   I t  is both Chai r.   I t  is not  – i t  is a lso 

at t r ibutable to that  but  also i t  is a problem in the 

understanding of  the – the engineering sequencing and the 

essence of  audi t ing something that  is not  yet  fu l ly  

developed.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Now you say in 16.2.3 the fol lowing:  

“The number of  PCA’s contracted and 

planned is 54 which were expected to cost  a  

tota l  value of  R110.5mi l l ion and a number of  10 

conducted and paid out  PCA’s is 36 and they 

have cost  R100 771 000.00 etcetera.”  

What is the – what is the point  that  you were t ry ing to make 

there?  Why is that  – what is the signi f icance and effect  of  

th is? 

MR MLIPHA:   The signi f icance of  what I  am trying to  

highl ight  here is that  f i rst ly i t  was before the PBL1 as per 

contractor language or PBL as per  Armscor language.  I t  may 

have happened a lso before or af ter PBLA but  what I  a lso 

highl ight  is that  so much money has now been exhausted in 20 

audi t ing something that  does not  have a product  base l ine in  

Armscor ’s understanding.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And who bears the cost  of  that?  Is i t  

an unnecessary cost  to  Armscor or Denel  or who? 

MR MLIPHA:   Chair  I  am careful  wi th th is because i t  is 
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contracted but  technical ly i f  you ask me i t  helped – i t  d id not  

help me.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And you refer in 16.2.4.2 a 

memorandum internal ly at  Armscor where you have raised 

the issue of  the value lacking PCA’s which have been 

conducted on the Hoefyster Project .   Is i t  correct  that  you in 

fact  have raised this part icular concern and many others that  

you refer to by way of  example in your aff idavi t?  

MR MLIPHA:   That  is correct  Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And your annexures also bear out  that  10 

you have sent  var ious memoranda and emai ls and so forth? 

MR MLIPHA:   Correct  Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   Have you reached a resolut ion 

wi thin the organisat ion – wi thin Armscor? 

MR MLIPHA:   Yes Chair  I  received support  f rom my 

immediate superior wi th part icular to th is one where he also 

agreed to say this  is not  in l ine.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Who is that? 

MR MLIPHA:   Mr Dave Erasmus.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Erasmus? 20 

MR MLIPHA:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Right .   But  is  i t  correct  that  you have 

not  reached unanimity wi thin Armscor?  There are di fferent  

views.  

MR MLIPHA:   At  –  yes – yes correct  Chai r.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:   R ight .   I  have skipped through a 

number of  the other  examples that  you have given is there 

anything speci f ic  that  you feel  is  of  major importance that  

you would l ike to  highl ight  to the Chair  before we move off  

these examples? 

MR MLIPHA:   Would i t  be pert inent  to ment ion the – the 

cr i t ical  design rev iew? 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   The cr i t ical?  

MR MLIPHA:   Design Reviews the CER.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.  10 

MR MLIPHA:   The review.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes where do you deal  wi th that  here? 

MR MLIPHA:   I  see i t  is. .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Is that  16.1.4 at  the foot  of  page 22 

going onto the next  page?  Is that  what you referr ing to page 

22 to 23? 

MR MLIPHA:   Yes.    

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Right  just  explain to us what these 

cr i t ical  design rev iews involve? 

MR MLIPHA:   Chai r  th is is also one of  the points that  are – 20 

of  content ion in the sense that  when one reads the standards 

or when one looks at  RSA-Mi l  standard 3 I  hope Chai r  has a 

picture of  the process one wi l l  see that  the CDR is pictor ia l ly 

painted close to PBL.   

One who maybe does not  read the wording may 
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understand that  th is review is conducted to close out  the 

development phase meaning that  i t  is the last  review before 

achieving PBL which is not  correct .    

The CDR as the word says i t  is the cr i t ica l  design 

rev iew but  when one reads the def in i t ion of  i t  i t  is very easi ly 

for one to understand that  – to misunderstand that  they are 

talk ing of  product ion.   Whereas the cr i t ical  design rev iew is – 

is referr ing to the permission to bui ld now the test  i tem that  

wi l l  undergo test ing.    

Now the words that  are used at  t imes there is  10 

fabr icate – permission to fabr icate.   Now one may 

misunderstand i t  and think i t  is  now talk ing – i t  is now 

permission to go into product ion whereas no i t  is not  that .   I t  

is just  permission to – to bui ld the test  i tem.   

Later we show i t  is – that  is what we would cal l  an 

engineering development model .   That  is  the one that  wi l l  

face now qual i f icat ion.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   A lr ight .   Then in paragraph 17 on page 

27 to 28 you deal  again wi th the PBLA not  exist ing in the 

RSA-Mi l  standard 3.   You appear to here be referr ing to the 20 

point  we have al ready deal t  wi th that  PBLA does not  appear 

in the RSA-Mi l  standard 3 document but  ta i lor ing is 

permissible.   I t  was agreed to wi th  Armscor.   Your problem 

though with the PBLA is that  i t  has increased the technical ,  

f inancial  and other r isks in relat ion to th is project .   Is that  



28 OCTOBER 2020 – DAY 293 
 

Page 188 of 211 
 

r ight? 

MR MLIPHA:   Correct  Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Right  thank you.   I  am going to just  

touch very br ief ly on paragraph 18 the t raining system.  

What does th is re late to?  You are referr ing in  the text  here 

to a t raining simulator just  explain to the Chai r  why you have 

deal t  wi th th is in  your  aff idavi t?  What is the concern that  

you have raised here in re lat ion to t ra ining simulators? 

MR MLIPHA:   Chai r  as part  of  the complete project  wi th al l  

e lements that  have to be del ivered i t  was st ipulated in  the 10 

contract  that  there should be a t ra ining segment.   Now the 

t raining segment  includes – in  fact  the cont ract  also 

st ipulated that  there should be a t raining s imulator.    

A t raining simulator Chai r  is a t raining tool .   I t  is a  

tool  that  enables one to t rain on a replacement product  

instead of  the actual  product .   In th is case they computer ise 

i t ,  they make i t  out  of  computers and i t  is l isted in the 

contract  what they are supposed to del iver.    

The issue that  I  t r ied to raise here is that  though one 

is supposed to del iver these t ra ining tools the t ra ining 20 

requi rement as a whole – the t raining system is not  l imi ted 

only through a t ra ining tool  but  one should address the 

whole requirement regarding t raining.    

And at  the t ime when – very ear ly  on when I  was also  

asked to be a Project  Manager for  one of  the var iants I  had 
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an issue that  the contractor was going straight  into simulator  

bui ld ing wi thout  real ly compi l ing as I  said ear l ier  there is a  

requi rement and there is a development speci f icat ion that  

says how one wi l l  meet these requi rements.   This t raining 

development spec was not  there.   In fact  i t  was compi led 

much later.   That  was my one issue.    

 And then the second issue is that  these t raining 

tools,  the simulators were now running far ahead of  the 

actual  product .    

 Now one has – wi l l  have a problem that  now you have 10 

to correct  the t raining tool  i f  the product  is st i l l  – to a point  

that  the tools – the simulators are del ivered.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Okay thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes Mr Kennedy.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you Chai r.   Paragraph 19 is  

headed PBL has not  been achieved.   Again I  am not  going to 

go into the detai l  of  th is.   Here are you referr ing to PBL1 or 

PBLA i t  is not  . . . [ intervenes]   

MR MLIPHA :    Sorry,  Mr Kennedy.   We are . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Paragraph 19,  page . . . [ intervenes]   20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Page 20.    

MR MLIPHA :    Yes.   Correct ,  yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And you have set  out  your reasons for 

saying that .   And then you say:  

“There are di fferences of  v iew on the part  of  DLS.   
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They bel ieve TBL was establ ished in 2016. ”  

MR MLIPHA :    Correct ,  Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Okay.   Now again,  just  br ief ly,  could 

you sum up your evidence re lat ing to paragraph 20 f rom the 

foot  of  page 32.    

“Concessions and deviat ions used as a means of  

just i fy ing non-compl iance. ”  

 Who is non-complaint? 

MR MLIPHA :    Chai r,  requirements,  i f  they are not  met,  we 

classi fy them as non-compl iant .   Now what t ranspi red.   Unt i l  10 

recent ly when i t  was addressed with the help of  our  

management in support ,  was that . .  

 I t  is my understanding that  whenever Denel  was facing 

chal lenges of  meet ing the requirement,  they would put  in a 

deviat ion.   People would di ffer wi th me.  I t  is my opinion.    

 Now,  deviat ions were used in a way of  reaching an end 

to say now they meet the requi rement.   Now in  normal  

language, deviat ion means you are not . . .  i ts otherwise of  

what you are supposed to get .    

 However,  in engineering i t  is that  but  i t  a lso means that  20 

one must. . .  whenever one requests a deviat ion.   Fi rs t ly,  one 

should request  a deviat ion before test ing.   I f  you do i t  af ter 

test ing,  i t  is now af ter the fact .    

 And i f  you request  a deviat ion,  i t  is  also understood i t  is 

temporary.   I t  is not  a permanent state to say now I  am not  
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requi red to meet th is requirement or because I  got  a 

deviat ion,  I  now meet the requi rement.    

 That  was the st range understanding.   And that  is what,  

in essence,  I  am try ing to explain to say.   Deviat ions were 

used in a way of  saying they meet the requirement.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Does that  mean they were deviat ions 

which were supposed to be except ions were,  ended up being 

regarded as the norms? 

MR MLIPHA :    You can put  i t  that  way,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes.  10 

MR MLIPHA :    Yes,  yes.   You can put  i t  . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Because they are supposed to be 

except ions.  

MR MLIPHA :    Not  on ly . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Not  a l l  the t ime.  

MR MLIPHA :    Not  only. . .  i f  I  check. . .  i f  I  may check,  Chai r?  

Except ions,  yes,  as you put  i t  that  i t  is just  for th is instance.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MLIPHA :    You are expected to correct  th is issue and 

come back and meet the requi rement.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  okay.  

MR MLIPHA :    Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR MLIPHA :    H’m.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Now Mr Ml ipha,  may we then turn to 
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paragraph 21?  That  refers to  industr ia l isat ion.   And 

industr ia l isat ion is part icular stage.   Is that  correct?  Once 

development test  and evaluat ion has been successful ly 

completed.  

MR MLIPHA :    You may cal l  i t  that  Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.  

MR MLIPHA :    Phase is the correct  term.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    The phase? 

MR MLIPHA :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Thank you for  the correct ion.  10 

MR MLIPHA :    H’m.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Now is there a problem in relat ion to  

th is aspect  of  the Hoefyster Project  and the re la t ionship 

between Armscor and Denel? 

MR MLIPHA :    Yes,  Chair  there is a problem in th is issue 

because for  one to indust r ia l ise,  you would want to  

industr ia l ise a product  that  has met the requirements.   Now 

i f  one would industr ia l ise a product  that  has not  met the 

requi rements,  you run the r isk of  repeat ing the . . . [ ind ist inct ]  

[ laughing]  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    You must help me now in case I  have 

missed this somewhere.   Indust r ia l isat ion would mean what 

in a lay person’s language in th is context? 

MR MLIPHA :    Apologies Chai r.    

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  
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MR MLIPHA :    Indust r ia l isat ion means in,  for example,  in 

th is type of  th is project ,  you have to now set  up a factory.   

You have to set  up product ion l ines . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.  

MR MLIPHA :    You have to t rain or  you have to get  process 

engineers that  wi l l  bui ld the . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    So i f  we go back to the example you gave 

ear l ier on of  the bot t le. . .  th is water bot t le.  

MR MLIPHA :    Yes,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    That  is  something you do af ter you have 10 

go ahead that  the bot t le needs al l  the requirements for the 

purpose for which i t  is made? 

MR MLIPHA :    Chai r,  you . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Now you can go and make more bot t les 

because you have to make them in accordance with these 

requi rements or speci f icat ions.  

MR MLIPHA :    Chai r,  you are absolutely correct .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay alr ight .   Okay cont inue.  You are 

deal ing wi th industr ia l isat ion and I  interrupted you because I  

just  wanted to  make sure I  understood what i t  means in  20 

paragraph 21.1.    

MR MLIPHA :    [No audible reply]   

CHAIRPERSON :    You might  need to remind you of  

Mr Kennedy of  the quest ion he was deal ing wi th because I  

interrupted him now.   
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ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes,  thank you.   So in relat ion to 

industr ia l isat ion,  is there an issue current ly between Armscor 

and Denel  as to industr ia l isat ion? 

MR MLIPHA :    Chai r,  there is an issue.   In fact ,  Denel  

approached Armscor and they said they would l ike to  declare 

both the product  basel ine and at  the same t ime conf i rm 

industr ia l isat ion on the enter product ion.    

 Now at  one part icular meet ing,  I  asked the quest ion to  

say i t  cannot be.   And in part icular,  wi th regards to the 

vehicle hul l  that  i f  there are now indust r ia l is ing and 10 

preparing to bui ld  many,  what f loor are they bui ld ing or what 

product?  Because we have not  ver i f ied everything.    

 Ja.   Yes,  so there is that  dispute and. . .  Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    May I  ask you now please Mr Ml ipha to  

look at  paragraph 22 which refers to the manufactur ing 

basel ine.    

MR MLIPHA :    [No audible reply]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Is manufactur ing basel ine di fferent  

f rom the concept  of  the indust r ia l isat ion phase or are they 

the same? 20 

MR MLIPHA :    The basel ine is a culminat ion of  the 

industr ia l isat ion phase.    

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And you refer in paragraph 22.2 to a 

cr i t ic ism that  make you of  DLS.   

“ I t  is establ ishing two basel ines at  the same t ime,  
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termed hi t t ing two birds wi th one stone. ”  

 Which of  the two basel ines?  The manufactur ing 

basel ine and what  else? 

MR MLIPHA :    They were referr ing to the product  basel ine,  

PDL and the MBL.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And were they suggest ing that  the two 

should happen at  the same t ime? 

MR MLIPHA :    Yes,  they said the two have been achieved.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Have al ready been achieved? 

MR MLIPHA :    Ja.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And you then. . .  your paragraph 22.4 

says to th is date,  the project  has not  reached the PDL, let  

a lone the MBL.   

MR MLIPHA :    That  is correct ,  Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And you say that  the MBL must come 

af ter the PDL? 

MR MLIPHA :    That  is correct ,  Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Okay.   Now I  would l ike,  i f  I  may,  to 

deal  to just  touch on the next  paragraph,  the Pat r ia vehicle 

select ion.   You have referred in some of  your paragraphs 20 

here to the test ing and def ic iencies and shortcomings in 

re lat ion to the Pat r ia vehicle not  passing the Landmine 

Protect ion Hul l  Tests in the year  2005.   You were not  

involved or were you? 

MR MLIPHA :    I  was not  involved Chai r,  yes.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.   And the Chai r  has already heard 

evidence ear l ier  today f rom Mr Nkosi  in  relat ion to that .   Is 

there anything speci f ical ly that  you want to raise that  you 

bel ieve is part icular ly s igni f icant  for the Chair  to know, 

bearing in mind that  he wi l l  have the opportuni ty to read al l  

the detai l  of  your aff idavi t  in th is regard? 

MR MLIPHA :    Chai r,  the essence goes wi th the 

requi rements that  were set  out  f rom the onset  and the fact  

that  th is requi rement – in fact ,  i t  is spl i t  into two.    

 I t  is at  a lower level ,  i t  refers to  a hul l  or and wheel  10 

detonat ion as we have heard previously.   That  the hul l  or the 

shel l  of  the vehicle should not  rapture and hi t . . .  a landmine 

hi t  under a wheel  should also not  resul t  in a rapture.  

 Then the second level  of  requirements refers to the crew 

surv ivabi l i ty when the vehicle is exposed such a threat .   I t  is 

a requi rement that  the crew should survive.   I t  is a 

requi rement.    

 So that  for me is the essence of  i t .   And then when one 

now goes into the cr i ter ia or the cr i ter ia that  was set  f rom.. .  

as part  of  the contract  to say which is a cr i t ical  cr i ter ia .  20 

 A cr i t ical  cr i ter ia is to be understood as that  cr i ter ia that  

one has to meet  and not  meet ing that  requi rement,  the 

person should be disqual i f ied.    

 And f rom reading evidence that  is presented or that  we 

had to do as also part  of  my work of  the requi rement 
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ver i f icat ion and thorough work and seeing that  wi th  

authent ic i t ies achieved here.  

 One observe that  the f i rst  test  for th is landmine was 

fai led as you heard ear l ier Chai r.   Now at  that  instance,  i t  is  

my understanding that  because i t  is a cr i t ical  cr i ter ia,  that  

there should not  have been any progress.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Thank you,  Mr Ml ipha.   May I  just  

touch on one f inal  aspect  before we end our quest ions of  

you.   Can you turn please to page 408? 

MR MLIPHA :    408.   Four,  zero. . .   Ja,  408.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Do you have that? 

MR MLIPHA :    I  have i t .   I  have i t ,  s i r.    

ADV KENNEDY SC :    This is  headed with the Armscor logo 

and the heading is Funct ional  Conf igurat ion Audi t  Report ,  

Project  Hoefyster.   And under summary,  the heading 

summary,  i t  says:  

“This document contains the funct ional  conf igurat ion 

audi t  resul ts of  the requirements basel ine for  

Project  Hoefyster conducted in June 2020. ”  

 I t  is dated. . .  the date of  issue is August  2020 and your  20 

name appears on the fol lowing page 409 at  the top.   Is that  

correct?  As having been prepared by you.  

MR MLIPHA :    Correct ,  Chai r.   Th is is  the document that  I  

compi led recent ly.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And i f  I  might  just  draw your at tent ion 
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to a couple of  passages.   Page 416.  

MR MLIPHA :    416? 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.  

MR MLIPHA :    Yes,  I  am there Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Just  before we look at  the text  that  

appears there.   What was the. . .  what is the purpose of  the 

document and basical ly,  what were you t ry ing to achieve in  

undertaking this audi t  and set t ing out  the report? 

MR MLIPHA :    Yes,  Chai r.   As I  assumed that  you have the 

acquisi t ion process in f ront  of  you.   Fi rst ly,  the funct ional  10 

conf igurat ion audi t  is a document  that  is an input  to the 

audi ts that  is conducted by Armscor Qual i ty Divis ion.  

 I t  is  an input  to that  audi t ,  QES.  They refer  to  Qual i ty  

Engineering Services.   Because that  div is ion wi l l  say that  the 

basel ine is indeed correct  and has been establ ished.  

 The issue ensued when the cont ractor was stat ing that  

they have audi ted themselves and they say they are good.  

Now I  th ink i t  is understandable that  one cannot audi t  

onesel f  because you wi l l  be biased in audi t ing yoursel f .  

 So then as part  o f  the reviews,  we said as the minimum 20 

– because referable there should be an independent body 

that  audi ts.   As the minimum, we wi l l  compi le an audi t  that  

we wi l l  share wi th the cont ractor and inform them this our  

off ic ia l  posi t ion.  

 That  is the reason why I  compi led the document.   I t  is 
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now not  the norm. . .   [cel l  phone r ing ing]   Apologies Chai r.    

CHAIRPERSON :    [No audible reply]   

MR MLIPHA :    Sorry Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    [No audible reply]   

MR MLIPHA :    I t  is not  the norm for one to. . .  for Armscor to 

wri te audi ts and share wi th the contractor.   QES Divis ion 

gets involved and does that .    

 But  because of  the technica l  d isagreements that  were 

happening between us,  Armscor and Denel ,  I  fe l t  i t  

important ,  together wi th the Armscor Team, that  let  us 10 

compi le a report .  

 And audi t  the report  and share wi th them that  th is our 

posi t ion,  off ic ia l  posi t ion,  so that  we could inform our 

leadership to say this is where we stand.  

 This document I  compi led wi th the permission.   I  

informed my immediate manager and I  informed a lso the 

leaders to say we as the pro ject ,  we wi l l  wr i te the report .  

 And we share i t  wi th the cont ractor and the cont ractor  

did not  object  heavi ly to i t .   Yes.   That  is the history of  th is 

document.    20 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Thank you for that .   I  just  want  to take 

you to two br ief  references in that  body of  your report .   Page 

416.    

MR MLIPHA :    416,  yes.   Yes,  Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.   Hal f  or  two thi rds way down the 
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page,  your report  says Appendix A contains detai led 

breakdown of  the score by Tables 1,  2 and 3.   4.1.1.1 – 

Observat ion.  

“Development was conducted against  an updated 

batch of  development speci f icat ion which was no 

longer in  l ine wi th the contracted development  

speci f icat ion,  SU3.  Correct ive act ion,  DLS was 

advised to  ref lect  thei r  development against  the 

contracted batch of  development speci f icat ion.    

3.   Observat ion.   Most  deviat ions were requested 10 

af ter DLS had fa i led to meet requi rements implying 

that  these deviat ions were appl ied for af ter the fact . ”  

 Is th is the reference to your ear l ier evidence in th is  

regard? 

MR MLIPHA :    I t  is correct  Chai r.   This is now as a summary 

of  what now had been happening over the years and to say 

now we are put t ing i t  in th is audi t  report .   And just  showing 

to them that  th is is what we wi l l  compi le in our repor t .   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And then the other examples I  would 

just  l ike to take you to.   Page 417,  the next  page,  non-20 

compl iance.    

MR MLIPHA :    Yes.   Yes,  Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    You refer there to catast rophic.   And 

did you make any f ind ings in your audi t  report  as to whether 

there were any catastrophic non-compl iances on the part  of  
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Denel  and DLS in part icular? 

MR MLIPHA :    The outstanding requirement wi th regards to 

crew protect ion l iabi l i ty and others. . .   I  do not  know i f  am at 

l iberty of  going into the detai l  of  the requi rements?   

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr Kennedy wi l l  ask you a few things.   

The deta i ls are important .   Ja,  cont inue.  

MR MLIPHA :    Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  

MR MLIPHA :    Yes,  there are requi rements that  are cr i t ical  

and may resul t  in catast rophic outcomes.  So yes,  those 10 

def in i t ions,  I  included there as a means of  guiding everyone.  

Because we had to now guide everyone to say what  is  meant 

by catast rophic events,  what is meant by a cr i t ica l  event  

that . . .  et  cetera.    

 I f  the product  is not  meet ing such a requi rement.   I f  the 

requi rement is o f  a cr i t ical  of  catastrophic consequence,  

what does that  mean.   For  an example,  the crew survivabi l i ty  

in the event  of  a landmine threats.    

 Now the detai ls  surrounding that  issue is that  the 

contractor does say that  they were not  cont racted for  TP3 as 20 

you heard ear l ier Chai r.    

 Now i t  becomes a bi t  problemat ic for  my side,  technical  

compl iance,  in the sense that  now,  now wi l l  we address this 

crew survivabi l i ty requi rement?  Because. . .    

CHAIRPERSON :    These vehicles cannot be used i f  there is 
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that  r isk.  

MR MLIPHA :    How do. . .  Yes,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MLIPHA :    How do we – what do we say? 

CHAIRPERSON :    What do you do wi th them?  What is the 

purpose of  having them?   

MR MLIPHA :    Yes,  Chai r.   What do we say.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  

MR MLIPHA :    [cel l  phone interrupt ion]   Sorry,  Chai r.   Yes.   

Wel l ,  then the contractor said they. . .   S ince that  requi rement 10 

is not  yet  cont racted,  they are wi l l ing to do the test  but  they 

want that  requi rement to be contracted now to say 

. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    But  what would have been the. . .  would 

there have been a useful  purpose for these vehicles to be 

manufactured i f  they would not  meet that  requi rement?  I  

mean, how do you get  into a cont ract  for the manufactur ing 

of  those vehicles wi thout  including that  requirement?   

 Or is the posi t ion that  i t  is so obvious that  even i f  you do 

not  include i t ,  the manufacturer should never th ink that  they 20 

should bui ld or manufacture vehicles l ike this wi thout  that  

requi rement because i t  is  such a fundamental  requi rement.  

Or what do you th ink is the posi t ion? 

MR MLIPHA :    Chai r,  the posi t ion f rom the cont ractor  is th is.   

They have met the f i rst  lower level  requi rement as you heard 
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ear l ier of  protect ion against  hul l  breach anywhere under the 

vehicle or wheel  shots.   They have met that  one.    

 The TP3 is that  requi rement that  is now equivalent  or  

wi l l  ver i fy the crew survivabi l i ty.   Now i f  i t  is not  done,  how 

would one then now say the crew inside the vehicle is  okay?   

 Because we have not  done th is test  to real ly see i f ,  for  

example,  i tems that  are mounted inside the vehicle are 

dislodged and they become project i les towards passengers 

that  they hi t  them.    

 Or as ear l ier,  you heard that  there even may be even be 10 

skewered by or stabbed by certa in. . .   Because one must  

appreciate the envi ronment that  one is in.   I t  is  a very 

conf ined environment inside the vehicle.   So ja,  I . . .    

 Chai r,  when you asked me that ,  I  a lso do not  know what 

you say because i t  is such a cr i t ical  requi rement.   Al though, I  

must  highl ight  Chair  that  as part  of  negot iat ions,  contract  

negot iat ions way before I  was involved.   I t  was stated that  a 

TP2 test  would be used to val idate the vehicle.    

 Now as you have heard ear l ier Chai r.   A TP2 test  is a  

lower,  is  of  a  lower level  and may not  be used to rea l ly 20 

conf i rm that  the crew is safe inside.   

CHAIRPERSON :    Could i t  be said that  a vehicle that  has 

been manufactured wi thout  meet ing that  requi rement is f i t  for 

purpose?  For the purpose for which these vehicles are 

made? 
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MR MLIPHA :    Chai r,  I  would be careful  to say that  wi thout  

object ive evidence support ing that .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MLIPHA :    So I  would be incl in ing to say . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    You cannot. . .  

MR MLIPHA :    One must be careful  then.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MLIPHA :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    But  you. . .   I t  is possible that  some people 

might  th ink i t  would not  be properly f i t  for  purpose.   But  10 

maybe others would say i t  is f i t  for purpose.  

MR MLIPHA :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  is l ike there is  room for these d i fferent  

views.  

MR MLIPHA :    You are correct  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MLIPHA :    There are divided camps.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MLIPHA :    And the fact  of  the matter is that  when we 

look at  requirements cl in ical ly,  there is that  requirement who 20 

would say this requirement has not  been ver i f ied for crew 

safety.  

CHAIRPERSON :    But  even those who might  say i t  is f i t  for 

purpose.   In saying so,  they would not  be. . .  they would have 

to accept  that  there is a ser ious r isk to the passengers.  
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MR MLIPHA :    Yes,  Chair  you are absolutely correct .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MLIPHA :    There is a ser ious amount of  uncertainty.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  ja.  

MR MLIPHA :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay al r ight .   Mr Kennedy.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Thank you,  Chai r.   A f inal  quest ion 

f rom, i f  I  may Mr Ml ipha?  What has happened to this audi t  

report  that  you have prepared? 

MR MLIPHA :    Chai r,  as I  ment ioned that  Denel ,  DLS 10 

responded obviously wi th object ions and I  d id inform them 

that  we. . .  I  accept  thei r  object ions in part icular the reference 

to the landmine that  they are not  contracted to i t .    

 But  as the report  says,  then that  we are s i t t ing wi th the 

di lemma of  not  being in a posi t ion to classi fy  the vehicle in 

terms of  safety or not .    

 And we are leaning more towards saying that  one has to  

be careful  as you heard f rom Mr Nkosi .   And that  is  where 

the report  is and the intend of  the report ,  as i t  is  stated 

ear l ier,  is that  i t  w i l l  be submit ted to  the. . .    20 

 I t  is an input  to the QES audi t .   And once i t  is received 

by that  div is ion,  they wi l l  then consider everything that  is on 

the table and they wi l l  make a decis ion.  

CHAIRPERSON :    The purpose of  the report  is to state your 

posi t ion and people may have. . .  other  people may have their  
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own views about the issues that  you cover in the report  but  i t  

ref lects your posi t ion.  

MR MLIPHA :    Correct ,  Chai r.   Amongst  others,  for example,  

compl iance.   The compl iance. . .   The cont ractor was saying,  

they achieved 99% compl iance against  our  requirement.   As 

you see in the report ,  we disagree wi th that .    

 And we went into numerous workstat ions where we have 

now, for example,  we removed al l  those,  the compl iances 

which the contractor said they compl ied because they have 

deviat ions.    10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR MLIPHA :    Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  ja.   A lr ight .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Thank you,  Chai r.   We have completed 

the quest ions we wish to put  to th is  wi tness.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Thank you,  Mr Kennedy.   Thank you very 

much, Mr Ml ipha for coming to assist  the Commission.   We 

appreciate i t  very much.  I f  we need you to come back,  we 

wi l l  ask you again but  thank you very much.  You are now 

excused.  20 

MR MLIPHA :    Thank you,  Chai r.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Thank you.   Mr Kennedy.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Chai r,  we are at  a stage now.  I t  is 

quarter to f ive.   We do not  have another wi tness immediate ly 

avai lab le.    
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CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    We in i t ia l ly planned in the or ig inal  

schedule to have somebody to fol low today.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    But  there has been an issue which I  

would l ike to raise wi th you in chambers.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    In relat ion to some logist ical  problems.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    May we put  you on that  score? 10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And then ask in the meant ime that  we 

adjourn for the hear ing to resume tomorrow? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    We have scheduled three wi tnesses 

tomorrow.  Would i t  be perhaps. . .   I  cannot remember Chair  

i f  you indicated the start ing at  ten o’clock would be a 

problem for you tomorrow because . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    I  th ink that  ten o ’clock wi l l  be a problem.  

But  I  have ind icated that  tomorrow to si t t ing unt i l  beyond f ive 20 

might  be a problem.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    But  I  th ink as I  see this s i tuat ion now, we 

could s i t  up to six  tomorrow.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    So there is room for that  un less  

someth ing  changes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  in  te rms o f  s ta r t ing  le t  us  s ta r t  a t  ten .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    A t  ten .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  there  is  a  poss ib i l i t y  o f  be ing  ab le  to  

go  up  to  s ix  i f  necessary.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r,  we w i l l  

…[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    I f  we have to  –  i f  you  cannot  go  beyond 10 

f i ve  we w i l l  ad journ  a t  f i ve  bu t  in  tha t  event  I  wou ld  be  

w i l l i ng  to  exp lore  the  poss ib i l i t y  o f  s ta r t ing  qu i te  ear ly  on  

Fr iday.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And when I  say  qu i te  ea r ly,  depend ing 

on eve ryone ’s  s i tua t ion ,  maybe s tar ted  a t  even ha l f  past  

e igh t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    On Fr iday?  

CHAIRPERSON:    On Fr iday.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ha l f  past  e igh t  o r  n ine ,  depend ing  on 

where  we w i l l  be  because on Fr iday a l so  we need to  –  we 

w i l l  no t  be  ab le  to  use the  who le  day because  o f  my 

commi tment .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    So  we cou ld  exp lore  how ear l y  we cou ld  

s ta r t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   On tomorrow’s  

s i tua t ion ,  i f  you  –  I  know you have o ther  commi tments  and  

cha l lenges la te r  in  the  a f te rnoon.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And there  are  o ther  counse l  invo lved 

as  we l l ,  I  know.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    We are  amenab le ,  i f  i t  su i t s  you,  10 

Cha i r,  to  s ta r t  ear ly  tomorrow perhaps a t  n ine  o ’ c lock  i f  

tha t  su i t s  you and tha t  may g i ve  a  b i t  more  f lex ib i l i t y  fo r  

your  o ther  commi tments  bu t  we are  in  your  hands.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   No,  tomorrow morn ing  we  cannot  

s ta r t  be fore  ten .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  on  Fr iday we cou ld  s ta r t  ear l ie r  than  

ten .   I f  there  are  prob lems obv ious ly  in  the  a f te rnoon  fo r  

counse l  to  be  here  beyond f i ve  or  thereabouts ,  so  even i f  I  

am ava i lab le  we w i l l  accommodate  counse l .  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay,  a l r igh t .   So the  w i tnesses fo r  

tomorrow,  who have we got?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Mr  Drev in ,  he  i s  a  p rog ramme 

manager  o f  DLS.   Mr  van den Heever,  a lso  f rom DLS,  
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P roduct ion  P lanner,  and Ms Carene Geldenhuys who was  

a t  the  t ime –  she was s t i l l  employed there ,  she has le f t ,  

she was then the  DVS Lega l  and Commerc ia l  Execut ive .   

So they w i l l  dea l  w i th  spec i f i c  aspects  o f  the  DLS  or  the  

DVS procurement  p rocesses.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   No,  tha t  i s  f ine .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  we w i l l  ad journ  fo r  the  day.   We 

ad journ .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS TO 29 OCTOBER 2020  10 
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